INTERGOVERNMENTAL RISK
MANAGEMENT AGENCY
The Risk Management Solution for Local Government

EXECUTIVE BOARD
Committee Meeting Agenda
Wednesday, May 30, 2018
IRMA Office
9:30 a.m.
I.

CALL TO ORDER

Roll Call

II.

 APPROVAL OF MINUTES – February 28, 2018 (pg. 1)

III.

INFORMATIONAL ITEMS
A.

Reports found in the Member Section of the IRMA website –
http://www.irmarisk.org/Publications/IRMA-Reports.aspx
 IRMA Financial Statements
 IRMA Investment Portfolios
 IRMA Payables
 1st Quarter Investment Performance Report
 Membership Recruitment Report

B.

Standing Committee Reports
Membership Relations Committee
 2017 Unemployment Compensation Claims Administration–Annual Overview (pg. 7)
 2018 Summer Internship Program – Update (pg. 12)
 Workers’ Compensation Focus Program-1st Quarter Results (pg. 14)
 Membership Recruitment & Retention (pg. 17)
Administration & Finance Committee
 Potential Interest Income Credit (pg. 20)
Training & Education Committee
 2018 Education Summit (pg. 23)
 2019 Training & Risk Management Programs (pg. 25)
Coverage, Claims & Litigation Committee
 Panel Counsel Hourly Rate Increase (pg. 35)

IV.

CHAIR’S REPORT – FRANCES

V.

ACTION ITEMS
A.

MEMBERSHIP RELATIONS COMMITTEE – WACHTEL
1.
 IRMA Member Standards & Guidelines – Policy Update (pg. 37)
2.
 IRMA Member Statement of Guidelines for Membership Selection, Withdrawal &
Expulsion – Policy Update (pg. 40)
3.
 2017 Claims to Contribution Report (pg. 46)
4.
 Claims Administration Services for Mount Prospect’s Previous GL Claims (pg. 57)

_______________________________________

Voice Vote
 Bylaw Vote – 2/3 of Membership
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5.
6.

 Elimination of IRMA’s Written Legislative Mission Statement (pg. 59)
 Merging Committees – TEC & MRC (pg. 62)

B.

ADMINISTRATION & FINANCE COMMITTEE – HELM
1.
 Actuarial Report as of 12/31/17 (pg. 66)
2.
 2017 Audited Financial Report (pg. 86)
3.
 Revenue Base Deduction – Bylaw Change (pg. 155)

C.

TRAINING & EDUCATION COMMITTEE – ROBBINS
1.
 TEC Statement of Responsibility (pg. 160)
2.
 Training Registration Guidelines (pg. 162)
3.
 Accreditation / Re-Accreditation Grant Application (pg. 167)

D.

COVERAGE, CLAIMS & LITIGATION COMMITTEE – CEDILLO
1.
IRMA Property Coverage-Coverage Section B1.h. Outdoor Property (pg. 171)

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/STAFF REPORT

VI.

EXECUTIVE SESSION
A. Pending Litigation
B. Executive Director's Performance Review (TBD)

VII.

ADDITIONS TO AGENDA

VIII.

CONFIRMATION OF NEXT MEETING
Wednesday, October 3, 2018
IRMA Office - 9:30 a.m.

IX.

ADJOURNMENT
To ensure a quorum, please contact Donna Sluis at donnas@irmarisk.org or
Call her at (708) 236-6349,
if you are not able to attend the meeting.
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MANAGEMENT AGENCY
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EXECUTIVE BOARD
Committee Meeting Minutes

PRESENT:

ALSO
PRESENT:

ABSENT:
I.

Wednesday, February 28, 2018
IRMA Office
9:30 a.m.
Kathleen Gargano
Peggy Halik
Michelle Robbins

Jessica Frances, Chair
Bridget Wachtel
Julia Cedillo
Lisa Scheiner

Margo Ely
Susan Garvey
Dan LeTourneau
Rita Boserup
Jennifer Swahlstedt
Donna Sluis
James Adams, Westchester Fire Department
None

CALL TO ORDER
Chair Frances called the meeting to order at 9:33 a.m. Roll was taken, and a quorum
declared.

II.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES
A.

Meeting Minutes of November 29, 2017

Frances asked if anyone had any comments/questions on the minutes. Hearing none, a
motion was made by Gargano and seconded by Cedillo to approve the November 29,
2017 meeting minutes. A voice vote was called, and the motion carried.
B.

Reports for information only, found in the Member Section of the IRMA website –
http://www.irmarisk.org/Publications/IRMA-Reports.aspx
➢ IRMA Financial Statements
➢ IRMA Investment Portfolios
➢ IRMA Payables
➢ 3rd Quarter Investment Performance Report
➢ Membership Recruitment Report
➢ Claims Operational Report
➢ Risk Management Services Report

Frances mentioned these reports are informational only and if anyone had any questions
or comments. There were none.
III.

CHAIR’S REPORT - FRANCES
Nomination of Chair-Elect – Mike Braiman, Wilmette
Frances reported given that Dave Clark is no longer working for an IRMA community
and is therefore unable to serve as Chair in 2018, requiring Frances to move from chair1
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elect to chair leaving the chair-elect position vacant. Mike Braiman of Wilmette was
recommended to serve as the chair-elect for 2018-2019. A motion was made by
Gargano and seconded by Robbins to approve the nomination. The motion carried.
Frances thanked Gargano for getting this accomplished.
Welcome to 2018 Executive Board
Frances briefly went over Items A-I to the committee.
Before moving into the Committee Reports, Frances recommended the items that are for
informational purposes only, which do not require guidance of the Executive Board, be
moved under the Reports Section, as item C. If no one was opposed to this, moving
forward the action items will only be reported for this agenda. Ely commented the
agenda for the Board of Director meetings includes a consent agenda. After some
discussion, everyone was in favor of this suggestion.
IV.

COMMITTEE REPORTS
A.

MEMBERSHIP RELATIONS COMMITTEE – WACHTEL
1.
Announcement of 2018 Committee
2.
2017 MRC Objectives – Year End Results
3.
2018 MRC Objectives
4.
Statement of Responsibility for Membership Relations Committee –
Modification
5.
Workers’ Compensation Focus Program – 4th Quarter Reports
6.
2018 IRMA Onsite Summer Safety Internship Program
Wachtel commented that items 1-6 are for information only.
7.

Review 2017 Member Participation Report
Wachtel gave an overview of the participation report to the committee. Halik
commented that Burr Ridge and Woodridge should be moved up to Category
I. A motion was made by Helm and seconded by Wachtel to approve the
2017 Member Participation Report with the revision to move Burr Ridge and
Woodridge to Category I of the report. The motion carried.

8.

Westchester Request for IRMA Grant
Ely gave the committee an overview of the grant program and guidelines,
which will be discussed in the next agenda item. Chief Adams from
Westchester asked the Executive Board to reconsider the eligibility of
members that have given notice of withdrawal, for grant programs. Chief
Adams stated he applied for the fire equipment grant and was denied
because Westchester had given notice of withdrawal from IRMA. Chief
Adams expressed concern for his firefighters’ safety. After much discussion,
Frances asked before entertaining a motion if the committee had any
questions or comments. Ely asked if anyone wanted to make a motion to
have Westchester be eligible for the grant in 2018. Hearing none, Ely asked
if anyone denies Westchester to be eligible for the grant. A motion was made
by Halik and seconded by Wachtel to deny Westchester’s request. The
motion carried.
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9.

B.

Grant Program Guidelines
Wachtel mentioned that these guidelines have been through each of the
committees. Ely commented that the question of what level of participation is
required for eligibility for grant programs raised significant discussion at the
Standing Committees.
The TEC and MRC recommended that the
participation requirement explicitly state that a member must have attended a
minimum of 2 out of the last 4 BOD meetings and the AFC disagreed with a
specific minimum. All the committees agreed that if there is a denial for a
grant that is based on the member’s participation, the member should have a
right to an appeal the denial to the MRC. Helm commented on item 1 of the
guidelines that “Grants are for IRMA Members only” be taken out and it would
take away the argument. Wachtel commented following up from Helm’s
comment on item 1 stating the last sentence in the first paragraph “At a
minimum...” it was not necessary. Ely commented that there is this notion
among the membership that Board of Directors meetings should be attended.
The Executive Board directed that the language should emphasize that
grants are a privilege and dependent on approval by the Board of Directors.
After much discussion, Cedillo commented that we are looking for approval of
these grant guidelines striking the first sentence in number 1; adding a
revision for a right to appeal; a disclaimer at the discretion of the board and
taking out “At a minimum” in the last sentence of number 1. A motion was
made by Cedillo and seconded by Wachtel to approve the grant program
guidelines with the changes stated. The motion carried.

ADMINISTRATION & FINANCE COMMITTEE – HELM
1.
Announcement of 2018 Committee
2.
2017 Administration & Finance Committee Objectives Accomplishments
3.
2018 Administration & Finance Committee Objectives – Revised
Helm commented that items 1-3 are for information only.
4.

Budget Policy-Modification
Helm commented that number 4 and 5 are tied together but will need a
separate vote. Helm reported the budget modification came to everyone’s
attention with Arlington Heights joining mid-year, which caused a $430,564
increase in the Contribution Revenue line item and offsetting a Loss Fund
expense line item. On page 51 is the revised Budget Policy language and the
AFC was supportive of this policy change. A motion was made by Helm and
seconded by Cedillo to approve the Budget Policy Modification. The motion
carried.

5.

Budget Amendment
Helm commented on page 52 is the Budget Amendment. A motion was
made by Halik and seconded by Gargano to approve the budget amendment.
The motion carried.

6.

Establish a Capitalization Policy
Helm reported this is a change in policy. This makes a lot of sense, so they
are not capitalizing small items. There was no discussion and AFC was
supportive of this policy. A motion was made by Gargano and seconded by
Robbins to approve the new Capitalization Policy. The motion carried.
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7.

C.

Amendment to the IRMA Flex 125 Plan
Helm reported the amendment to the Flex Plan is to allow the contribution
caps to change based upon the latest IRS adjustments. A motion was made
by Gargano and seconded by Wachtel to approve Flex 125 Amendment. The
motion carried.

TRAINING & EDUCATION COMMITTEE – ROBBINS
1.
Announcement of 2018 Committee
2.
Announcement of 2018 Steering Committee Officers
3.
2017 Training & Education Objectives – Completion
4.
2018 Training & Education Objectives
5.
2018 Training Programs – Update
6.
2018 Special Training Schedule
7.
2018 Education Summit
8.
Safety First Program Update
9.
2017 Grant Programs – Update
Robbins commented 1-9 are for information only.
10.

D.

Proposed Grant Revisions
Robbins reported that the new 2018 grants follow the model of paying 1/3 of
the cost up to a previously identified amount. For 2018 and going forward,
we
are
recommending
the
maximum
of
$3,500
for
the
Accreditation/Reaccreditation program, $1,700 for the Injury Prevention
Program and $4,000 for the Lexipol Policy Manual Development Program. A
motion was made by Helm and seconded by Gargano to approve the
proposed grant revisions. The motion carried.

COVERAGE, CLAIMS & LITIGATION COMMITTEE – CEDILLO
1.
Announcement of 2018 Committee
2.
2017 Committee Objectives Accomplishments
3.
2018 Committee Objectives
4.
Statement of Responsibility for Coverage, Claims & Litigation CommitteeModification
5.
New Medical Management Pilot Program
Cedillo mentioned while none of her items required any action, she wanted to
highlight several items as information only. Page 85 outlines Risk
Management Initiatives and the New Medical Management Pilot Program
initiatives that IRMA is providing for its members. Cedillo commented the
work that Swahlstedt and the rest of the IRMA staff is doing with regards to
these initiatives provide great individual and practical measures to prevent
injuries under the Safety-First Program. The Pilot Medical Management
Program looks promising to reduce workers’ compensation costs and
manage workers’ compensation cases more effectively.
Cedillo also mentioned the implementation of additional reports being
provided to the committee regarding performance. At the last meeting,
Milliman provided a report on the predictive modeling. Milliman will present at
the spring meeting and further discuss utilization and application of the
reports.
4
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/STAFF REPORT
1.

Recommendation from the Ad Hoc Committee: Exposure Base
Ely gave an overview of the process and outcome from the 2 meetings that
were held to the committee. After some discussion, a motion was made by
Gargano and seconded by Helm to concur with the Ad Hoc Committee’s
recommendation to maintain the status quo. The motion carried.

2.

Approval of closed Executive Session Minutes – November 29, 2017
A motion was made by Gargano and seconded by Cedillo to approve the
Executive Session Minutes from November 29, 2017. The motion carried.

VI.

ADDITIONS TO AGENDA
Tinley Park Request for Additional Time to Rescind Notice of Withdrawal
Ely commented that staff met with Tinley Park late last year and they indicated they were
probably going to be checking the market to see if there are better options than IRMA.
Ely spoke with Dave Niemeyer, their manager last week, who mentioned that the Village
would be providing IRMA with Notice of Withdrawal but would like until August 31, 2018
to rescind the notice. IRMA’s policy allows a member 60 days to rescind. The required
9-month notice to preserve the member’s right to its reserve money requires a member
to provide notice by March 30. Staff needs sufficient notice to work on the budget and
our loss fund numbers with and without the member in anticipation of their ultimate
decision. Boserup can accommodate Tinley Park’s request. Ely also commented that
staff needs to determine if our documents are reading the way they should and asked if
the Board wanted to direct staff to look at this and bring something back so that this
process makes more sense. Garvey mentioned that it needs to be more consistent.
Gargano commented moving forward at a policy standpoint that notice is at a minimum
of 120 days but no later than August 31st. Garvey mentioned there should be some
discretionary language, that the approval to let them rescind is at the discretion of the
MRC and Executive Board. After much discussion, a motion was made by Scheiner and
seconded by Gargano to approve Tinley Park’s request for additional time to rescind
notice of withdrawal. The motion carried.

VII.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

VIII.

CONFIRMATION OF NEXT MEETING
Frances stated the next scheduled Executive Board meeting is Wednesday, May 30,
2018 at 9:30 a.m. at the IRMA office.
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IX.

ADJOURNMENT
A motion was made by Halik and seconded by Cedillo to adjourn the meeting. A voice
vote was called, and the motion carried.

Submitted by:

Approved by:

______________________________
Margo Ely
Executive Director

_______________________________
Jessica Frances
IRMA Chair

G:\Committees\Executive Board\2018\5-30-18\Ebmeetingminutes180228.Doc
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INTERGOVERNMENTAL RISK
MANAGEMENT AGENCY
The Risk Management Solution for Local Government

MEMORANDUM
TO:

Membership Relations Committee

FROM:

Dan LeTourneau, Director of Risk Management Services

DATE:

April 25, 2018

RE:

2017 Unemployment Compensation Claims Administration – Annual Overview

Purpose: The purpose of this memorandum is to provide the MRC the annual update of the
Unemployment Compensation Claims Administration Services provided by NSN Employer
Services to IRMA members during 2017.
Background/Discussion: Attached for your review and information is the 2017 Year-end
Unemployment Compensation Claims Administration Summary Report along with 2015-2016
comparison reports. The reports prepared by NSN Employer Services Inc., summarizes their
unemployment compensation claims administration services rendered for IRMA members. After
five straight years of unemployment claims reductions, members experienced a small claim
increase of less than 1% in 2017 from 159 in 2016 to 174 in 2017. Claims are down by 79%
since the highest level in 2011. Fraudulent claims filed by non-employees were down
significantly from 54 in 2016 to only 9 in 2017. Overall, NSN continues to successfully handle
members’ claims in an effective, customer focused manner for this difficult claims management
area.
Unemployment Claims Filed
2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

412

348

298

159

174

Recommendation: Review the attached 2017 Unemployment Compensation Claims
Administration Reports.
Membership Relations Committee 5/16/18: The MRC reviewed and accepted the annual
2017 Unemployment Compensation Claims Administration Reports provided by NSN Employer
Services.
DLT\ll
G:\Committees\Membership Relations Committee\2018\5-16-18\2017 UEC Summary - Memo.Doc
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INTERGOVERNMENTAL RISK
MANAGEMENT AGENCY
The Risk Management Solution for Local Government

MEMORANDUM
TO:

Membership Relations Committee

FROM:

Dan LeTourneau, Director of Risk Management Services

DATE:

May 2, 2018

RE:

2018 IRMA Onsite Summer Safety Internship Program - Update

Purpose:
Update the Membership Relations Committee (MRC) on the current status of the 2018 IRMA
Summer Safety Internship Program.
Background/Discussion:
We have just secured a second summer safety intern from the Illinois State University(ISU)
resulting in the following two Summer Safety Interns for 2018:
-

Vincent Manna (ISU - Safety Major) – 12-week internship
Morgan Pfafman (ISU - Safety Major) – 12-week internship

Each intern will be entering their senior year in their Bachelor of Science Degree in
Occupational Safety & Health Program. Both interns will be pursuing a career in occupational
safety.
Five (5) members submitted intern applications, including our four (4) WC Focus Program
members. Based on review of the applications and the two qualified summer safety interns for
2018, the following members will be receiving a summer safety intern for the services requested
below:


City of Crystal Lake (2 weeks)
-Job Safety Analysis Review



Village of Carol Stream (2 weeks)
(WC Focus Program Participant)
-Update Job Safety Analysis
-Update policies and research best practices
-Review function and results of Safety Committee Activities



Village of Palos Park (2 weeks)
-Assist in Performance Review Policy
-Assist in Safety Committee/Accident Investigation
-Review 3 manuals and look into combining information into one policy

12

Memorandum to Membership Relations Committee
May 2, 2018
Re: 2018 IRMA Onsite Summer Safety Internship Program – Update
Page 2 of 2



Village of Bloomingdale (2 weeks)
-Lockout/Tagout Program



Village of Riverside (2 weeks)
-Combine Village Wide Safety Policies into a consolidated manual
-Adapting Recreation Policies into a “at a glance” format for residents that could be used
on our website or in a pamphlet
-Create a Public Works training roster spreadsheet
-Update Employee Right to Know Policy and MSDS Organization
-Chlorine Gas Policy revision and update



Village of Wilmette (2 weeks)
-Audit compliance of Globally Harmonized System (GHS written policy and on-line Safety
Data Sheets library
-Audit insurance claim files and audit internal accident for trends
-Assess the Village’s compliance with its Safety Program and mandatory federal and state
posting



Village of Brookfield (2 weeks)
(WC Focus Program Participant)
-Early Return to Work Transitional duty assignments
-Update Hazard Communication Policy to ensure GHS compliance
-Create a performance evaluation review template



Village of Roselle (2 weeks)
(WC Focus Program Participant)
-Review Safety Policy and define updates
-Create Public Works Committee and standards
-Review and complete SOP Manual



New WC Focus Program Member (2 weeks)
TBD



IRMA Projects (2 weeks)
-Review and Update of IRMA Model/Sample Policies

Recommendation: Review the final 2018 IRMA Summer Safety Intern Assignments.
Membership Relations Committee 5/16/18: The MRC reviewed and accepted the 2018 IRMA
Summer Safety Intern assignments.
DLT/ll
G:\Committees\Membership Relations Committee\2018\5-16-18\2018 IRMA Onsite Summer Safety Internship Program-Memo.Docx
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INTERGOVERNMENTAL RISK
MANAGEMENT AGENCY
The Risk Management Solution for Local Government

MEMORANDUM
TO:

Membership Relations Committee

FROM:

Dan LeTourneau, Director of Risk Management Services

DATE:

May 2, 2018

RE:

Workers’ Compensation Focus Program – 1st Quarter 2018 Reports

Purpose: The purpose of this memorandum is to provide the MRC with a review of the 1st
Quarter, 2018 l Workers’ Compensation Focus Program member progress.
Background: The IRMA Workers’ Compensation Focus Program began on April 1, 2016 with
participating members identified as the Village of Brookfield; Carol Stream; Roselle and
Westchester. The Village of Westchester was removed from the program at the end of 2017
resulting from their issuance of a Notice of Intent to Withdraw from IRMA. At the time of their
removal program, the Village was meeting the requirements for removal from the program. An
additional member will be recommended to participate in the Workers’ Compensation Focus
Program as part of the annual Claims to Contribution Report which is included in the MRC
packet. Attached for review are the completed individual member reports for the 1st Quarter of
2018. Part I of the individual member quarterly reports outline claim frequency and severity
year to date as compared to their IRMA member targets for workers’ compensation. Part II
provides a summary of risk management/safety activities completed in the 1st quarter of 2017.
Below is a brief 1st Quarter, 2018 overview for each of the WC Focus Program participants:
Village of Brookfield
The Village of Brookfield completed the 1st quarter of 2018 with a workers’ compensation claim
frequency of 6 versus their IRMA target of 10, resulting in an annual variance of 240% of target
if the year continues to track as the 1st quarter. There were 2 workers’ compensation claims in
each of the three main operating departments. Four of the six claims were small medical only
claims. There was one lost time claim in the Police Department resulting from an officer kicking
down a door at a structure fire to search for occupants. This preventable claim has been
reviewed and remedial measures have been implemented. The department has purchased a
door breach kit which will be used to prevent future claims of this nature. There was a low back
injury in public works resulting from an employee mixing two 80-pound bags of concrete in a
non-movable bucket for a small concrete repair. It was recommended that the Village
purchased a mobile mixing bucket on wheels to prevent similar incidents. They are in the
process of reviewing the options for the purchase. The Public Works Department will also be
purchasing safety goggles for tree trimming in place of their safety glasses to prevent additional
sawdust in the eye injuries. The Fire Department has conducted re-training on use of their stair
chair, as it was a communication error which resulted in their medical only low back strain. The
Village addressed each injury and provided their specific implemented loss prevention actions.
The Village’s 1st quarter workers’ compensation claims experience is currently $98,694 due to
the above-mentioned police department knee injury, resulting in their current experience
tracking well above their annual IRMA workers’ compensation target of $203,997 at 193.5% on
an annualized basis.
The Public Works Department’s newly established Safety Committee and Accident Review
Board met in February, March and April. Foremen are conducting daily safety talks on
applicable topics.
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The Brookfield Fire Department developed and implemented a new Behavior Observation
Program and conducted joint rapid deployment training with the Police Department in the first
quarter. They also purchased a Gear Extractor for cleaning their gear and plan on purchasing a
second set of turn-out gear for all employees to ensure they are always in clean gear. The
Police Department completed development and implemented a new Behavior Observation
Program. The Department completed Rescue Task Force and Rapid Deployment training and
continue to provide verbal de-escalation and additional CIT/Mental Health training to officers.
Training has been provided to all police supervisors to ensure that root cause analysis is
conducted as part of the reporting and investigation process. They continue to work on the
completion of their new Lexipol Manual.
Attached for review is Part I and Part II of the WC Focus Program Quarterly Report, which
provides additional details of the Village’s risk management activities completed during the 1st
quarter and planned for the 2nd quarter of 2018.
Village of Carol Stream
The Village of Carol Stream completed the first quarter of 2018 with a workers’ compensation
frequency of 5 as compared to their annual IRMA target of 15, resulting in an annualized
variance of 133% of target. Of the 5 new workers’ compensation claims incurred, 4 were small
medical only claims. The one lost time claim resulted from an officer attempting to arrest a
combative subject resulting in an injury to the officer’s hands and shoulder pain. The Officer
was initially on light duty, then taken off work for a period. The officer is now back to work full
duty. Public works incurred 3 small medical only claims. All claims were reviewed by their
Safety Committee. Additional Tailgate Talk training was provided on three points of contact and
clearing employee boots/ truck step following the Slip while enter a large dump truck claim. The
fracture finger claim resulted from a very difficult repair on a front loader. This type of repair will
likely be outsourced in the future. The Village’s first quarter workers’ compensation claims
experience of only $23,026 is tracking well below their IRMA annual severity target of $288,961
resulting in an annualized variance of target of just 31.9%.
The Police Department continues their roll call safety component, use of Police One video
training along with defensive tactics training. They have also conducted officer training in DeEscalation and utilized the four IRMA Police Safety Basics - Hazard Training programs in
confined spaces, electrical safety, structure fires and trench hazards. The department also
adheres to full officer participation in the Police Law Institute online training program. For the
2nd quarter, we have schedule harassment, blood borne pathogens and slips, trips & falls
training for each shift and they will also be conducting traffic stop training.
Public Works conducted several additional safety training programs during the 1st quarter
including additional JSA development and training, sewer jetting training, along with monthly
facility inspections by Safety Committee members and Safety Committee charter update.
During the 2nd quarter the Department will be working on their Silica policy & program which
currently prohibits all dry cutting. They will be adding water sources to all their concrete/asphalt
cutting equipment. They will also be receiving the service of an IRMA Summer Safety Intern for
assistance.
Attached for review is Part I and Part II of the WC Focus Program Quarterly Report, which
provides additional details of the Village’s risk management activities completed during the 1st
quarter and planned for the 2nd quarter of 2018.
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Village of Roselle
The Village of Roselle completed the 1st Quarter of 2018 with 3 workers’ compensation claims
versus their target of 12 or tracking at 100% of target. All the new workers compensation claims
were medical only. The Fire Department claim resulted from a firefighter hitting his knee on the
stairs during a training exercise requiring one doctors visit. The Police Department had one
finger fracture claim, and a trip and fall from an officer while issuing a citation. The Village’s
overall workers’ compensation claim experience for the 1st quarter is $5,000, which is tracking
well below their IRMA severity target of $217,396 resulting in very favorable annualized
variance of target of only 9.2%.
The Fire Department continues with the process of developing their Lexipol operational best
practices policy & procedure manual which is targeted for completion by mid-2018. The
department completed their physicals and wellness surveys during the 1st quarter. The
department has completed Health Safety Officer(HSO) and Incident Safety Officer(ISO) training
for 5 of the 6 firefighters targeted for training. The Police Department achieved ILEAP Tier I
Accreditation during the first quarter of 2018. The Department continues to pursue an annual
physical fitness program with required compliance testing with their union. They will be
approaching the union to possibly start with a mandatory program for all new hires and initial
voluntary program for current officers to get the program started. They continue with monthly
reviews of both traffic accidents and use of force incidents with their new formalized accident
investigation process. The department has trained additional officer in the 40-hour CIT training
and should have all officers by end of summer. Class availability is limited for the 40-hour
course. Officers receive additional defensive tactics training in the first quarter. The Police
department is evaluating Rumbler Sirens for use in the police vehicles. These sirens produce a
low-frequency tone in tandem with the standard high frequency sirens and are designed to
heard by motorists unable to hear due to ambient noise such as traffic or loud music. The lowfrequency tones penetrate hard services such as glass and doors, along with producing a low
thumping sounds which can cause body vibrations. These can assist with safety clearing
intersections to reduce the traffic accidents. The Public Works Department re-established their
safety committee and continues its efforts to develop their updated, more detailed operational
manual. They are expanding their JSA program by completing four new JSA’s per quarter.
They have adopted their new Employee Orientation Manual and are working on a new hearing
conservation program based on their hearing testing results. They are working on completing a
Silica Policy based on the IRMA Model policy. The Department also completed Work Zone
Safety training in the first quarter.
Attached for review is Part I and Part II of the WC Focus Program Quarterly Report, which
provides additional details of the Village’s risk management activities completed during the 1st
quarter and planned for the 2nd quarter of 2018.
Recommendations: Review and accept the 1st Quarter 2018 Workers’ Compensation Focus
Program Reports from the participating members. Please see the Annual State of the
Membership Report for the recommendation to replace the Village of Westchester with another
IRMA member in need of further assistance to reduce their workers’ compensation experience t.
Membership Relations Committee 5/16/18: The MRC reviewed and accepted the 1st Quarter
2018 Workers’ Compensation Focus Program Reports from the current participating members.

DLT/ll
G:\Committees\Membership Relations Committee\2018\5-16-18\1st Quarter 2018 WC Focus Program - Cover.Docx
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MEMORANDUM
TO:

Membership Relations Committee

FROM: Dan LeTourneau, Director of Risk Management Services
DATE: May 8, 2018
RE:

Membership Recruitment and Retention

Purpose: Provide the MRC with an update on recent member recruitment efforts.
Discussion: Staff has continued its efforts to recruit new IRMA members with a focus on
medium to large municipalities. Since June of 2017, staff and member recruitment efforts have
resulted in the addition of our largest member ever with the Village of Arlington Heights and our
3rd largest member, Village of Mount Prospect. Please see the attached Membership
Recruitment & Retention Report for additional detail. In addition to our direct marketing efforts
as identified in the attached report, staff is conducting the following recruitment efforts:





ILCMA Winter Conference: Sponsor & Recruitment Booth
IAMMA Spring Conference: Program Sponsor
Metro Managers Golf Outing: Sponsor & Attendance
ILCMA Summer Conference: Sponsor & Recruitment Booth

IRMA has a purchased a professional pull-up marketing banner which can be used as a floor
banner or for table top use. We have also purchased IRMA logo tablecloths for use at
conferences.
Recommendation: Review the memo for update of current recruitment efforts and the attached
IRMA Recruitment & Retention Report for additional details.
Membership Relations Committee 5/16/18: The MRC reviewed and accepted the new
expanded IRMA Recruitment & Retention Report which provided additional detail on member
retention efforts and an overview of recent staff recruitment efforts. Staff highlighted current
recruitment efforts with the Village of Glen Ellyn in which the IRMA annual contribution
appeared to be well below their current MICA program. Staff also noted IRMA will be meeting
with the Village of Wilmette on May 31st to discuss the IRMA program. IRMA will be a sponsor
and have a booth at the Summer ILCMA Conference in Collinsville as will also be attending the
September IGFOA meeting.

DLT/ll
Attachment
G:\Committees\Membership Relations Committee\2018\5-16-18\Recruitment & Retention Memo.Docx
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2018
MEMBERSHIP RECRUITMENT & RETENTION REPORT
(As of April)
RECENT RECRUITMENTS
Municipality
Special
District
Village of
Glen Ellyn

Status of Data
Submission

Contribution

Accept/Decline
Application

Notes

Financial /Loss
Info. Submitted

$492,228 (26.2%
credit)/$2,500
Ded.

Evaluating

Glenbard
Wastewater
Authority

Financial /Loss
Info. Submitted

Evaluating

SEECOM

Application
Received

$116,587
(16.62%
credit)/$2,500
Ded.
TBD

IRMA quote below
current MICA
program cost.
Awaiting full
coverage detail &
Village Application.
GWA would come in
w/ Village.

Village of
Winnetka
Village of
Lincolnshire

N/A

TBD

TBD

Complete

$276,062
(14,20% credit)
(2018)

TBD

Village of
Elmhurst

N/A

TBD

TBD

Village of Elk
Grove

N/A

TBD

TBD

City of
Wheaton

N/A

TBD

TBD

Village of Blue
Island

Awaiting loss
report

TBD

TBD

18

TBD

Consolidated
Dispatch: Crystal
Lake, Cary,
Algonquin - Founding
members. 9 others
by contract.
Submitted
application.
Meeting scheduled
on May 31, 2018.
Left HELP for Comm.
Ins. Program. Will
contact for 2019
quote.
Contact from ILCMA
Conference. Sent
information.
Pursuing meeting w/
Jim Grabowski.
Contact from ILCMA
Conference.
Pursuing meeting
with Ray Rummel.
Bob Lenhardt,
Finance Director, not
interested in a quote
this year. Will review
in 2019.
Mike Marzal, Dir. Of
Finance & Admin.,
requested an IRMA
quote

APPLICATIONS ACCEPTED / DECLINED / REMOVED FROM SOLICITATION
Municipality/
Special
District
West Central
Consolidated
Comm.(WC3)
LTACC

Contribution

Accept/Decline
Application

Notes

$50,282

Accepted
Effective 5/1/18

$50,000

Accepted

Village of
Arlington Hts.
Village of
Mount Prospect

$934,600/$100k
Ded.
$1,065,357
(27.29% Credit)
$100k Ded. =
$596,600
$1,608,992
(32.11% credit)
$100k
Ded. =$917,126
139,304 / 30.69%
Debit
$77,333
(18.10% credit)

Accepted

Consolidated Dispatch: Riverside,
Brookfield, North Riverside. McCook
by contract.
Consolidated Dispatch: LaGrange,
LaGrange Park, Western Springs.
New Member effective 6/1/17.

Accepted

New Member effective 1/1/18.

N/A

Selected a commercial insurance
program.
Removed from solicitation.

High Debit/Not
Recommended
Not Feasible

Will reapply at a later date

Village of
Glenview

Village of
Highwood
Village of Deer
Park
SWANCC

$67,842
(19.10% credit)

Not Feasible

5 employees/1 full time. Services
contracted to 3rd parties. Current
IMLRMA Quote $22k.
Single service special district which
does not need many coverages and
most services of IRMA. Current
program cost is $47,512.

MEMBER RETENTION
Municipality/
Special
District
Village of Tinley
Park

Village of
Westchester
Village of
Stickney

Current
Contribution
$1,125,548
(w/ 25.47% credit)
$754,069 - $50K
Ded.
$453,215
(w/ 26.4% debit)
$209,541
(w/ 20.15% debit)

Notice of
Withdrawal
Received
Yes-Requested
Rescindable

Yes - As of
01/01/19
No

G:\Committees\Membership Relations Committee\2018\5-16-18\2018 Membership Recruitment & Retention Report-April.Docx
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Notes

Tinley Park is retaining a consultant
and conducting a cost comparison
study. Can rescind by 9/1/18
Leaving IRMA as of 1/1/19 unless
additional information received.
Approached by Mesirow (Andrew
Madigan) to quote. Not interested in
leaving IRMA at this time
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MEMORANDUM
TO:

Administration & Finance Committee

FROM:

Rita Boserup, Director of Financial Services

DATE:

May 11, 2018

RE:

2018 Potential Interest Income Credit

PURPOSE: The purpose of this memorandum is to provide information related to a potential
interest income credit that will be issued in 2018, the amount and timing of which will be
determined later in the year.
BACKGROUND: The following table identifies the amount available for an Interest Income Credit
in 2018:
Liabilities 12/31/17 (less Members balances
and deferred contributions)
2018 Contributions, less excess surplus used
Total liabilities:

$84,880,650

Members' Reserve 12/31/17
Less: Withdrawn Members - Members' Reserve
Set aside for 2018 Rate Stabilization
Set aside for Future Rate Stabilization
Members' Reserve Available for Credit:
Less 20% of Liabilities
Members' Reserve Available for Credit:

$63,632,430
(5,741,836)
(5,000,000)
(3,000,000)
49,890,594
(21,395,893)
28,494,701

22,098,817
106,979,467

DISCUSSION: This large amount is due to investment income earned on the Members Reserve
balance in fiscal year 2017 of $7.8 million, plus the actual amount transferred into Members’
Reserve for 2017 of $21.2 million, which covers all the eligible years with balances from 19852012. Of the $21.2 million, $17.2 million is directly attributable to just the 2012 membership year.
An analysis of the 2012 membership year is attached, showing positive loss fund reserve
adjustments of $8 million vs. the original budget and investment earnings of $9.2 million more
than the budget.
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Surpluses/deficits in the most recent five years are not transferred into Members’ Reserve until
the year is five years old and are listed as Amounts Due To/From Members on the balance sheet.
The year-end audited 2017 balances in those years are:
Year
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
Total

Surplus/(Deficit)
$ 8,562,714
7,044,864
1,968,509
(2,073,130)
75,922
$15,578,878

The trend for future additional interest income credits is very good, except for event year 2016,
which will roll into the reserve calculation at the end of 2021 the fiscal year. The surplus/deficit
calculations are done at the close of the fiscal year as part of the audit process.
In the 2018 budget, $5 million of the potential interest income credit was used for Rate
Stabilization. At the 11-14-17 AFC meeting, $3 million was proposed as a set aside for future rate
stabilization, which was approved by the full Board of Directors in December, 2017. Considering
current municipal budgetary constraints, as well as the anticipated future of continuing challenges,
staff believes rate stabilization is a priority for IRMA’s membership. In addition, staff recommends
consideration of financial challenges that members face by the threat of false conviction lawsuits
that arise when convictions are vacated many years after the arrest and prosecution. In response
to this issue, the membership approved the Arrest, Prosecution, Conviction, Contingency Loan
Fund in 2016. Staff will recommend that a portion of the interest income credit be dedicated to
this important liability exposure.
RECOMMENDATION: Direct staff to determine the amount and timing of the 2017 interest
income credit to be issued in 2018 and make a recommendation to the Committee at the next
meeting.
Administration and Finance Committee 5/23/18: Staff explained that at the next meeting, we
will recommend that some of this money be saved in a separate “contingency” fund for specific
purposes, including rate stabilization, underinsured or uninsured challenges and avoidance of a
supplemental assessment. The AFC seemed to concur.
/RB
Attachment
G:\Committees\Administration & Finance Committee\2018\5-23-18 Meeting\2018 Potential Interest Income Credit.docx
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Cummulative Surplus
Balance

Surplus per year

Investment earnings

Contributions
Other income
Expenses
Loss fund adj
Subtotal

Fiscal year

Actual
Results
in 2012

1,978,684

0

1,978,684

2,398,353

1,600,063

30,917,756
30,713,514
50,250
61,955
(5,725,064) (5,543,956)
(26,843,005) (25,651,182)
(1,600,063)
(419,669)

Budget
2012

Analysis of 2012 Membership Year Surplus

7,449,547

5,470,863

2,753,163

(715)
2,718,416
2,717,700

Actual
Results
in 2013

10,771,445

3,321,897

1,354,756

(1,003)
1,968,144
1,967,141

Actual
Results
in 2014

12,054,549

1,283,105

(144,264)

(1,003)
1,428,372
1,427,368

Actual
Results
in 2015

13,818,563

1,764,014

1,652,387

(1,003)
112,630
111,626

Actual
Results
in 2016

17,203,729

3,385,165

2,810,723

0
574,442
574,442

Actual
Results
in 2017

17,203,729

10,825,119

30,713,514
61,955
(5,547,682)
(18,849,178)
6,378,609

2012-2017
Ending Bal

(9,225,056)

204,242
(11,705)
(177,382)
(7,993,827)
(7,978,672)

Variance
to budget
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MEMORANDUM
TO:

Training & Education Committee

FROM:

Jennifer Swahlstedt, Risk Management and Training Manager

DATE:

April 19, 2018

RE:

2018 Education Summit

Purpose: The purpose of this memorandum is to seek input from the committee on topics,
theme, and target audience for the 5th Education Summit on October 17, 2018.
Background: The format of the 2018 Summit has been confirmed with the TEC, MRC and
Executive Board. The format will be a half-day staff-lead workshop, without keynote speakers,
followed by the Board of Director meeting and luncheon. Additionally, the summit will
incorporate members on the panel to raise awareness on topics, increase audience
participation, and provide first-hand accounts related to the topics. A $25 No Show Fee will be
administered for those who register but do not attend.
Discussion: Committee recommendations for topics included IRMA financials, how to
effectively utilize IRMA reports, and the role of safety training in defense of claims. Based on
committee input, staff recommends the following themes for consideration by the TEC:
Building Momentum in Partnership
Take Charge, Take Action

It Starts with Us
Sharing the Vision
Strategies for Success

In addition, staff is looking for concurrence that our target audience is supervisors from all
operating departments and Village administrators. Finally, staff requests TEC input on the
following topics and agenda:
2018 IRMA ANNUAL SUMMIT
October 17, 2018, NIU-Naperville
8:30 am – 9:00 am
8:45 am – 9: 00 am
9:00 am - 9:15 am
9:15 am - 10:30 am

10:30am -10:45am
10:45pm-12:00pm

12:00pm-12:30pm
12:30pm-3:00pm

Registration & Breakfast (Atrium & Room 101, ABC)
Welcome & IRMA Award (Room 101, ABC)
Break
Concurrent Sessions
1. How IRMA Reports Can Enhance Your Safety Program
2. Early Intervention Program
3. Roadside Dangers
4. IRMA Financial Basics
Break
Concurrent Sessions
1. The Anatomy of an OSHA Investigation
2. Workers’ Compensation & Employment
3. TBD
4. IRMA Finances Advanced
Lunch
Board of Directors Meeting
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Recommendation: Staff recommends that the TEC provide feedback on possible topics and
structure for the 2018 Educational Summit.
Training & Education Committee, 5/9/18: TEC selected the theme of “Take Charge, Take
Action” and confirmed the target audience to include all supervisor/management level staff as
well as Managers and Administrators. Additional discussion focused on topics and the
committee recommended that the OSHA session be replaced with a session dedicated to new
State law changes and also recommended that staff add a session on internal investigations of
employee misconduct.

24

INTERGOVERNMENTAL RISK
MANAGEMENT AGENCY
The Risk Management Solution for Local Government

MEMORANDUM
TO:

Training & Education Committee

FROM:

Jennifer Swahlstedt, Risk Management & Training Manager

DATE:

April 26, 2018

RE:

2019 Training & Risk Management Programs

Purpose: To provide feedback to staff on training and risk management programs for 2019.
Background: One of the 2018 TEC Objectives is to analyze claim trends and member
requests, as well as evaluate ongoing programs to determine IRMA 2019 training and risk
management offerings. This includes regional and special training presentations, resources,
pooled pricing discounts on services and/or equipment, grant opportunities and other risk
management programs.
Discussion: Below is breakdown of program options based on type:
A. Regional & Special Training Programs: In 2018, we are offering 45 regional/special
training programs. Of the 45 programs, 20 are being offered in conjunction with the Park
District Risk Management Agency (PDRMA). Although it is too soon to offer a complete
evaluation of the effectiveness of our partnership with PDRMA and provide
recommendations for 2019 programming, anecdotally we have received positive
feedback on the increased offerings from both the PRSC & PWSC.
This year we are also piloting 7 special training programs for public works departments:
Mower Safety Train the Trainer, Safe Operation & Towing of a Trailer, Traffic Incident
Train the Trainer, Welding Safety, Brush Chipper Train the Trainer, Aerial Lift Safety,
and Work Zone Safety Awareness. The evaluations received from these programs will
determine if it will be offered in 2019. The PWSC has requested more train-the-trainer
programs be offered in 2019. Consideration should be given to waive fees associated
with train-the-trainer courses in exchange for agreement of participants to assist in
regional training of other members which was a successful outcome of the IRMA Flagger
Grant (2016-2017). Between January 2017 and March 2018, member trainers conducted
9 flagger training classes for 7 different members.
In 2017, the FCSC discussed several claims and near-miss reports related to training at
heights with inadequate fall protection. IRMA is working with the Start Group to develop
a fall protection competent person refresher course which will include classroom
education, case study analysis, best practices guidelines and policy recommendations.
Start Group is expected to produce a proposal within the next 60 days.
The PCSC continues to address topic issues through use of the Spring and Fall forums.
This format allows IRMA and PCSC members to develop and offer training on hot topics
affecting police departments in a timely manner.
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IRMA Standing Committees and Executive Board continue to request increase
leadership/development courses. TEC Members have attended the Public Service
Training Institute at the College of DuPage spring program and will provide input on
potential partnership for 2019.
Additional consideration should be given to offering a spring and fall regional training
addressing slips, trips, and falls (STF). Claims data shows that STF, specifically “same
level” and “ice/snow” related incidents, account for 35% of the top five most severe
losses affecting the pool between 2013-2017. These types of losses are preventable
through continued education and proper resource allocation.
B. Resources: In 2018, IRMA launched a video streaming portal with DuPont Coastal Flix.
Member on-boarding and education through the committee process is ongoing. The
service is also being used for the Safety-First program and Risk Management
recommendations following preventable losses. Staff recommends this program
continue in 2019 and be adjusted to reflect member usage.
Staff is requesting input on additional resource requests from the TEC, including but not
limited to creation of additional best practices, model policies, and safety talks.
C. Pooled Pricing Discounts: Outside of administrative services, there are 9
products/services available for pooled pricing: Binder Lift, Evaluation of Compliance for
Confined Space Entry or Trenching, Lexipol, MSDS Online, RockMills Lifter, StarChase,
Stryker, Target Solutions, and U.S. Armor. Although these products are being promoted
through E-News, committees, and the Safety-First program several are generating little
or no interest from the membership, including Compliance Evaluation, RockMills,
StarChase and U.S. Armor. Due to this, it is unlikely these agreements will be renewed
in 2019. Provide staff with direction on products/services to explore discounts.
D. Grants: Currently IRMA offers 7 grant opportunities. Three are new in 2018, including
Fire Service Ballistic Protective Equipment Program (2018-2020), Lift Assist Equipment
Program (2018), and Work Zone Safety Equipment Program (2018).
The Lift Assist Equipment Program began January 1, 2018 with a budget of $15,000 for
equipment purchases targeted at reducing lifting injuries. The maximum award for this
grant is $1,500 allowing for at least 10 members to take advantage in 2018. To date we
have received zero applications, however staff continues to raise awareness of this grant
opportunity through E-News and the committee process. In 2017, lifting/holding/carrying
was the most severe workers’ compensation cause of loss at costs over $2,000,000*
and the number one most severe cause of loss between 2013-2017. Staff recommends
continuing to raise awareness efforts to capture the interest of the membership.
Depending on third quarter interest, staff recommends offering the grant through 2019 to
address the continued challenge of reducing injuries related to lifting, holding and
carrying.
The Work Zone Safety Equipment Program also began on January 1, 2018. There is a
budget of $20,000 with a maximum award of $2,000 per member, or enough to assist at
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least 10 members in obtaining safety equipment. To date we have four applications on
file. Staff recommends offering the Work Zone Safety Equipment Program again in 2019.
Work zone safety not only affects the public works department but also the police and
fire departments. The danger is so severe and results not only in high exposure losses
but near-miss incidents, that it is a 2018 special training topic, generated IRMA to
produce work zone safety quick reference guides (expected June 2018), and is a topic
for the 2018 Education Summit. Staff believes continued awareness and education is a
must for the membership.
Physical training injuries are the fourth most frequent cause of loss between 2013-2017
and the third most severe workers’ compensation cause of loss in 2017, costing the pool
over $770,000*. Although many causes contribute to physical training injuries, including
employee fitness, safety oversight, and levels of appropriate use of force, staff is
investigating opportunities for safety training officer certifications for consideration in
2019.
Police officers are subject to injury by physical assault and also face mounting public
criticism on use of force tactics. Between 2013-2017, over $2,800,000* was spent in
workers’ compensation losses related to assault and over $700,000* in general liability
losses for alleged assaults by member police officers. Staff recommends working with
the Police Chiefs Steering Committee (PCSC) to determine if investing in a new
equipment grant to assist police departments in obtaining less lethal equipment, such as
rubber bullets or tasers, is of interest and would curb future workers’ compensation and
general liability costs.
E. Risk Management Pilot Programs: Staff is exploring the possibility of a new line item for
2019, which would include financing for pilot programs targeted at mitigating risks
affecting the pool. The success of offered programs, such as pooled pricing and certain
grant opportunities, require a testing phase to ensure that results are being delivered
and member expectations are being met. Additionally, it will provide staff with flexibility to
provide risk management solutions as necessary throughout the year. Currently staff is
researching two pilot programs for 2019: Tactical Athlete Health and Performance
Institute (TAHPI) and GPS devices in vehicles.
TAHPI is a workers’ compensation medical management program targeted at fire and
police departments which includes preferred providers, a streamlined treatment process,
and health/wellness initiatives. Workers’ Compensation costs remain approximately 70%
of all claims costs. This pilot program could then compare to other pilot programs
(CompCore Pro) IRMA is running in order to determine the best fit for the membership.
Additionally, staff recommends piloting a GPS program for municipal fleets. Vehicle
accidents affect all members and lines of coverage. By monitoring vehicles and drivers,
members can identify losses before they occur – such as harsh breaking, driving too fast
for conditions, potential vehicle theft or misuse, idling, etc.
Recommendation: Please attend the May 9 meeting to further direct staff on 2019 training and
risk management programs.

27

Memorandum to Training & Education Committee
April 26, 2018
Re: 2019 Training & Risk Management Programs
Page 4

Training & Education Committee 5/9/18: TEC agreed with overall direction of the 2019
programing as outlined by staff. Giannetti recommended increasing awareness of the grant
programs, particularly Lift Assist Equipment Program, through the IRMA Hazard Survey visits
noting that risk management recommendations would help justify purchases targeted at risk
prevention. Smizinski requested additional data regarding physical assault injuries to police
officers and related general liability claims to assist in determining next steps for possible IRMA
risk management programming. TEC supported adding a new line item for Risk Management
Pilot Programs in 2019 and debated the pros/cons of the proposed GPS pilot.
Attachment: Frequency / Severity Loss Data
*Includes 2017 undeveloped claims data
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Most Frequent Cause of Loss – All Operating Departments, 2013-2017
Cause of Loss
Count
Vehicle – Fixed Object – Mailboxes, Fences, Poles, Hydrants
398
Lifting, Holding, Carrying
336
Striking Against
329
Physical Training
270
Slip, Trip & Fall – Same Level
266
TOTAL
1,599

Experience
$1,608,132
$9,812,394
$2,065,921
$4,548,265
$9,046,413
$27,081,125

Total number of claims: 6,378; Top Five Frequent Claims account for 25% of all reported losses
Total Incurred: $103,393,733; Top Five Frequent Claims account for 26% of experience
Most Severe Cause of Loss – All Operating Departments, 2013-2017
Cause of Loss
Experience
Lifting, Holding Carrying
$9,812,394
Slip, Trip & Fall – Same Level
$9,046,413
Twisting, Turning, Bending, Kneeling
$5,815,086
Slip, Trip, & Fall – Ice / Snow
$5,174,769
Pushing, Pulling, Reaching
$4,972,816
TOTAL
$34,821,479

Count
336
266
211
194
172
1,179

Total number of claims: 6,378; Top Five Severe Claims account for 18% of all reported losses
Total Incurred: $103,393,733; Top Five Severe Claims account for 34% of experience
Most Frequent Cause of Loss – All Operating Departments, 2017
Cause of Loss
Vehicle – Fixed Object, Mailboxes, Fences, Poles, Hydrants
Lifting, Holding, Carrying
Physical Training
Striking Against
Slip, Trip, & Fall – Same Level
TOTAL

Count
153
79
64
50
47
393

Experience
$505,802
$2,017,922
$770,835
$77,591
$495,393
$3,867,543

Total number of claims: 1,266; Top Five Frequent Claims account for 31% of all reported losses
Total Incurred: $15,078,237; Top Five Frequent Claims account for 26% of experience
Most Severe Cause of Loss – All Operating Departments, 2017
Cause of Loss
Vehicle – Other Vehicle Rear Ended Our Unit
Lifting, Holding, Carrying
Physical Training
Drowning
Twisting, Turning, Bending, Kneeling
TOTAL

Experience
$2,039,439
$2,017,922
$770,835
$764,008
$756,787
$6,348,990

Count
15
79
64
1
42
201

Total number of claims: 1,266; Top Five Severe Claims account for 16% of all reported losses
Total Incurred: $15,078,237; Top Five Severe Claims account for 42% of experience.
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Most Frequent Cause of Loss – Auto Property Damage, 2017
Cause of Loss
Vehicle – Our Unit Hit While Parked / Standing
Vehicle – Fixed Object – Mailboxes, Fences, Poles, Hydrants
Vehicle/Intersection – Our Unit Straight Across
Vehicle – Hit Parked/Standing Vehicle
Vehicle – Other Vehicle Rear Ended Our Unit
TOTAL

Count
22
19
18
10
10
79

Experience
$76,740
$100,129
$102,921
$29,566
$35,046
$344,402

Total number of claims: 134; Top Five Frequent Claims account for 59% of all reported losses
Total Incurred: $609,637; Top Five Frequent Claims account for 50% of experience
Most Severe Cause of Loss – Auto Property Damage, 2017
Cause of Loss
Vehicle/Intersection – Our Unit Straight Across
Vehicle – Fixed Object – Mailboxes, Fences, Poles, Hydrants
Vehicle – Our Unit Hit While Parked/Standing
Vehicle/Intersection – Our Unit Turning Left
Vehicle – Entering/Leaving Traffic Flow
TOTAL

Experience
$102,921
$100,129
$76,740
$68,098
$41,223
$389,112

Count
18
19
22
8
6
73

Total number of claims: 134; Top Five Severe Claims account for 54% of all reported losses
Total Incurred: $609,637; Top Five Severe Claims account for 64% of experience
Most Frequent Cause of Loss – Auto Liability, 2017
Cause of Loss
Vehicle – Hit Parked/Standing Vehicle
Vehicle – Our Unit Backed into Other Vehicle
Vehicle – Our Unit Rear Ended Other Vehicle
Vehicle/Intersection – Our Unit Turning Left
Vehicle/Intersection – Our Unit Straight Across
TOTAL

Count
32
17
13
9
6
77

Experience
$64,927
$64,794
$81,375
$40,105
$25,502
$276,703

Total number of claims: 107; Top Five Frequent Claims account for 72% of all reported losses
Total Incurred: $430,497; Top Five Frequent Claims account for 64% of experience
Most Severe Cause of Loss – Auto Liability, 2017
Cause of Loss
Vehicle – Our Unit Rear Ended Other Vehicle
Vehicle – Hit Parked/Standing Vehicle
Vehicle – Our Unit Backed into Other Vehicle
Vehicle/Intersection – Our Unit Turning Left
Vehicle – Entering/Leaving Traffic Flow
TOTAL

Experience
$81,375
$64,927
$64,794
$40,105
$33,757
$284,958

Count
13
32
17
9
3
74

Total number of claims: 107; Top Five Severe Claims account for 69% of all reported losses
Total Incurred: $430,497; Top Five Severe Claims account for 66% of experience
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Most Frequent Cause of Loss – Property Damage, 2017
Cause of Loss
Vehicle – Fixed Object, Mailboxes, Fences, Poles, Hydrants
Vehicle – Hit & Run
Flood
Weather Related
Not Otherwise Classified
TOTAL

Count
124
10
9
8
4
155

Experience
$358,039
$20,402
$259,027
$97,186
$29,935
$764,589

Total number of claims: 175; Top Five Frequent Claims account for 89% of all reported losses
Total Incurred: $1,135,741; Top Five Frequent Claims account for 67% of experience
Most Severe Cause of Loss – Property Damage, 2017
Cause of Loss
Vehicle – Fixed Object, Mailbox, Fences, Poles, Hydrants
Flood
Explosion
Weather Related
Contamination / Pollution
TOTAL

Experience
$358,039
$259,027
$138,275
$97,186
$66,156
$918,685

Count
124
9
2
8
1
144

Total number of claims: 175; Top Five Severe Claims account for 82% of all reported losses
Total Incurred: $1,135,741; Top Five Severe Claims account for 80% of experience
Most Frequent Cause of Loss – General Liability, 2017
Cause of Loss
Slip, Trip & Fall – Same Level
Sewer/Water Backups (3rd Party)
Struck by Falling / Flying Objects
Vehicle – Fixed Object, Roadbed Collision
Alleged Negligent Act – Other
TOTAL

Count
21
16
14
10
9
70

Experience
$100,080
$72,790
$61,430
$5,586
$205,956
$445,842

Total number of claims: 117; Top Five Frequent Claims account for 60% of all reported losses
Total Incurred: $656,054; Top Five Frequent Claims account for 68% of experience
Most Severe Cause of Loss – General Liability, 2017
Cause of Loss
Alleged Negligent Act – Other
Slip, Trip & Fall – Same Level
Sewer/Water Backups (3rd Party)
Violation of Civil Rights / Discrimination
Struck by Falling/Flying Object
TOTAL

Experience
$205,956
$100,080
$72,790
$68,505
$61,430
$508,762

Count
9
21
16
6
14
66

Total number of claims: 117; Top Five Severe Claims account for 56% of all reported losses
Total Incurred: $656,054; Top Five Severe Claims account for 78% of experience
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Most Frequent Cause of Loss – Workers’ Compensation, 2017
Cause of Loss
Lifting, Holding, Carrying
Physical Training
Striking Against
Twisting, Turning, Bending, Kneeling
Struck by Physical Assault/Weapon
TOTAL

Count
79
63
45
42
42
271

Experience
$2,017,922
$770,834
$55,453
$756,787
$287,110
$3,888,106

Total number of claims: 733; Top Five Frequent Claims account for 37% of all reported losses
Total Incurred: $12,246,307; Top Five Frequent Claims account for 32% of experience
Most Severe Cause of Loss – Workers’ Compensation, 2017
Cause of Loss
Lifting, Holding Carrying
Vehicle – Other Vehicle Rear Ended Our Unit
Physical Training
Drowning
Twisting, Turning, Bending, Kneeling
TOTAL

Experience
$2,017,922
$2,004,392
$770,834
$764,008
$756,787
$6,313,942

Count
79
4
63
1
42
189

Total number of claims: 733; Top Five Severe Claims account for 26% of all reported losses
Total Incurred: $12,246,307; Top Five Severe Claims account for 52% of experience
Most Frequent Cause of Loss – Police Departments, 2017
Cause of Loss
Struck by Physical Assault / Weapon
Physical Training
Vehicle – Our Unit Hit While Parked/Standing
Vehicle / Intersection – Our Unit Straight Across
Vehicle – Hit Parked / Standing Vehicle
TOTAL

Count
41
34
26
22
21
144

Experience
$138,234
$409,646
$261,630
$115,898
$56,611
$982,019

Total number of claims: 441; Top Five Frequent Claims account for 32% of all reported losses
Total Incurred: $4,277,250; Top Five Frequent Claims account for 23% of experience
Most Severe Cause of Loss – Police Departments, 2017
Cause of Loss
Physical Training
Pushing, Pulling, Reaching
Struck by Auto
Slip, Trip & Fall – Same Level
Assault / Abuse
TOTAL

Experience
$409,872
$409,646
$365,855
$334,910
$311,318
$1,831,600

Count
34
12
10
12
1
69

Total number of claims: 441; Top Five Severe Claims account for 16% of all reported losses
Total Incurred: $4,277,250; Top Five Severe Claims account for 43% of experience
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Most Frequent Cause of Loss – Public Works, 2017
Cause of Loss
Vehicle – Fixed Object, Mailboxes, Fences, Poles, Hydrants
Lifting, Holding, Carrying
Striking Against
Slip, Trip & Fall – Same Level
Struck by Falling / Flying Objects
TOTAL

Count
131
47
29
28
27
262

Experience
$395,704
$1,120,258
$57,338
$126,252
$137,996
$1,837,548

Total number of claims: 590; Top Five Frequent Claims account for 44% of all reported losses
Total Incurred: $7,226,198; Top Five Frequent Claims account for 25% of experience
Most Severe Cause of Loss – Public Works, 2017
Cause of Loss
Vehicle – Other Vehicle Rear Ended our Unit
Lifting, Holding Carrying
Drowning
Vehicle – Fixed Object, Mailboxes, Fences, Poles, Hydrants
Slip, Trip & Fall – From Different Level
TOTAL

Experience
$2,000,814
$1,120,258
$764,008
$395,704
$395,704
4,630,489

Count
7
47
1
131
6
192

Total number of claims: 590; Top Five Severe Claims account for 33% of all reported losses
Total Incurred: $7,226,198; Top Five Severe Claims account for 64% of experience
Most Frequent Cause of Loss – Fire Departments, 2017
Cause of Loss
Physical Training
Lifting, Holding, Carrying
Lifting / Handling Patient
Blood/Air Borne Exposure
Twisting, Turning, Bending, Kneeling
TOTAL

Count
29
27
24
18
10
108

Experience
$360,962
$821,150
$434,643
$15,192
$462,396
$2,094,343

Total number of claims: 210; Top Five Frequent Claims account for 51% of all reported losses
Total Incurred: $3,225,455; Top Five Frequent Claims account for 64% of experience
Most Severe Cause of Loss – Fire Departments, 2017
Cause of Loss
Lifting, Holding, Carrying
Twisting, Turning, Bending, Kneeling
Lifting/Handling Patient
Physical Training
Struck by Falling / Flying Objects
TOTAL

Experience
$821,150
$462,396
$434,643
$360,962
$152,326
$2,231,477

Count
27
10
24
29
6
96

Total number of claims: 210; Top Five Severe Claims account for 45% of all reported losses
Total Incurred: $3,225,455; Top Five Severe Claims account for 69% of experience
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Most Frequent Cause of Loss – Administration, 2017
Cause of Loss
Alleged Negligent Act – Other
Inhalation, Ingestion, Absorption
Slip, Trip & Fall – Same Level
Repetitive Motion / Carpel Tunnel
Struck by Falling / Flying Objects
TOTAL

Count
6
6
2
2
1
17

Experience
$156,955
$43,870
$5,730
$186
$708
$207,449

Total number of claims: 25; Top Five Frequent Claims account for 68% of all reported losses
Total Incurred: $349,335; Top Five Frequent Claims account for 59% of experience
Most Severe Cause of Loss – Administration, 2017
Cause of Loss
Alleged Negligent Act – Other
Slip, Trip & Fall – Ice / Snow
Inhalation, Ingestion, Absorption
Zoning Issues
Lifting, Holding, Carrying
TOTAL

Experience
$156,955
$110,670
$43,870
$20,001
$7,500
$338,996

Count
6
1
6
1
1
15

Total number of claims: 25; Top Five Severe Claims account for 60% of all reported losses
Total Incurred: $349,335; Top Five Severe Claims account for 97% of experience
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INTERGOVERNMENTAL RISK
MANAGEMENT AGENCY
The Risk Management Solution for Local Government

MEMORANDUM
TO:

Coverage Claims and Litigation Committee

FROM:

Susan Garvey, Director of Legal Services

DATE:

April 25, 2018

RE:

Panel Counsel Hourly Rate Increase

Purpose: To advise the Committee of the increase for Approved Panel Counsel hourly rates
effective July 1, 2018.
Background: Section 6.06 of the IRMA Claims Manual, Litigation Management, provides that
“the Executive Director shall have the overall, primary responsibility to monitor the costs and
performance of the claims unit and defense counsel, and the overall responsibility for the
coordination of all claims and claims litigation. As a part of that responsibility, the Executive
Director sets the hourly rates for the Approved Panel Counsel.”
The Approved Panel Counsel agree to a set hourly rate for the representation of the members in
litigation. The set rates have separate rates for complex and basic cases, trial time and file
management and separate rates for different categories of attorneys based upon their level of
experience. Complex rates contemplate cases involving federal civil rights cases and employment
matters. Basic rates contemplate cases involving state tort cases. The current fee schedule is
broken down as follows:
Category 1 Attorneys include attorneys with 7 or more years of experience and bill at the
following hourly rates:
Complex Cases:

Non-Complex Cases:

$185.00/hour trial time
$185.00/hour file management

$160.00/hour trial time
$155.00/hour file management

Category 2 Attorneys include attorneys with 3-7 years of experience and bill at the following
hourly rates:
Complex Cases:

Non-Complex Cases:

$155.00/hour

$140.00/hour

Category 3 Attorneys include attorneys with under 3 years of experience and bill at $130 per
hour for all activities.
The current hourly rates were set in 2007. IRMA’s prior practice has been to review attorney
hourly rates at 3 years and generally an increase of 8% has been set.
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Discussion: It has been 10 years since IRMA has reviewed or increased panel counsel’s
hourly rate. Based upon prior practice, hourly fees should have been increased by 8% per three
years over 10 years, equaling approximately 24% or $44 per hour. As a point of reference, the
National Law Journal posted the results of an hourly billing survey in 2014 which showed the
average attorney hourly rate for partners was $604 and associates charged $307. In 2017 the
Laffey Matrix, used by many areas of the country to determine legal fees, reported that fees
based upon years of experience went from $343 (1-3 years of experience) to $826 (20+ years
of experience).
As noted, IRMA Panel Counsel agrees to set categorized rates which are lower than market
hourly rates in the legal community. In response, IRMA strives to assign cases equally between
the approved firms. The determination of the rate as basic or complex turns on the type of
case. Not all defense counsel are assigned the same amount of complex cases which results in
an inequity between the firms. This is remedied by having one set rate rather than complex or
basic rates.
Consequently, staff is proposing to increase hourly rates to $200 per hour for Category 1
attorneys, $167 per hour for Category 2 attorneys and $140 per hour for Category 3 attorneys
All rates are increased by approximately 8%.
Recommendation: Staff is seeking input from the Committee for the increase and modification
of panel counsel billing rates.
Coverage, Claims and Litigation Committee 5/3/18: The CCLC agreed with staff’s
recommendations and intentions.
SG/ds
G:\Committees\Coverage, Claims & Litigation Committee\2018\5-3-18\Panel Counsel Hourly Rate Increase.Doc
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INTERGOVERNMENTAL RISK
MANAGEMENT AGENCY
The Risk Management Solution for Local Government

MEMORANDUM
TO:

Membership Relations Committee

FROM: Dan LeTourneau, Director of Risk Management Services
DATE:

February 1, 2018

RE:

IRMA Member Standards and Guidelines – Policy Update

Action Requested: Approve staff’s recommendation to update the IRMA Member Standards and
Guidelines policy.
Background/Discussion:
The IRMA Member Standards and Guidelines was developed to provide the Membership
Relations Committee (MRC) with policy oversight in order effectively monitor and measure
members’ overall risk management performance. The guidelines assist the Committee and IRMA
staff by providing a detailed basis to evaluate acceptable member risk management performance
based on the IRMA Management Assessment Program and a members’ five-year claims
experience to loss fund contribution. During review of the IRMA Member Standards and
Guidelines policy it was noted that Section IV. – Annual Committee Report needed to be updated
to reflect the current name of the report provided to the Membership Relations Committee, Annual
Claims to Contribution Report. The Annual Claims to Contribution Report is developed each year
for the Committee to review claims performance of each member based on their total incurred
claims experience as compared to their annual contribution to IRMA. This annual report is utilized
in the evaluation process to determine if a member has an adverse claim experience pattern or
trend, typically in the workers’ compensation area, and should be recommended for participation
in a focused loss reduction program. Prior to development of IRMA Workers’ Compensation
Focus Program, this focused loss reduction program was named the IRMA Watchlist Program.
The policy is being revised to reflect the current Workers’ Compensation Focus Program which
provides additional needs analysis, resources and assistance to both identify and mitigate
adverse workers’ compensation loss patterns. The Annual Claims to Contribution Report is also
used as part of the analysis to determine if a current Workers’ Compensation Focus Program
participant is meeting the criteria to be removed from the program. The 2018 Claims to
Contribution Report using 2017 loss data as of 2/28/18 is included in this MRC packet for review
and consideration. The last revision changes the report publication time from the previous
September time frame the current June publish date.
Recommendation:
Approve the staff recommendation to update the IRMA Member Standards and Guidelines policy
to reflect the updated annual report name, the newer IRMA Workers’ Compensation Focus
Program which replaced the previous Watchlist Program and the new June publish date.
Membership Relations Committee 5/16/18: The MRC approved the recommended updates to
the IRMA Member Standards and Guidelines policy.
DLT/ll
Attachment
G:\Committees\Membership Relations Committee\2018\5-16-18\Member Standards And Guidelines Policy Memo.Docx
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IRMA MEMBER STANDARDS AND GUIDELINES
The Standards and Guidelines are being established by the Board of Directors to provide the
Membership Relations Committee and IRMA staff with the needed policy direction to monitor and
measure IRMA members’ risk management performance compliance. This should reasonably
assure the IRMA membership that each member is continuing to maintain the evolving and
improved standards required by new and existing members.
The Membership Relations Committee Statement of Committee Responsibility has been broadened
to include the monitoring of member standards.
I.

SOURCE DOCUMENTATION



II.

INDICATORS



III.

Identify members that do not remain within their assigned IRMA claim targets in both
frequency and severity, with greater importance given to the severity (experience)
target.
Identify members that repeatedly are not paying their apportioned share of loss fund
contribution.

OTHER FACTORS







IV.

Review the most recent IRMA Management Assessment Program (IMAP) Report
scores along with the current five (5) year claim comparison report, concentrating on
the IRMA claim target indicators to focus on problem areas.
Compare the most recent five (5) year report on member's claim experience
(paid/reserved) to the member's loss fund contribution.

Analyze whether the problem is an isolated poor year or whether a pattern is
developing or continuing over the past three (3) to five (5) years of membership.
Analyze whether the problem is a series of claims from one occurrence, i.e.
flood/wind storm/explosion, etc.; series of claims seemingly coming from the same
source or cause or category of coverage; a few large isolated unexpected accidents
that may be difficult to control; or, a result of a change in the political and/or
management climate, etc.
Does the experience modifier correct the annual contribution inequities? The
member repeatedly is not paying their apportioned share of loss fund contribution as
reported in the Members' Claim Experience and Loss Fund Contribution Report.
IRMA staff analyzes both routine and special claims analysis of members
accident/loss prevention recommendations that attempt to isolate the reasons and
suggested solutions.
Analyze whether members have implemented recommendations made by the IRMA
staff.

ANNUAL COMMITTEE REPORT – Claims to Contribution


The committee will review staff analysis and recommendations and, when
necessary, convene a meeting with the member involved to review the finding and
recommendation and establish deadlines for implementation of the committee's
1
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recommendation for assisting in resolving the member's poor risk management
performance.

The staff will prepare an annual Claims to Contribution Report as part of the State of the IRMA
Membership in May for committee review, which reports on the factors referred above, the current
state of member standards, and compliance. In addition to other pertinent information in the report,
it will include the names of those IRMA members where corrective action was recommended and
identify and appropriately recognize those IRMA members who have consistently adhered to the
high standards in all of the designated categories of intergovernmental risk management pooling.
The report will include recommendations for the “IRMA Watch List Workers’ Compensation Focus
Program” in accordance with the IRMA Member “Watch List” “Workers’ Compensation Focus
Program Guidelines”. Section 2.07. For the full text of the report, see the State of the IRMA
Membership – Annual Risk Management Report published in September June of each year.
Adopted 1/2/2002
Revised 12/2003
Revised 7/2005
Revised 5/2018

2
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INTERGOVERNMENTAL RISK
MANAGEMENT AGENCY
The Risk Management Solution for Local Government

MEMORANDUM
TO:

Membership Relations Committee

FROM: Dan LeTourneau, Director of Risk Management Services
DATE:

May 8, 2018

RE:

IRMA Member Statement of Guidelines for Membership Selection, Withdrawal &
Expulsion – Policy Update

Action Requested: Approve staff’s recommendation to update the IRMA Member Statement of
Guidelines for Membership Selection, Withdrawal & Expulsion
Background/Discussion:
The IRMA Member Statement of Guidelines for Membership Selection, Withdrawal & Expulsion
provides staff and the MRC with specific guidelines to use for selection of new members,
withdrawal & reapplication procedures, and outline withdrawal procedures applicable for
members in expulsion proceedings. During review of the IRMA Member Statement of
Guidelines for Membership Selection, Withdrawal & Expulsion, it was noted that a reference to
the IRMA Bylaw section for Expulsion of Members was not included, and the prospective
member loss history needed for both evaluation of a prospective member and application of the
experience modifier needed to be update. IRMA previously utilized three years of loss
experience to develop a member’s experience modifier. Currently, we require five years of total
loss experience and the five-year average revenue base. We have revised the document to
outline that five years of loss experience is required to develop the experience modifier.
Accordingly, any prospective member that can meet this requirement will be provided with an
experience modifier upon inception into IRMA.
Recommendation:
Approve the staff recommendation to update the IRMA Member Statement of Guidelines for
Membership Selection, Withdrawal & Expulsion to reflect the referral to the IRMA Bylaws,
Section 4.03 – Expulsion of Members requirements, and reflect the requirement of five years of
loss experience to provide the experience modifier.
Membership Relations Committee 5/16/18: The MRC approved staff’s recommended
revisions to update the IRMA Member Statement of Guidelines for Membership Selection,
Withdrawal & Expulsion.

DLT/ll
Attachment
G:\Committees\Membership Relations Committee\2018\5-16-18\Member Standards And Guidelines Policy Memo.Docx
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IRMA STATEMENT OF GUIDELINES
FOR MEMBERSHIP SELECTION, WITHDRAWAL & EXPULSION
These guidelines have been established and delineated in order to continue to maintain the best
possible standards of risk management pooling for all current and future members of IRMA and to
provide a fair and reasonable basis upon which to assist in the membership selection process. It is
this process and these guidelines that should reasonably assure all members of the best possible
protection against unexpected, unusual or unforeseen accidental losses and strive to maintain a
common risk profile for all pool members.
IRMA TARGET MEMBER GUIDELINES
These guidelines will be utilized by IRMA staff to assist in focusing the Pool’s marketing efforts
towards public entities meeting a majority of the criteria identified below. IRMA will use its
normal evaluation criteria for prospective members completing an IRMA application.









Professionally Managed
Located in six collar counties surrounding Chicago
Population between 2,500 and 75,000
Looking for long-term stability and enhancement of their loss prevention program
versus lowest available price
Willingness to dedicate the partial resources of a full-time employee to participate in
pooling
Favorable loss history as compared to IRMA targets
Financially stable with current financial audit
Have in place or willingness to implement: Personnel handbook; ERTW policy;
Safety manual; and Sidewalk Inspection/Repair program

The information analysis and the interview and on-site inspection will focus on the following general
categories:







I.

Management/personnel/operational activities
Insurance/claim history -- property/casualty/workers' compensation and other
Sources of revenue -- taxes, fees, etc.
Property owned -- real/personal
Property leased -- lessor/lessee
Contractual liability process -- construction, maintenance, leases, and other
contractual relations
Non-contractual tort liability exposure

PRE-INTERVIEW/ON-SITE INSPECTION DATA
A.

Membership Application Questionnaire -- In addition to providing basic
insurance underwriting information, the questionnaire is designed to provide
necessary information to develop an inventory of exposure to loss and focus on both
traditional insurable risks and self-insured exposures. It is expected to provide the
pool with information to formulate a risk profile of risks common to the IRMA pool
and any exposures traditionally not covered by the pool. It is also the desire of the
IRMA management that the questionnaire will produce the risk management
1
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information in an orderly and objective manner.
B.

Current Annual Comprehensive Finance Report -- to evaluate the financial
stability of the applicant community and/or the municipality's bond rating.
Prospective Member Contribution Size -- An evaluation of the applicant's
contribution size shall be done to ensure that there will be no disadvantage in
offering membership to municipalities and special districts whose contribution will
not cover administration and loss expenses charged against the pool. The minimum
contribution size shall be not less than $50,000 per year, exclusive of the experience
modifier.

D.

II.

Risk Management Attitude -- A management interview will help determine
management's opinion of the current conditions of the prospective member's
safety/risk management program and how strong a commitment the prospective
member has toward improved loss control with membership in the IRMA program.
The interview will be conducted by the IRMA Executive Director or Director of Risk
Management Services and included in the loss control evaluation report prepared
on behalf of the applicant.

INTERVIEW/ON-SITE EVALUATION PHASE
This phase of the membership selection process will only occur if the applicant's loss
experience record and other data compare favorably to the IRMA membership averages
and estimated assigned targets for the last three (3) to five (5) years' loss history. This part
of the membership evaluation report will be conducted on-site by the IRMA Executive
Director or Director of Risk Management Services experienced in conducting the Agency's
annual on-site evaluation. The applicant should set aside several hours of a designated day
to meet the demands of this portion of the evaluation report.
The interview and on-site evaluation will address all of the following areas:


Management Commitment and Direction:
- Safety Policy and Management Organization and Personnel Procedure



Department Head and Supervisory Participation:
- Authority/Responsibility/Accountability



Safety Committee/Accident Review Board Development



Overall Safety/Loss Prevention Method and Techniques



Occupational (work related) Illness and Injury Loss Control



Documentation/Recordkeeping of Safety/Loss Prevention/Control Program



Fleet Safety Management



Liability Exposure Programs
2
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Geography/Population Size/Size of Management Staff

For further details see IRMA form entitles "Safety Performance Evaluation Rating".
III.

WITHDRAWAL & REAPPLICATION
The applicant must understand and fully comply with the IRMA withdrawal and reapplication
policy as stated.
A.

Withdrawal
In accordance with Section 4.05 (B) of the IRMA Contract and Bylaws, once a
member has completed payment of its New Member’s Reserve, it may withdraw
upon giving at least 120 days written notice. Upon receiving written notification in
the IRMA office of a member's intention to withdraw, said member shall be
considered a "withdrawn member" from that day forward.

B.

Early Withdrawal
Under certain circumstances, it may be in the best interest of the Pool to waive the
120 day notice of withdrawal requirements. The following criteria will be utilized to
determine if an early withdrawal will be granted:
1.
2.
3.
4.

Member’s claims to contribution ratio exceeds 100% over the past five (5)
years; or
Expulsion proceedings are being considered; or
The Pool may appear to benefit financially, if the member is allowed to
withdraw without the one year’s notice; or
Other identifiable criteria where an early withdrawal would be beneficial to
the Pool can be submitted to the Board of Directors with a Membership
Relations Committee and Executive Board recommendation.

All early withdrawal requests are subject to Board of Director approval per By-law
provisions. The decision of the IRMA Board of Directors will be final. If the Board of
Directors votes to approve the waiver of the 120 day notice requirement and the
request for early withdrawal, the Board of Directors, at its sole discretion, shall
establish the effective date of the withdrawal of the MEMBER.
C.

Withdrawal from IRMA on a date other than the end of any IRMA fiscal year
If, as a result of approved early withdrawal or expulsion, a Member’s participation in
IRMA is cancelled on any date other than the end of the IRMA fiscal year, the
Member will receive a reimbursement of the pro-rata share of the Member’s
contribution to the Loss Fund and the Member’s contribution for Commercial
Insurance Services, based upon the number of days remaining in the fiscal year
following the Member’s departure.
The member’s contribution to administration of the pool for the year of withdrawal
shall not be reimbursed.
3
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D.

Reinstating Withdrawn Member
With a membership goal to retain and recruit good members, the Board of
Directors recognizes that under special circumstances there may be a need to
permit a member to rescind their notice of withdrawal and reinstate its
membership in IRMA.
To assist the Membership Relations Committee in
determining special circumstances, the following criteria should be considered
during the deliberations.
1.

The notice of withdrawal is rescinded within sixty (60) days from the
receipt of the withdrawal notice by way of a certified copy of a resolution
from the member's governing board.

2.

The member's decision to withdraw was made without the full knowledge
of the facts and ramifications of their coverage and risk management
options.

3.

The member has been in good standing in IRMA and is able to meet a
new member selection criteria and/or other criteria as outlined in the
Annual Risk Management Report.

4.

The Chief Administrative Officer and Senior Management have
demonstrated strong support of the IRMA program, which includes but is
not limited to participation in IRMA sponsored programs and educating
and advocating the IRMA organization.

5.

The Membership Relations Committee and Executive Board may
consider additional criteria relevant to the decision to reinstate a
withdrawn member.

The Membership Relations Committee will review the requests and forward their
recommendation to the Executive Board for further consideration. Upon approval
by the Executive Board, the report of the Membership Relations Committee will
be placed on the next regular or special meeting of the Board of Directors. The
reinstatement shall require the affirmative vote of a majority or more of the entire
membership of the Board of Directors.
E.

Reapplication
A withdrawn member shall be unable to reapply for a period of three years from the
date the written notification of withdrawal was received in the IRMA office.
Furthermore, said withdrawn member must reapply through the normal application
process, having to once again meet all requirements and standards for a new
member.

IV.

RATINGS ANALYSIS AND DECISION
The Executive Director's office will direct and supervise the gathering of all necessary data
and documentation from each of the applicants and will develop and analyze the
4
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information in the appropriate formats for review and recommendation to the Membership
Relations Committee. The Committee's review and analysis will compare the applicant's
loss history over the past three to five years against the IRMA average for the same period.
The same measure will also be performed in evaluating the applicant during the
Interview/On-site Evaluation Rating phase of the selection process.
As part of the Membership Relations Committee's final evaluation, they will make a
recommendation whether the applicant can provide IRMA with the necessary information to
provideshould be granted an experience modifier upon inception, based wholly or in part on
the following criteria:
A.

The Applicant is currently self-insured or participating in an intergovernmental risk
management pool.

B.

The Applicant has available accurate, computerized loss history for the fivethree
years required to calculate the experience modifier most recent three to five year
period which includes total incurred experience for each individual claim.

C.

The individualized loss experience will continue to be made available to IRMA. for at
least two full years after acceptance into IRMA.

D.

Other objective criteria established upon review of an application.

The Committee's recommendations are to be forwarded to the Board of Directors for final
decision at the next Board meeting.
The applicant will be advised by the IRMA Executive Director in writing of the decision of the
Board following the meeting. The written decision will include the details of the membership
decision including any special conditions that may have been included in the Board's
resolution of approval.
Adopted 5/27/87
Revised/Approved 5/95
Revised/Approved 2/00
Revised 12/18/02
Revised 3/26/08
Revised 3/31/10
Revised 7/1/2011
Revised 10/30/13
Revised 5/18
G:\IRMA Organization\WEBSITE\WORD DOCUMENTS\BYLAWS AND POLICIES\Membership\Statement of Guidelines For Membership Selection-Withdrawal & Expulsion.doc
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INTERGOVERNMENTAL RISK
MANAGEMENT AGENCY
The Risk Management Solution for Local Government

MEMORANDUM

TO:

Membership Relations Committee

FROM:

Dan LeTourneau, Director of Risk Management Services

DATE:

May 8, 2018

RE:

2017 Claims to Contribution Report

Action Requested: Review and approve the 2017 IRMA Claims to Contribution Report.
Background/Discussion: Each year IRMA staff prepares the Claims to Contribution Report
which provides an overview of each members claims performance over the previous five years.
The report compares a member’s actual total incurred claims experience with their loss fund
contributions for each individual year along with a five-year summary claims to contribution ratio.
The report includes a section on the IRMA Advisory Letter Program, which identifies members
recommended to receive an Advisory Letter based on their specific claims performance and the
program criteria. The report also outlines the criteria for the new Workers’ Compensation Focus
Program and the participating members. This year’s report recommends that the Village of
Morton Grove be added to the Workers’ Compensation Focus Program in addition to the current
three members remaining in the program for 2018.
Recommendation: Approve the 2017 IRMA Claims to Contribution Report, which recommends
that the Village of Morton Grove be added to the IRMA Workers’ Compensation Focus Program.
Membership Relations Committee 5/16/18: The Membership Relations Committee approved
the 2017 IRMA Claims to Contribution Report including the recommendation to add the Village
of Morton Grove to the Workers’ Compensation Focus Program and send the three Advisory
letters noted in the Report.

DLT/ll
Attachment
G:\Committees\Membership Relations Committee\2017\5-10-17\Claims To Contribution Report-Memo.Docx
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2017 CLAIMS TO CONTRIBUTION REPORT/
WORKERS’ COMPENSATION FOCUS PROGRAM
INTRODUCTION

IRMA staff has prepared a report on the Claims to Contributions/Workers’ Compensation Focus
Program Recommendations for the most recent five-year period (2013-2017).
The evaluations and recommendations in this report are supported by the following IRMA reports:
Five-Year Ratio of Member Claim Experience to Loss Fund Contribution and the IRMA
Member Claims Comparisons. (The Member Claims Comparisons can be viewed in the
electronic version of the State of The Membership Report in the Member Section of the IRMA
website – www.irmarisk.org under Publications.)
The Ratio of Claims to Loss Fund Contribution Report compares claim payments made from the
IRMA loss fund (not including member deductibles and excess or reinsurance payments) with the
members’ annual loss fund contributions. Ratios below 100% indicate claim experience is less
than the IRMA member loss fund contribution, while ratios greater than 100% indicate that claim
payments made from the loss fund exceed the member contribution made to the IRMA loss fund
for that year.
The IRMA Member Claims Comparisons compare the IRMA target for each individual member in
both claim frequency and severity with each member’s actual claim history. A member’s target is
developed by determining the IRMA five average for both frequency and severity based on the
individual member’s revenue base size.
As of March 1, 2018, IRMA had 71 members in the pool. The pool welcomed in the Village of
Arlington Heights on June 1, 2017 and the Village of Mount Prospect on January 1, 2018 as its
newest members.
The following is a breakdown of the membership results as of March 1, 2018.

Five-year Ratio of Claims to Loss Fund Contribution Report

Member
NIPSTA
Indian Head Park
Berkeley
Park Forest
East Hazel Crest
Clarendon Hills
Homewood
Morton Grove
Olympia Fields
Roselle
West Dundee
Sugar Grove
West Chicago FPD

2013

2014

RATIO
0.00%
190.39%
11.42%
235.96%
16.67%
0.00%
129.99%
6.49%
381.63%
300.06%
0.00%
3.43%
375.14%

RATIO
0.00%
246.67%
1255.82%
153.06%
641.07%
292.59%
24.76%
97.52%
81.30%
46.67%
398.73%
335.22%
37.39%

2015
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RATIO
0.00%
217.78%
19.56%
31.57%
0.00%
455.46%
432.40%
235.66%
7.25%
101.00%
0.00%
311.82%
78.40%

2016

RATIO
3027.34%
956.03%
0.00%
382.35%
231.72%
30.61%
53.72%
257.82%
140.79%
132.01%
137.07%
3.77%
71.16%

2017

RATIO
0.00%
0.99%
12.89%
7.05%
11.28%
0.00%
24.33%
87.56%
6.86%
11.42%
17.04%
3.51%
8.75%

5 YEAR
RATIO
614.39%
307.83%
205.52%
175.63%
169.50%
138.80%
132.82%
130.75%
118.20%
116.24%
111.28%
110.89%
110.36%

2013

Tinley Park
River Forest
Hillside
Crete
Western Springs
Flossmoor
Crystal Lake
Hanover Park
Barrington
Lake Zurich
Rolling Meadows
LaGrange
Libertyville
Carol Stream FPD
Villa Park
Lincolnwood
Richton Park
Bartlett
Willowbrook
Addison
Kenilworth
Bartlett FPD
Northbrook
Lake in the Hills
Westchester
Glencoe
Wilmette
Oak Brook
Lake Forest
Stickney
Darien
Brookfield
Woodridge
Hinsdale
Carol Stream
Westmont
Lake Bluff
Winfield FPD
Riverside
Hazel Crest
Palos Heights
Lemont
Bloomingdale
Cary
West Chicago
LaGrange Park
Burr Ridge
Mundelein

80.54%
198.85%
344.09%
252.30%
212.18%
156.03%
47.97%
64.38%
76.23%
111.18%
21.51%
20.43%
54.08%
106.12%
2.59%
140.65%
73.27%
64.39%
0.54%
28.65%
72.72%
162.50%
25.42%
38.06%
129.62%
80.80%
60.39%
51.58%
52.73%
118.01%
128.90%
71.46%
32.58%
20.16%
46.45%
27.45%
9.50%
14.48%
45.81%
33.23%
0.00%
30.54%
71.53%
33.22%
5.85%
27.96%
2.98%
2.91%

2014

2015

87.09%
155.52%
5.40%
64.70%
31.04%
144.28%
89.42%
99.67%
41.49%
167.61%
52.00%
44.60%
14.10%
19.92%
100.07%
56.61%
55.92%
157.78%
8.75%
93.44%
9.94%
44.43%
102.86%
42.42%
113.55%
76.02%
84.91%
2.64%
4.32%
3.54%
21.12%
38.72%
60.99%
34.77%
89.59%
135.36%
20.91%
0.00%
0.00%
32.00%
0.00%
19.83%
32.70%
14.75%
77.85%
2.20%
3.23%
61.44%
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146.27%
90.59%
40.65%
33.58%
132.20%
89.04%
48.54%
50.98%
51.85%
6.05%
100.88%
147.79%
95.93%
54.35%
57.19%
50.15%
25.22%
11.90%
163.72%
105.08%
5.33%
17.30%
29.29%
109.98%
7.51%
0.00%
47.62%
123.41%
39.53%
12.27%
44.26%
112.56%
98.29%
119.93%
3.58%
35.16%
0.42%
117.04%
61.19%
22.64%
109.27%
97.26%
37.94%
0.00%
24.91%
68.96%
69.14%
21.88%

2016

219.53%
11.18%
2.78%
8.91%
16.74%
38.25%
12.00%
34.38%
139.73%
36.86%
69.68%
88.12%
46.48%
86.79%
53.30%
33.17%
22.44%
33.42%
33.15%
32.64%
176.38%
9.19%
54.10%
70.24%
4.99%
0.00%
49.96%
68.42%
135.23%
49.60%
31.72%
3.93%
10.27%
0.00%
21.44%
12.13%
124.70%
74.83%
82.32%
62.84%
82.02%
4.97%
7.43%
80.77%
40.05%
23.68%
40.18%
5.61%

2017

0.00%
0.00%
45.24%
83.22%
64.97%
4.50%
192.23%
134.96%
37.92%
16.83%
77.72%
31.93%
98.82%
45.39%
119.59%
1.52%
118.20%
17.72%
91.37%
30.68%
0.00%
30.51%
58.18%
4.80%
10.54%
88.91%
11.68%
1.81%
13.27%
64.32%
1.91%
11.89%
25.38%
56.99%
64.78%
6.71%
72.31%
1.71%
0.00%
29.49%
0.00%
18.96%
14.65%
35.01%
12.58%
16.77%
0.29%
0.00%

5 YEAR
107.78%
94.07%
92.81%
92.73%
91.63%
83.19%
77.95%
77.92%
68.00%
67.81%
62.95%
63.32%
61.24%
60.61%
59.64%
59.21%
59.02%
58.42%
57.17%
56.35%
55.63%
55.36%
52.96%
52.45%
52.07%
50.25%
50.19%
49.65%
48.99%
48.07%
46.87%
47.10%
46.63%
45.70%
44.90%
42.04%
40.87%
40.46%
38.32%
35.93%
34.72%
34.77%
34.51%
32.47%
31.38%
28.16%
23.45%
19.09%

Northfield
Winfield
Lisle
Countryside
Cary Library
NEMRT
Palos Park
Total IRMA

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

10.62%
0.00%
6.56%
5.95%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
74.62%

19.02%
1.35%
0.00%
2.79%
33.68%
31.60%
0.00%
76.67%

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
5.71%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
73.03%

42.81%
54.65%
1.57%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
68.73%

0.00%
3.77%
60.04%
32.42%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
40.65%

5 YEAR
14.71%
11.79%
11.04%
8.27%
6.54%
6.27%
0.00%
66.95%

Total experience (paid amounts plus reserves less deductibles and specific recoveries) were used
for calculations.
Five-year Ratio of Claims
To Loss Fund Contribution
2008
76.29%
2009
74.72%
2010
70.23%
2011
70.61%
2012
61.33%
2013
59.19%
2014
59.46%
2015
62.90%
2016
61.47%
2017
66.95%

THE WORKERS’ COMPENSATION FOCUS PROGRAM
The IRMA Workers’ Compensation Focus Program was developed to address the number one
driver of the Pool’s adverse loss experience resulting in over 70% of all pool loss experience.
Beginning in the second quarter of 2016, the Membership Relations Committee (MRC) began to
oversee this new workers’ compensation loss reduction program. Detailed analysis of members’
workers’ compensation loss frequency and severity, including five-year comparisons of workers’
compensation claims to member targets and loss fund contributions will be utilized to identify
members which may benefit from the program. Members meeting the Workers’ Compensation
Focus Program criteria will receive additional assistance and resources needed to address their
adverse workers’ compensation pattern or trend. Members included in the Workers’
Compensation Focus Program are required to prepare quarterly progress reports for review by
the Membership Relations Committee. IRMA staff meet with these members on a quarterly basis
to review their progress and develop additional resources to assist the participating members in
reducing their overall workers’ compensation losses.
Workers’ Compensation Focus Program Criteria
The following objective criteria, adopted by the Board of Directors, are used by IRMA staff and
the Membership Relations Committee for recommending assignment of members to the Workers’
Compensation Focus Program:
1.

The FIRST indicator will be the member’s five-year ratio of total incurred
claims experience to loss fund contribution exceeds 100%.
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2.
3.

4.
5.

The SECOND indicator will be the member’s five-year average total incurred
workers’ compensation claims experience to member target exceeds 150%.
The THIRD indicator will be at least three out of the last five loss years with a
Workers’ Compensation Claims Experience to Member Target ratio exceeds
150%.
The FOURTH indicator will be the member’s five-year average workers’
compensation claims frequency to target exceeds 125%.
Claims for members meeting the indicators under 1 through 4 above shall be
examined and further analyzed. If there are a few isolated large individual
losses that when removed from the statistics the five-year average claims to
member target ratio would drop below 150%, then the member may not be
recommended for the Workers’ Compensation Focus Program. These few
large isolated claims may not be representative of an adverse workers’
compensation pattern or trend.

Criteria for Removal from the Workers’ Compensation Focus Program
The Membership Relations Committee shall use the following criteria for removal from the
Workers’ Compensation Focus Program.





Combined five-year overall claims experience to loss fund contribution ratio
below 100%.
Five-year total workers’ compensation total incurred claims experience to
target of below 100%.
Two of the last three individual years with workers’ compensation claim
experience below IRMA targets.
Documented Improvements made to a member’s risk management program
policies and procedures.

The normal term of participation in the Workers’ Compensation Focus Program will be for a period
of not less than two (2) years and not more than five (5) years. Any member not meeting the
criteria for removal from the Program within five (5) years will be reviewed by the Membership
Relations Committee for possible additional actions, including but not limited to a requirement to
select a higher IRMA deductible.
CURRENT WORKERS’ COMPENSATION FOCUS PROGRAM
The following members are currently assigned to the Workers’ Compensation Focus Program
as of April 1, 2018:
- Village of Brookfield
- Village of Carol Stream
- Village of Roselle
Each of the current Workers’ Compensation Focus Program members has continued to make
progress towards reducing their adverse workers’ compensation trend during their second year
in the program. Two of the above three program members now have a five-year claims to
contribution ratio of less than 100%.
Additional workers’ compensation analysis for the current WC Focus Program members
is provided below to determine recommended removals and additions from the Workers’
Compensation Focus Program:
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Village of Roselle (116.24%)
The Village of Roselle has a five-year ratio and three of five years with a claims to contribution
ratio over 100%. The Village has been participating in the IRMA Workers’ Compensation Focus
Group since April 1st, 2016 due to an adverse workers’ compensation pattern. The Village
currently has four of five years with workers’ compensation experience exceeding the IRMA
target. Only 2017 is currently below their workers’ compensation experience target and this is
using very immature claims data without anticipated cost development. All the Village’s seven
claims over $75K in the past five years are workers’ compensation claims. The Village’s fire
department has incurred most of the adverse workers’ compensation experience over the past
five years with an average of $460K versus their target of $65K or 707% of target. All other
departments have a five-year average severity well below the IRMA targets. The Village’s
average workers’ compensation frequency is tracking just over IRMA targets at 13 versus their
target of 12. It is recommended that the Village of Roselle continue its participation in the IRMA
Workers’ Compensation Focus Program for 2018.
Village of Brookfield (47.10%)
The Village of Brookfield has a five-year claims to contribution ratio of 47.10% with one individual
year (2015) over 100%. The Village has three of the last five years with workers’ compensation
claims experience below the IRMA target, including the two most recent years. The Village
incurred only $32,395 in workers’ compensation claims experience in 2017. The Village’s fiveyear average workers’ compensation claims experience is just under the IRMA target at 99.43%
of target but will likely exceed the IRMA target as the 2017 claim year develops. The Village’s
five-year average annual claims frequency of 15 is still above the IRMA target of 10 at 150% of
target. The Village department heads have made significant progress with implementing risk
management into their operating departments, especially in public safety. The Village has hired
a new public works director and are beginning to implement additional safety and risk
management measures. We are encouraged by the Village’s progress in their operating
departments over the past two years. It is recommended that the Village of Brookfield continue
its progress in the IRMA Workers’ Compensation Focus Program during 2018 to ensure their risk
management progress is adequately embedded in their operational procedures to ensure long
term success.
Village of Carol Stream (44.90%)
The Village of Carol Stream has a five-year claims to contribution ratio of 44.90% and no individual
years over 100%. The Village has two of the last five years with workers’ compensation claims
experience below their IRMA target. The Village experienced three additional large workers’
compensation claims during 2017 from the Police department. One officer was struck while
directing traffic, while another officer was injured when the police vehicle was rear-ended. The
last resulted from an officer training injury at the Police academy. The Village’s workers’
compensation frequency is averaging 19 claims versus their target of 15. The Village has
continued their efforts to enhance and formalize their safety and risk management program.
Overall, the Village of Carol Stream is not yet meeting all the requirements to be removed from
the Worker’s Compensation Focus Program. It is recommended that the Village of Carol Stream
remain in the IRMA Workers’ Compensation Focus Program for 2018.
Village of Morton Grove (130.75%) – Recommended Addition
The Village of Morton Grove has a five-year ratio and two individual years with a claims to
contribution ratio over 100%. There are two additional years (2014 & 2017) which will likely
exceed 100% claims to contribution during 2018. The Village’s most favorable claim year, 2013,
will drop off the five-year analysis at the end of 2018. Of the Village’s fourteen claims over
$75,000, thirteen are workers’ compensation claims. The Village incurred three additional large
workers’ compensation claims in 2017, which will likely incur additional loss development as these
are newer claims. The Village’s claims experience is over IRMA targets in four of the five years
analyzed, with 2013 being the only year under IRMA experience targets. The clear majority of
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their adverse claims experience arises from workers’ compensation losses, which average 200%
of target in the past five years. While the Village’s overall five-year average claim frequency is
over IRMA target, their workers’ compensation average frequency is below the IRMA target, it
has trended upward in the last two years with 2017 frequency of 21 versus their IRMA target of
20. The Public Works and Fire Departments are both trending over IRMA frequency targets. It
is recommended that the Village of Morton Grove be added to the IRMA Workers’ Compensation
Focus Program to assist the Village is reducing its overall adverse Workers’ Compensation claims
experience, reduce employee injuries and lower their overall cost of risk.

IRMA ADVISORY LETTER PROGRAM
Members having a five-year claims to loss fund contribution ratio exceeding 100% may receive a
Membership Relations Committee (MRC) Advisory Letter. These letters are utilized when no
clear, adverse claim trend has developed and most of the adverse experience is due to large
isolated losses, and/or the member is not meeting the IRMA Workers’ Compensation Focus
Program criteria. This letter is sent to the member from the Membership Relations Committee
Chair to advise the member of their adverse losses. The letter provides further explanation of the
information used in the evaluation process and includes a copy of the five-year ratio of claims to
loss fund contribution report, in addition to their IRMA member claims comparison. Further
assistance is provided to these members when necessary.
Members who have already received an advisory letter following one or two large, isolated losses
will not receive another advisory letter, if there have been no subsequent years with unfavorable
claims to contribution ratios and their five-year ratio has improved. Members will also not receive
an advisory letter if their five-year ratio is over 100% due to one large claim.

Below is the analysis of IRMA members with a five-year claims to contribution ratio
over 100% for the 2013-2017 claim years:
Northeastern Illinois Public Safety Training Academy - NIPSTA (614.39%)
NIPSTA has a five-year claims to contribution ratio of 614.39%, which results solely from a very
large general liability claim in 2016. Overall, NIPSTA has four of five years with a claim to
contribution ratio of zero. There is no adverse claims pattern or trend developing at NIPSTA. It
is not recommended that NIPSTA receive an IRMA Advisory letter.
Village of Indian Head Park (307.18%)
The Village of Indian Head Park has a five-year ratio and four of five individual years with a claims
to contribution ratio over 100%. The Village incurred two large public officials liability claims, and
two large workers’ compensation claims from 2103 through 2016. Their largest claim of over
$507,000 from 2016 resulted from a police officer being struck and dragged by an auto during a
traffic stop. Most of the Village’s claims frequency arises from small auto and general liability
claims. The Village averages 3 workers’ compensation claims over the past five years, mostly
medical only, versus their target of 2 claims. There does not appear to be an adverse claim pattern
or trend. It is recommended that the Village of Indian Head Park receive an IRMA Advisory Letter
due to the substantial increase in their total incurred claims experience.
Village of Berkeley (205.52%)
The Village of Berkeley continues to have a five-year claims to contribution ratio over 200% due
to their three large workers’ compensation claims and one larger general liability slip and fall claim,
all from 2014. This includes a very large patient lifting claim in which the employee will not be able
to return to work as a paramedic. All other claim years have a claims to contribution ratio below
20%. The other two large workers’ compensation claims arose out of public works tree trimming
operations. The Village’s 2016 claims to contribution ratio was 0%. The Village’s annual claims
experience is well below their IRMA targets in four of the last five years. Their five-year average
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claims frequency is below their IRMA target. It is not recommended that Village of Berkeley
receive another IRMA Advisory Letter as there has been no additional adverse experience.
Village of Park Forest (175.63%)
The Village of Park Forest has a five-year ratio and three of five individual years with a claims to
contribution ratio over 100%. The vast majority of the Village’s total claims experience continues
to arise from four individual claims over the past five years; a large law enforcement activities
liability claim in 2013 resulting from the use of less lethal bean bag rounds, two large workers’
compensation lifting claims, one in public works and one paramedic lifting a 700-pound patient,
and a multi-million dollar claim resulting from a police officer shot in the line of duty. These claims
total more than $5 million of claims experience. The Village’s workers’ compensation claims
experience is under their IRMA target in three of the five years analyzed. The Village’s overall
claims frequency was reduced from 48 to 28 in 2017, with their workers’ compensation claim
frequency reduced from 25 to 13, versus their workers’ compensation annual target of 17. The
Village’s overall five-year claim frequency is tracking below IRMA targets at 39 versus their target
of 46 for an 85% annualized variance of target. Overall, these large isolated cases do not
represent any specific adverse claim pattern or trend for the Village of Park Forest. It is
recommended that the Village of Park Forest receive an IRMA Advisory Letter due to two
additional large workers’ compensation claims incurred in 2017.
Village of East Hazel Crest (169.50%)
The Village of East Hazel Crest has a five-year ratio and two individual years with a claims to
contribution ratio over 100%. All their adverse loss experience continues to be the result of five
isolated claims in 2014, from four different lines of coverage. One large intersection auto accident
in 2014 and one 2016 slip & fall claim resulted in most of their adverse loss experience. The
Village’s overall claims experience is below their IRMA claims experience target in three of the
last five years including 2017 with a loss experience of $18,555 versus their target of $40,563.
The Village has only one larger workers’ compensation claim in the past five years from 2014,
resulting from a dog bite injury. The 2014 claim year was their only year with a much higher claim
frequency and severity. Overall, there is no apparent adverse loss pattern or trend. It is not
recommended that the Village of East Hazel Crest receive another IRMA Advisory Letter as there
has been no additional adverse experience during 2017.
Village of Clarendon Hills (138.80%)
The Village of Clarendon Hills has a five-year ratio and two of five years with a claims to
contribution ratio over 100%. The Village’s adverse loss experience is caused solely from three
large workers’ compensation claims from 2014 - 2015. Two were slip, trip and fall claims, while
the third was caused by a driver hitting a police officer with his vehicle while resisting on a traffic
stop. The Village’s five-year average overall claims frequency is under the IRMA target at 9
versus their target of 13 or 69.23 of target. Both 2016 and 2017 claims experience are below the
IRMA target, there does not appear to be any adverse loss trend developing. It is not
recommended that the Village of Clarendon Hills receive another IRMA Advisory Letter.
Village of Homewood (132.82%)
The Village of Homewood has a five-year ratio and two of five years with a claims to contribution
ratio over 100%. The Village experienced four large claims in 2013, three liability claims and one
workers’ compensation claim, which will all drop off their five years claims analysis for 2019.
The Village experienced another five larger claims in 2015, four workers’ compensation and one
law enforcement activities claim from a third-party rear ending the police vehicle during a traffic
stop. This law enforcement activities claim of over $1.5 million increased their five-year claims to
contribution to over 100%. The Village’s workers’ compensation claims to loss fund contribution
ratio is under their IRMA target in three of the five years analyzed. The Village of Homewood is
not meeting all the criteria to be added to the Workers’ Compensation Focus Program at this time.
It is recommended that staff contact the Village of Homewood to assist them in their loss
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prevention efforts. It is also recommended that the Village of Homewood receive an IRMA
Advisory letter.
Village of Olympia Fields (118.20%)
The Village of Olympia Fields continues to have a five-year ratio and two individual years with a
claims to contribution ratio over 100%. Their five-year ratio was reduced again from 209.08% in
2015,127.96% in 2016 and 118.20% in 2017. Several large police slip and fall workers’
compensation claims have resulted in the vast majority of the Village’s adverse workers’
compensation claims experience. Most of this adverse experience is from 2013 and will drop out
of the five years analyzed next year. The Village’s overall and workers’ compensation five-year
average claim frequency is now below IRMA targets. They did not incur any workers’
compensation losses in 2017. There does not appear to be an adverse loss pattern or trend, but
merely a few large, isolated losses. It is not recommended that the Village of Olympia Fields
receive another IRMA Advisory Letter due to no additional workers’ compensation experience.
Village of West Dundee (111.28%)
The Village of West Dundee has a five-year ratio and two of five years with claims to contribution
ratio over 100%. All of the Village’s adverse claims experience arises from two large worker’s
compensation claims. Most of the experience resulted from a pelvis fracture claim of an employee
falling from the roof of a Village building without fall protection. The Village’s 2017 workers’
compensation experience is below their IRMA target. Their average workers’ compensation claim
frequency of 6 is below their IRMA target of 7 and was at 4 for both 2016 and 2017. It is not
recommended that the Village of West Dundee receive another IRMA Advisory Letter as there
has not been any additional adverse experience.
Village of Sugar Grove (110.89%)
The Village of Sugar Grove has a five-year ratio and two of five years with claims to loss fund
contribution of over 100%. Their five-year ratio was reduced by over 70% since 2015. The
Village’s adverse claims experience continues to arise almost entirely from three large claims,
two workers’ compensation and one law enforcement professional liability claim, from 2014 and
2015. Review of the three large claims does not indicate any adverse pattern or trend. The
Village’s overall severity for 2016 and 2017 is below $13k as compared to their target of $102,126
and workers’ compensation severity is below $3k for both years. The Village’s average claims
frequency is well below their IRMA target both overall and in the workers’ compensation. It is
not recommended that the Village of Sugar Grove receive another IRMA Advisory Letter as there
has been no additional adverse experience.
West Chicago FPD (110.36%)
The West Chicago FPD has a five-year ratio and just one of five individual years with a claims to
contribution ratio over 100%, which is in 2013. Their 2017 claims to contribution ratio is only
8.75%. The District has one disputed workers’ compensation claim for $525K and a total of over
$736K in workers’ compensation claims from 2013. Overall, most of their adverse claims
experience is resulting from a few large workers’ compensation losses. The District’s five-year
average claim frequency remains at 9 which is well below their IRMA target of 12. There does
not appear to be an adverse pattern or trend at this point. It is not recommended that West
Chicago Fire Protection District receive another IRMA Advisory Letter as there has not been any
additional adverse experience.
Village of Tinley Park (107.78%)
The Village of Tinley Park has a five-year ratio and two individual years with a claims to
contribution ratio over 100%. The Village’s very large 2016 public officials liability zoning lawsuit
of over $1.7 million resulted in the increase of Village’s five-year claims to contribution ratio to
over 100%. The Village has experienced three overall large public officials liability claims resulting
in over $2.6 million in total incurred losses. The Village has also experienced a large auto liability
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claim in addition to several larger workers’ compensation claims over the past five years. The
Village’s average five-year workers’ compensation claims experience is $405,572 which is well
below their IRMA target of $704,702 or just 57.55 % of target. The Village’s overall five-year
average claims experience of $1.1 million is just 13% over their IRMA target. Both their workers’
compensation and overall claims frequency are well below IRMA targets. There were no large
losses in 2017. There does not appear to be any adverse loss pattern or trending developing. It
is not recommended that the Village of Tinley Park receive an IRMA Advisory letter.
ADVISORY LETTER RECIPIENTS:
Based on the above findings, it is recommended that an advisory letter be sent to the following
three IRMA members: Village of Indian Head Park, Village of Park Forest, and the Village of
Homewood.
WORKERS’ COMPENSATION FOCUS PROGRAM RECOMMENDATIONS:
Based on the above risk management analysis it is recommended that the Village of Roselle,
Village of Brookfield and the Village of Carol Stream remain on the IRMA Workers’ Compensation
Focus Program for 2018. It is also recommended that the Village of Morton Grove participate in
the Workers’ Compensation Focus Program beginning in 2018.

OBSERVATIONS & CONCLUSIONS
When comparing this year’s report to last year’s, the following conclusions can be drawn:


Members’ overall five-year average claims experience to IRMA loss fund contribution results
increased from 61.47% for 2016 to 66.95% for 2017. A substantial percentage of this
resulted from two very large claims reserve increases from 2016 occurrences, one liability
claim and one workers’ compensation claim.



The 2017 undeveloped claims to contribution ratio of 40.65% compares favorably with the
2016 undeveloped claims to contribution ratio of 45.96%.



Members with five-year claims to contribution ratios greater than 100% increased from
eleven (11) in 2016 to (14) fourteen in 2017.



Three advisory letters will be sent to IRMA members for 2017 compared to six for 2016.



It is recommended that the three (3) members currently in the Workers’ Compensation Focus
Program will continue for 2018. Two of the three current Workers’ Compensation Focus
Program members now have a five-year claims to contribution under 100%.



It is recommended that the Village of Morton Grove be added to the IRMA Workers’
Compensation Focus Program to assist them in reducing their workers’ compensation claims
experience and their overall cost of risk, and most importantly reducing the number of work
related injuries.



Members continue to be committed to improving their risk management programs to prevent
loses and reduce their overall cost of risk.

We recommend all members review the entire IRMA State of the Membership Report in order to
utilize the valuable risk management data to assist in benchmarking their overall risk management
performance.
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The Membership Relations Committee is responsible for oversight of the Workers’ Compensation
Focus Program and the IRMA Advisory Letter Program. IRMA Staff will meet with members in
need of additional assistance to address any adverse claim patterns or trends that may be
developing, as appropriate.
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INTERGOVERNMENTAL RISK
MANAGEMENT AGENCY
The Risk Management Solution for Local Government

MEMORANDUM
TO:

Coverage, Claims, & Litigation Committee
Membership Relations Committee

FROM:

Margo Ely, Executive Director
Susan Garvey, Legal Director

DATE:

April 26, 2018

RE:

Claims Administration Services for Mount Prospect’s Previous GL Claims

Action Requested: Concur with staff’s recommendation that IRMA provide claims administration
services to Mount Prospect for 6 general liability claims filed before Mount Prospect joined IRMA
for a one-time payment of $7,726 as further described herein.
Background: IRMA is a full-service risk management agency, which means we provide all lines
of coverage to our members and administer all of their claims. Municipalities that are not
members of IRMA frequently procure insurance from various providers based on different lines of
coverage and they may also have a “TPA” (third party administrator) handle their claims. It is not
uncommon for their separate insurance coverages to expire at different times, which can cause
consternation when considering joining IRMA. Over the past year, the IRMA membership has
provided staff with flexibility to accommodate these staggered expirations, by providing credits to
municipalities for other insurance coverage in force that overlaps the new member’s date of IRMA
membership.
Claims administration is a strength of IRMA’s, based on our highly qualified and experienced staff.
IRMA also provides the benefit of having one location where all claims information is maintained,
simplifying insurance programs for municipalities. Mount Prospect has requested that IRMA
“administer” their general liability claims that pre-date their IRMA membership. Their current
“TPA” contract expires on June 30, 2018. Looking forward, Mount Prospect’s “TPA” contract for
their worker’s compensation claims expires on December 31, 2018 and we anticipate Mount
Prospect will, similarly, prefer to move those claims to IRMA.
Discussion: Staff recommends that the CCLC consider a formula, so that moving forward, we
can price these types of requests and process them for approval. Since IRMA is a full-service
organization that does not offer members the option to pick and choose the coverages and
services provided, these requests will always require approval by the Board of Directors.
In determining the appropriate cost for these administration services, the first question is the
number of claims. Since these claims will always be “older” claims, which are often more complex
or difficult, we recommend that a multiplier of 1.5 be added to the number of claims. As such,
Mount Prospect has 6 open GL claims, so after a multiplier of 1.5, they have the equivalent of 9
claims. The next part of the question is how to address the staff resources required to provide
this service. We aim for our adjusters to have a claim workload of 130 claims. As such, 9 claims
are approximately 6.9% of an adjuster’s workload. Our average adjuster costs $111,593 with
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salary and benefits. Therefore, the appropriate price for this service to Mount Prospect is 6.9%
of $111,593, or $7,726.
Recommendation: Concur with staff’s recommendation and authorize claims administration
services for Mount Prospect’s GL claims effective July 1, 2018 for a price of $7,726.
Coverage Claims and Litigation Committee 5/3/18: The CCLC concurred with staff’s
recommendation to authorize claims administration services for Mount Prospect’s GL claims
effective July 1, 2018 for a price of $7,726.
Membership Relations Committee 5/16/18: The MRC concurred with the staff and CCLC
recommendation to authorize claims administration services for Mount Prospect’s GL claims
effective July 1, 2018 for a price of $7,726.

ME/SG/ds
G:\Committees\Coverage, Claims & Litigation Committee\2018\5-3-18\TPA Services For Mount Prospect.Docx
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MEMORANDUM
TO:

Membership Relations Committee

FROM:

Susan Garvey, Director of Legal Services

DATE:

May 10, 2018

RE:

Elimination of IRMA’s Written Legislative Mission Statement

Action Requested: Concur with staff’s recommendation to eliminate IRMA’s Legislative Mission
Statement.
Background: One of staff’s goals for 2018 is the redesign of the IRMA website, which includes
a complete review of the website. One of the documents contained on the IRMA website is
IRMA’s Legislative Mission Statement (attached). IRMA’s Legislative Mission was created years
ago by the Governmental Affairs Committee. At that time, the Governmental Affairs Committee
was a standing committee devoted to legislative matters affecting IRMA and pooling specifically.
In its early inception, the Committee was charged with crafting legislation to promote investment
laws and regulations as they relate to intergovernmental risk pools. After investment legislation
was enacted, the Committee continued, charged with overseeing IRMA’s legislative program.
However, due to the low level of activity affecting IRMA in the legislature over the years, in 2004,
IRMA discontinued the Governmental Affairs Committee and shifted its responsibilities to the
Membership Relations Committee. To staff’s knowledge, the Committee has never reviewed the
Legislative Mission Statement and no other Committee or department of IRMA has a separate
mission statement apart from the general mission statement of IRMA. In addition, IRMA has not
utilized the services of a lobbyist for a few years. For these reasons, staff recommends that we
eliminate this mission statement.
Discussion: IRMA’s mission statement provides: "The mission of IRMA is to provide reliable
protection against human and financial losses through a self-directed and proactive partnership
which delivers high quality risk management services that are professionally managed for the
benefit of Members at a cost that is competitively priced."
IRMA’s mission does not include, nor should it, lobbying activities. Legislative monitoring and
lobbying activities are not a core purpose of IRMA. Legislative lobbying is in the purview of the
various municipal COGs, which were created for that purpose. The COGs have the staff,
resources and experience to accomplish that task, while IRMA does not.
Staff does and will continue to monitor and recommend support or opposition to legislation that
relates to workers’ compensation reform and legislation that specifically affects intergovernmental
pooling. However, requiring a written legislative mission for the organization expands IRMA’s
obligations to act as a legislative lobbying organization without the resources or experience to do
so; it is simply outside the core functions of IRMA. Staff recommends that the written Legislative
Mission Statement be eliminated and staff be directed to continue to monitor legislation directly
affecting the IRMA organization.
Recommendation: Eliminate IRMA’s written Legislative Mission Statement and direct staff to
continue to monitor legislation that directly affects workers’ compensation reform or
intergovernmental risk pooling.
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Membership Relations Committee 5/16/18: The MRC reviewed and approved staff’s
recommendation to eliminate the written Legislative Mission Statement and directed staff to
continue to monitor legislation which directly affects workers’ compensation reform or
intergovernmental risk pooling.
SG/ll
Attachment
G:\Committees\Executive Board\2018\5-30-18\Legislative Mission Memo.Docx
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LEGISLATIVE MISSION

The IRMA intergovernmental risk pool was established for the purpose of insuring its members
with reliable protection against human and financial losses and promoting quality risk
management that is self-directed and professionally managed. In furtherance of IRMA’s
mission, IRMA shall oppose legislation and regulation hat would unreasonably broaden public
entity liability and unfairly expose our customer – the public entities and their respective
taxpayers. IRMA shall promote and work for the adoption of laws and regulations on all levels of
government that encourage a balanced judicial/regulatory system among plaintiffs and
defendants.
To this end, IRMA and its member public entities are committed to use their resources and
considerable influence to affect the following issues and subject matter:
1. To improve the Illinois tort immunity laws for all public entities in Illinois, and restore the
original legislative goals and purposes.
2. To promote reasonable changes to the Illinois Workers’ Compensation laws designed to
provide fairness and equity for both the injured worker and public entity employer.
3. To support and advocate the establishment of tort caps for non-economic damage
judgments.
4. To promote health/safety laws that are fair and reasonable and actively oppose
regulations whose costs far outweigh any rational benefits derived, and result in undue
financial burden to local public entities and ultimately – the taxpayer.
5. To promote investment laws and regulation for public risk pooling cooperatives that will
adhere to “prudent person” standards. The standard of prudence shall be applied in the
context of judging and managing the overall portfolio results, rather than each type of
individual security, in order to provide reasonable and sound diversification designed to
balance the investments and accept reasonable investment risk.
6. To cooperate with and support other organizations and associations that share the IRMA
Mission Statement and strategies as set forth herein.
7. To educate the public of the costly consequences resulting from frivolous lawsuits,
expensive litigation and unprecedented, exorbitant jury awards. Not only are these costs
ultimately paid for in the form of higher prices for goods and services and taxes, but
erode the confidence in our judicial system.
8. To intervene in reviewing courts’ deliberations vis-à-vis amicus briefs to bring to the
attention of the reviewing court the position of public entities in Illinois, when it has been
determined to be in the best interest of the Illinois public entities.
9. To take all other reasonable and necessary steps to foster and promote quality public
risk management through intergovernmental pooling.

G:\IRMA Organization\WEBSITE\WORD DOCUMENTS\PUBLIC SIDE\ABOUT IRMA\Legislative Mission.doc
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MEMORANDUM
TO:

Training & Education Committee
Membership Relations Committee

FROM:

Jennifer Swahlstedt, Risk Management & Training Manager

DATE:

April 17, 2018

RE:

Merging Committees – TEC & MRC

Purpose: The purpose of this memorandum is to provide a framework for the Training and
Education and Membership Relations Committees to analyze the possibility of merging these
committees into one, and to offer recommendations.
Background/Discussion: Both the TEC and MRC have identified the evaluation of merging
committees as a 2018 Committee Objective. The TEC and MRC Statements of Responsibility
are attached for reference. The MRC has oversight of “member relations” issues, which include
not only recruitment of new members, but also marketing, review of the Annual State of the
Membership Report, member retention and the workers compensation focus program. Risk
management is a core function of IRMA. Yet, risk management is not currently a category of
oversight of either committee. IRMA’s training offerings are an important component of risk
management, our marketing efforts and member retention. In recent years, our risk
management activities have increased through our Safety-First Initiative, Rapid Response
Team, Early Intervention Program and other service enhancements.
The issue of combining TEC with MRC was briefly discussed by each committee and there was
a concern that this action would decrease opportunities for participation. Active member
participation in IRMA is essential to the pool’s success. Likewise, active member participation is
an asset in member recruitment and retention since municipal professionals moving to a nonIRMA community provides us an opportunity to grow the pool. While the MRC and TEC
responsibilities exhibit some overlap, this exercise in evaluating the combining of the
committees has led staff to recommend an enhancement to TEC responsibilities rather than
combining the committees. Staff is recommending the TEC be renamed the Training and Risk
Management Committee and its responsibilities should encompass oversight of IRMA’s risk
management responsibilities.
Recommendation: Discuss and evaluate committee options, then direct staff accordingly.
Training & Education Committee, 5/9/18: After much discussion, DeFeo made a motion to
incorporate risk management activities as a responsibility of the TEC, change the committee
title to Training and Risk Management Committee, continue to meet quarterly and to re-evaluate
after one year. The motion was seconded by Alletto and passed unanimously.
Membership Relations Committee 5/16/18: The MRC discussed the possible merging of the
TEC & MRC and the TEC recommendation of changing the title of the TEC to the Training &
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Risk Management Committee. The MRC concurred with TEC’s recommendation to rename the
committee to the Training & Risk Management Committee and expand the role to include
additional risk management reports and oversight. The MRC also indicated that a joint
Committee meeting could be held if deemed necessary by IRMA staff.
Attachments:

TEC Statement of Responsibility
MRC Statement of Responsibility
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MEMBERSHIP RELATIONS COMMITTEE
STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY
1.

Coordinate and approve the annual membership marketing program.

2.

Review the annual membership participation report and follow-up on recommendations.

3.

Annual review of new membership selection guidelines, including special district
guidelines.

4.

Review membership applications and reports prepared by the IRMA staff and report the
findings and recommendations to the Board of Directors.

5.

Annually review and report on the future membership direction of IRMA, taking into
consideration the expected or desired growth of IRMA; future revenue base growth, new
membership markets, loss of members, need for special marketing efforts to increase
membership, etc.

6.

Review the Annual State of the Membership Report to determine those members that do
not meet membership standards established by IRMA and recommend remedial action,
including the IRMA Worker’s Compensation Focus program.

7.

Coordinate the IRMA "Workers’ Compensation Focus Program" process and review the
Quarterly Workers’ Compensation Focus Program Member Reports to evaluate progress
and make recommendations.

8.

IRMA staff will meet with an IRMA member contemplating issuing or having issued a
written notice of withdrawal from the Pool. Staff will prepare a written memo detailing the
results of the meeting and member retention actions for the MRC, Executive Board and
the next regularly scheduled Board of Directors meeting.

9.

Review and report on periodic market comparison studies performed by independent
consultants.

10.

Monitor federal and state proposed legislation, administrative rules or regulations which
may impact operations of IRMA or its individual Members; reporting to the IRMA Board of
Directors the progress of such legislation and recommend course of action in supporting
or opposing such legislation.

11.

Propose legislation, rules or regulations to benefit the IRMA organization and/or its
Members and recommend a course of action to obtain the passage of any such
legislation.

12.

Coordinate legislative lobbyist efforts in Springfield.

13.

Annual review and approval of the Committee’s portion of the line item budget. The
recommended budget will be forwarded for final approval to the Executive Board.

14.

Such further responsibilities as may be assigned by the Chair of IRMA.
Adopted 11/89
Revised 9/01
Revised 3/23/05
Revised 1/07
Revised 1/14/09
Revised 2/18

G:\IRMA Organization\Website\WORD DOCUMENTS\BOARD & COMMITTEES\Membership Relations Committee Statement Of Responsibility.Doc
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TRAINING & EDUCATION COMMITTEE
STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY
1.

Review of the annual training and educational programs:





Education Summit, Regional Training, Coffee & Conversation Workshops, Special
Training
Member Orientation
Reference and Audio-Visual Library
Annual Service Visit Plan

2.

Overseeing the IRMA Management Assessment Program (IMAP), conducted by the IRMA
Risk Management Services department and review staff’s recommendations for revisions.

3.

Monitor the work/activities of the Steering Committees (i.e., Police Chiefs, Public Works
Directors, Fire Chiefs).

4.

Annual Grant Programs: Review annual budget proposals

5.

Monitor and review the training evaluation reports.

6.

Annual review and approval of the Committee’s portion of the line item budget. The
recommended budget will be forwarded for final approval to the Executive Board.

7.

Review and make recommendations concerning the pricing, registration, cancellation and
refund policy, and all other policies related to the responsibilities of the Training and
Education Committee.

8.

Such further responsibilities as may be assigned by the Chair of IRMA.

Adopted 11/89
Revised 1/04
Revised 1/07
Revised 1/12
Revised 1/17
G:\IRMA Organization\Website\WORD DOCUMENTS\BOARD & COMMITTEES\Training & Education Committee Statement Of Responsibility-Revised-1-1-17.Docx
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MEMORANDUM
TO:

Administration & Finance Committee

FROM:

Rita Boserup, Director of Financial Services

DATE:

May 15, 2018

RE:

Actuarial Report – 12/31/17

ACTION REQUESTED: Approve the Actuarial Report for 12/31/17.
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: Attached are the narrative sections from the December 31, 2017
Actuarial Report from Milliman, Inc. The report was used to determine the Loss Fund Reserves
in the 2017 financial statements, which agrees to Milliman’s Actuarial Central Estimate (ACE) of
$80,373,526. Because of these estimates, loss reserves by membership year decreased in total
from $82,662,378 to the $80,373,526, a net decrease of $2,288,852. That amount was
transferred from Members’ Reserve or Amounts Due Members as part of the year end
calculations.
The actuarial report also includes a preliminary estimate of the IRMA 2019 average loss fund rate.
The 2019 selected loss fund rate is estimated to be $1.813 per $100 of revenue base compared
with the final 2018 rate of $1.878, a decrease of 3.46%. Assuming member revenues stay flat for
2019, we would expect a corresponding contribution decrease in 2019. However, in conjunction
with the Loss Fund Subcommittee, staff is analyzing options for maintaining a flat contribution
rate, including retaining a portion of the interest income credit for Rate Stabilization. For the 2018
budget, $5 million was used for Rate Stabilization. Against that backdrop, the final loss fund rate
will be determined in October when the actuary looks at development over the six month period
and updates the rate. The rate could be adjusted to include any new members that have joined
IRMA in 2018.
In addition to providing the selected loss fund rate, the actuary also provides a low and high pure
premium rate, with an acceptable range of plus or minus 5%. In the past, IRMA has used the
selected rate for its loss fund budget. The 2019 loss fund budget will be calculated by multiplying
the 2019 revenue base by the loss fund rate.
If you wish to see the entire actuarial report, please contact us and the PDF file with the full report
will be sent out.
RECOMMENDATION: Approve the Actuarial Report.
Administration and Finance Committee 5/23/18: The AFC approved the actuarial report.
/RB
Attachment
G:\Committees\Administration & Finance Committee\2018\5-23-18\Actuarial Report-Cover Memo 2017.Docx
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April 6, 2018

Ms. Margo Ely
Executive Director
Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency
Four Westbrook Center
Suite 940
Westchester, IL 60154
Dear Ms. Ely:
We are pleased to submit our report to Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency with respect to our
analysis of its insurance program for workers’ compensation, general liability, automobile liability,
automobile physical damage, and first party coverages as of December 31, 2017. Our analysis uses data
as of March 1, 2018 with additional information provided through April 5, 2018.
A summary of the selected values for the various lines of coverage is displayed in the executive summary.
If you have any questions regarding the attached material, we will be pleased to answer them for you. We
appreciate the opportunity you have given us to be of service to you.
Respectfully submitted,

Douglas K. Nishimura, ARM
Consultant

Richard C. Frese, FCAS, MAAA
Principal & Consulting Actuary
T:\126irm\20171231\Report\IRMA 20171231.docx
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SECTION I: INTRODUCTION
Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency (IRMA) has retained Milliman, Inc. (Milliman) to provide an
independent estimate of its unpaid claim liabilities as of December 31, 2017 for workers’ compensation,
general liability, automobile liability, automobile physical damage, and first party coverages. In addition we
have been requested to provide a projection of expected losses for the fiscal years commencing January 1,
2018 and January 1, 2019. The purpose of this study is to assist management in financial reporting.
Previous analyses referenced in this report are:



Unpaid Claim Liabilities as of December 31, 2016 (report dated April 27, 2017)
Estimated 2018 Funding Levels (report dated November 8, 2017)

Our estimates of unpaid claim liabilities as of December 31, 2017 are based on IRMA data as of March 1,
2018 with additional information provided through April 5, 2018.
IRMA is a public entity risk pool which provides workers’ compensation (WC), general liability (GL), auto
liability (AL), auto physical damage (APD), and first party coverage (FPC) to its members. Each member
has a deductible (Member Deductible) which applies to loss and ALAE for each separate occurrence. Up to
and including 2003, the Member Deductible was $1,000; in 2004 it was raised to $2,500. Since 2005 the
Member Deductible varies by member. The table below shows the distribution of members by their 2018
Member Deductible.
Member
Deductible

Number of
Members

$2,500

33

$10,000

13

$25,000

15

$50,000

6

$100,000

4

A summary of IRMA’s historical limits can be found on Page 21. Starting with Program Year 2001 boiler
coverages are retained at $150,000, not $450,000 as for the balance of first party claims. Effective October
1, 2002 uninsured/underinsured motorist claims are retained at the full $500,000 limit, not $3 million per
accident as for the balance of auto liability claims. If an uninsured motorist claim is covered under workers’
compensation then there is no coverage under auto liability. All these retentions include the Member
Deductible. Additionally, IRMA has aggregate excess insurance in place for accident years 1979 through
1986. There is a $1 million corridor deductible applicable to general liability and auto liability for 2006
through November 1, 2011.
Our analysis is limited to loss and allocated loss expense. Our estimates do not include any evaluation of
other expenses.
For our analysis, the following categories were grouped together from loss runs provided by IRMA.
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Workers’ Compensation
 Workers’ Compensation (WC)
 Employer’s Liability (WE)
 Lost Time (LT)
General Liability
 Errors and Omissions (EO)
 Products Liability Bodily Injury (GA)
 General Liability Bodily Injury (GB)
 General Liability Property Damage (GD)
 Liquor Liability (LL)
 Personal Injury (PI)
 Professional Liability (PL)
 Public Official’s Liability (POL)
 Zoning (ZO)
Auto Liability
 Auto Liability Bodily Injury (AB)
 Auto Liability Property Damage (AD)
 Auto No Fault (AN)
 Auto Uninsured & Underinsured Motorist (AU)
Auto Physical Damage
 Auto Physical Damage (AP)
First Party Coverage
 Bailee’s Liability (BL)
 Crime Money & Security (CM)
 Crime Stock (CS)
 Fire Buildings (FB)
 Fire Contents (FC)
 Inland Marine (IM)
 All Risk Buildings (RB)
 All Risk Contents (RC)
 Time Element (TE)
 Boiler and Machinery (BM)
 Fidelity and Forgery (FF)
Acknowledgement of Qualification
Richard Frese is a Consulting Actuary for Milliman. He is a member of the American Academy of Actuaries,
a Fellow of the Casualty Actuarial Society and meets the Qualification Standards of the American Academy
of Actuaries to render the opinion herein.
Advisement of Carried Reserves
We are independent consultants to IRMA and provide input to management in its reserve setting process.
During the course of preparing this report and the Statement of Actuarial Opinion this report supports,
drafts have been provided to and discussed with Margo Ely of IRMA. The final version of the report will be
addressed to the Executive Director and should be provided to IRMA’s Board of Directors.
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Objectives
The objectives of this study are to:




Estimate IRMA’s unpaid claim liabilities by coverage as of December 31, 2017
Project expected losses and member contribution rates for the 2018 and 2019 period (by coverage)
Estimate Member Deductible credits

Our estimates include allocated loss adjustment expenses. The estimates do not include unallocated loss
adjustment expenses. The data underlying our analysis were net of salvage and subrogation (S&S)
recovered. As such, while we did not estimate the amount of S&S recoverable on unpaid claims, our
estimates of expected losses and consequently premium rates assume that historical levels of S&S will
continue.
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SECTION 2: LIMITATIONS AND DISTRIBUTION
Data Reliance
In performing this analysis, we relied on data and other information provided by IRMA. We have not
audited or verified this data and information. If the underlying data or information are inaccurate or
incomplete, our analysis may likewise be inaccurate or incomplete. In that event, the results of our analysis
may not be suitable for the intended purpose.
We performed a limited review of the data used directly in our analysis for reasonableness and consistency
and have found no material inconsistencies. We do note that beginning with our August 31, 2010 analysis
IRMA provided all system claims in the loss runs (including claims with and without payments) whereas
before IRMA only provided claims in the loss runs which had/have a payment or reserve. This change
impacts the claim counts in the Member Deductible triangle and does not impact the other lines because
we use claim counts from a different source (provided by IRMA). This change in the Member Deductible
does not impact the analysis on a dollar basis since the additional claims are for $0. Our methods primarily
rely on dollars so we do not believe this change is significant. We will continue to build the triangle with
IRMA’s new reporting procedure.
The above data issue did not significantly impact our analysis or estimates. If material defects exist in the
data, it is possible these would be uncovered by a detailed, systematic review and comparison of the data
to search for data values that are questionable or relationships that are materially inconsistent. Such a
review was beyond the scope of our assignment.
Intended Measure
Our estimates are presented as actuarial central estimates. As used in this report, the phrase "actuarial
central estimate" should be interpreted as an estimate of the expected value over the range of reasonably
possible outcomes. This range may not include all conceivable outcomes. For example, it would not
include certain conceivable extreme events where losses from such events are not reliably estimable. Our
description of an actuarial central estimate is intended to clarify the concept rather than assign a precise
statistical measure, as commonly-used actuarial methods typically do not result in a statistical mean. The
unpaid claim estimate does not include a risk margin.
Variability of Results
Actuarial estimates are subject to uncertainty from various sources including changes in claim reporting
patterns, claim settlement patterns, judicial decisions, legislation, economic conditions, etc.
In estimating IRMA’s unpaid losses and ALAE, it is necessary to project future loss and ALAE payments. It
is certain that actual future losses and ALAE will not develop exactly as projected and may in fact
significantly vary from our projections. Further, our projections make no provision for future emergence of
new classes or types of losses not sufficiently represented in IRMA’s historical database, including but not
limited to toxic tort, environmental, asbestos-related claims or those losses which are not yet quantifiable.
Recently, IRMA has had an increase in wrongful conviction claims. Due to the latent nature and high
severity of these claims, this has introduced additional uncertainty to our estimates.
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IRMA data were supplemented with insurance industry data where deemed necessary. The use of external
data is another source of uncertainty in our estimates.
The uncertainty associated with our estimates of reserves for unpaid losses and ALAE is magnified by
IRMA’s exposure to large, fortuitous losses within its current policy limits (see table at end of report). The
emergence of individual large losses (or changes in case reserves on existing open claims) beyond levels
reflected in the historical data could materially change our results. We cannot predict the timing of large
losses, but the possibility increases the uncertainty inherent in our estimates.
Our results are estimates based on long-term averages. Actual loss experience in any given year may
differ from what is suggested by these averages. Our results should be considered central estimates within
a wide range of possible outcomes. Where our results are presented in ranges, it is possible that actual
results will fall outside of these ranges.
Our estimates also include a provision for deductible recoveries from members. We have not evaluated the
security of these deductibles. Contingent liability may exist if some of the deductibles were not recoverable.
Excess Insurance
IRMA insures or reinsures part of its exposure to limit its liability for losses. We did not review IRMA’s
actual excess or reinsurance contracts but relied on summaries provided by IRMA for the terms of these
contracts. Additional liabilities may exist if the excess or reinsurance coverage is not valid or collectible.
Our analysis is net of excess or reinsurance coverage and does not include a provision for uncollectible
excess or reinsurance coverage.
A declaratory action to determine the claim year for claim no. 166793-01 was filed on August 26, 2016, and
the interim administrative claim year for the claim is more properly suited to 1985 and has been moved
provisionally to 1985 at this time. However, nothing in updating the interim administrative policy year
period to 1985 forecloses or limits the right to make future updates to the assignment of this claim or as to
other or additional policy year(s), including 2015, if and as warranted based on developments. The largest
excess insurer for the 1985 policy year is in run-off, but is presently paying claims. We have not made any
provisions for uncollectible excess insurance or reinsurance.
Distribution and Use
Milliman’s work has been prepared solely for the internal use of IRMA. No portion of Milliman’s work may
be provided to any other party without Milliman’s prior written consent. Milliman does not intend to benefit
or create a legal duty to any third party recipient of its work. Milliman’s work may not be filed with the SEC
or other securities regulatory bodies. In addition, references to Milliman or its estimates in communication
with third parties are not authorized. Should IRMA make reference to the engagement of an independent
actuary (without specifically identifying Milliman) in any SEC filing, the SEC may require disclosure of the
name of the actuary. Such disclosure is prohibited without Milliman’s prior written consent.
Milliman’s consent to release its work product to any third party may be conditioned on the third party
signing a Third Party Release Agreement, subject to the following exceptions:
(a) IRMA may provide a copy of Milliman’s work to its accounting auditor (“Auditor”) to be used solely
for audit purposes. In the event the Auditor’s audit reveals any error or inaccuracy in the data
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underlying Milliman’s work, Milliman requests the Auditor or IRMA notify Milliman as soon as
possible.
(b) IRMA may provide a copy of Milliman’s work to governmental entities, as required by law.
In the event Milliman consents to release its work product, it must be provided in its entirety. We
recommend that any such party have its own actuary or other qualified professional review the work
product to ensure that the party understands the assumptions and uncertainties inherent in our estimates.
No third party recipient of Milliman’s work product should rely upon Milliman’s work product.
Any reader of this report agrees that they shall not use Milliman’s name, trademarks or service marks, or
refer to Milliman directly or indirectly in any third party communication without Milliman’s prior written
consent for each such use or release, which consent shall be given in Milliman’s sole discretion.
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SECTION 3: EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Our estimates are presented below. Details of our analysis are described in this report including the
attached schedules, tables and exhibits.
There have been no changes in procedure, methodology or significant assumptions to derive our estimates
since our December 31, 2016 unpaid claim liability study and our August 31, 2017 study except for the
following:



The empirical and fitted increased limit factors were updated to use current data
We lowered the severity trends for workers’ compensation and general liability from 6.0% to 5.0%.

Adjustments to trends are based on a long-term perspective blended with recent experience.
Unpaid Claim Liability Summary
Based on our analysis, our estimates of unpaid claim liabilities by line of coverage as of December 31,
2017 are displayed in the following table.

Coverage

Undiscounted
Liabilities

Workers’ Compensation

44,254,281

General Liability

36,874,364

Auto Liability
Auto Physical Damage
First Party Coverage
Member Deductible

1,956,026
39,256
432,444
-3,182,846

Aggregate Reduction

0

Actuarial Central Estimate Total *

80,373,526

Low Range Total **

76,354,849

High Range Total **

84,392,202

* The above table is rounded to eliminate liabilities less than $1.
** A range has been developed based on 5% from the actuarial central
estimate.

The Member Deductible reflects the amount estimated to be recoverable from members for claims paid by
IRMA within the member’s deductible. As such it is a reduction in IRMA’s net liability. The unpaid claim
liabilities are also net of the aggregate limits for the years 1979-1986.
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Comparison to Prior Year Estimates
The following table compares our estimates of ultimate losses to those from our previous estimate in our
December 31, 2016 study. For further detail by line of business, please see Comparison Exhibits at the
end of this report.
Year
Ending
12/31
Prior
2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
Total 1979 and forward
Excluding 2017

Selected Actuarial
Central Estimate
3/1/17*
201.4
16.6
17.1
27.3
27.9
37.6
25.9
25.0
25.0
22.1
19.1
23.3
22.4
22.7
27.2
540.7
540.7

Selected Actuarial
Central Estimate
3/1/18*
200.6
16.6
17.1
27.3
27.3
37.5
25.9
25.1
25.4
21.7
18.6
23.0
21.3
23.0
29.6
25.2
565.3
540.1

Difference in
Central Estimate
3/1/17-3/1/18*
-0.8
0.0
0.0
0.0
-0.6
-0.1
0.0
0.2
0.4
-0.5
-0.5
-0.3
-1.1
0.3
2.4
25.2
24.6
-0.6

*Rounded to the nearest $100,000.

The following table summarizes changes by line of business from our December 31, 2016 study excluding
the 2017 accident year.
Coverage

3/1/17 Actuarial Central
Estimate Ultimate*

3/1/18 Actuarial Central
Estimate Ultimate*

Change*

Workers’ Compensation

333.1

331.8

-1.3

General Liability

195.4

196.9

1.6

Auto Liability

39.1

38.5

-0.7

First Party Coverage

21.0

21.2

0.2

Auto Physical Damage

17.5

17.2

-0.2

Subtotal

606.0

605.6

-0.5

Member Deductible

-65.3

-65.5

-0.2

Net

540.7

540.1

-0.6

* Rounded to the nearest $100,000.
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Future Loss Projection
Based on our analysis, our estimates of projected losses by coverage for the 2019 fiscal year are as
follows. We have shown the projected losses and pure premiums assuming all members in 2019 will
choose the $2,500 deductible.
Coverage

2019
Limit

Workers’ Compensation

1,500,000

20,543,283

17,871,798

General Liability
Auto Liability

3,000,000
3,000,000

10,530,768
1,686,623

17,871,798
17,871,798

0.589
0.094

0.560
0.090

0.619
0.099

450,000
450,000

817,515
1,353,130

17,871,798
17,871,798

0.046
0.076

0.043
0.072

0.048
0.079

-2,524,683
32,406,636

17,871,798
17,871,798

0.141
1.813

0.148
1.708

0.134
1.918

Auto Physical Damage
First Party Coverage
Member Deductible
Total

Projected
Losses

Revenue
(00s)

Pure Premium
Selected
Low
High
1.149
1.092
1.207

Pure Premium is calculated per $100 of revenue and is based on projected 2019 covered revenues of
$1,787,179,791. This revenue estimate reflects a 4.6% increase over 2018. The selected 2019 pure
premium of 1.813 reflects a 3.46% decrease from the pure premium underlying the 2018 rates (as
estimated in our August 31, 2017 report). The pure premiums above include losses and allocated loss
adjustment expenses. The premiums do not include any other expenses which need to be reflected in
IRMA’s rates. The low and the high values have been determined as a 5% decrease/increase from the
selected value.
Member Deductible Credit
Based on our analysis, our estimates of Member Deductible credits per $100 of revenue by per-occurrence
deductible option without an annual aggregate are as follows.

Deductible
$2,500
$10,000
$25,000
$50,000
$100,000
$175,000
$250,000
1

Projected 2019
Losses Below
Revenues
Deductible 1
(00s)
2,524,683
17,871,798
6,180,585
17,871,798
10,202,573
17,871,798
14,161,961
17,871,798
18,786,603
17,871,798
22,655,014
17,871,798
25,045,107
17,871,798

Rate Credit
0.141
0.346
0.571
0.792
1.051
1.268
1.401

Credit is per $100 of revenue.
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SECTION 4: STUDY BASIS
Our analysis was based on the following.


Coverage provided through December 31, 2017



Program exposures and losses as of March 1, 2018



A set of assumptions and methods

All of these elements are discussed in the following paragraphs.
General
Before describing the specifics involved in our analysis for the Program, it is important to discuss general
principles used in actuarial work.
The actuarial principles used to evaluate claim liabilities of this insurance program principally revolve
around three factors.




Loss Triangles and Loss Development
Trends
Exposure

Loss Triangles and Loss Development (Including Payment Patterns)
Loss triangles are shown for paid losses, incurred losses and claim counts on Exhibits 2, 3 and 4 for each
coverage category. We have used triangles that are both unlimited and limited. For the limited triangles, we
have adjusted IRMA’s losses by subtracting the amounts in excess of IRMA’s retention.
Loss development refers to the change in the estimated value of a body of claims from an early point in
time until the claims are all closed. Generally, the reported amounts for a group of claims will increase over
time for several reasons.
First, it is difficult for the claims adjuster to accurately estimate the damages/indemnities or legal expenses
for claims when initially reported. The estimated value of a claim, called a case reserve, is adjusted up or
down as more information is obtained on the given claim. Generally the total incurred losses for a group of
claims (i.e., payments to date plus case reserves) will develop upward over time.
Second, it may take several years for a claim to be discovered and reported. Unreported claims are termed
“pure” incurred but not reported (IBNR) claims.
A third factor which causes total claim amounts to increase over time is reopened claims. These are cases
on which the claims adjuster reasoned no further payments would be made and therefore closed the case.
However, such claims may be reopened at a later date.
The total additional development of known and unknown claims is termed IBNR.
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Loss development methods use patterns of development observed from older, more mature years to
project the expected future development (IBNR) for more recent years. It is preferable to use the historical
loss development of a given client or program to determine the extent of future development; a broader
database (e.g., insurance industry data) is utilized to the extent that a client’s data are incomplete or
unstable.
The payment pattern by line of business has been estimated on Exhibit 14. The payment pattern is based
on IRMA’s historical experience and is shown for informational purposes only.
Trends
The estimate of ultimate losses is generally made based on historical experience. Trend is a measure of
the annual rate of change of a claim element (frequency, severity). Examples of trend drivers include
inflation, societal attitudes toward legal action, and changes in law. Trend factors are used to adjust
historical loss experience. We have assumed in this study an inflationary trend of 2.5% in exposures such
as payroll, revenue and property values. The following selected trends are derived from IRMA’s loss
history, supplemented with insurance industry trend data. Trends are similar with the last study other than
those noted in the Executive Summary.
Line
Workers Compensation
Auto Liability
General Liability
Auto Physical Damage
First Party

Severity
Trend
5.0%
4.5%
5.0%
5.0%
3.5%

Frequency
Trend
-3.0%
-2.5%
-3.0%
-2.5%
0.0%

Exposure
The incidence of claims tends to directly vary with the exposure of the entity at risk. We used the following
exposure for each line of business: workers’ compensation (payroll), auto liability (vehicle count), general
liability (revenue), auto physical damage (vehicle count) and first party (property values). The actuary must
consider both the historical loss level and the corresponding exposures when evaluating historical claim
liabilities and expected future costs. It is important to choose an exposure measure that is relevant to the
unique situation of each self-insurance program. Revenue is used as the general base for all lines of
coverage in calculation of the rate.
Loss and Exposure Data
Our estimates of premium rates are based on the historical loss and exposure of IRMA’s insurance
program.
The loss data available for our analysis were summarized on Exhibit 1 (for each coverage group) and
provided as of March 1, 2018. Note that losses in excess of the per-claim retention have been removed on
Exhibit 1. The excess losses are shown on Exhibit 1A.
Exposure has been provided by IRMA and is summarized on Exhibit 15.
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Actuarial Assumptions
The key assumptions selected for purposes of our actuarial analysis of the Program as of December 31,
2017 are summarized in Schedule 2 of this report.
Loss development was solely based on IRMA data. Trends in general consider relevant industry data as
well as directional differences as supported from IRMA’s experience.

Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency
Actuarial Valuation as of December 31, 2017 of Workers’ Compensation, General Liability, Auto Liability, Auto
Physical Damage and First Party Coverages
April 6, 2018

81

15

Milliman Client Report

SECTION 5: STUDY RESULTS
This section of the report provides details of our estimate of the Program’s outstanding unpaid claim
liabilities as of December 31, 2017.
For each of the coverage groupings earlier identified, we have prepared a series of exhibits which are
identified in the following general discussion of the methods used in our analysis.
Projection Methods
Incurred and paid losses valued as of December 31, 2017 are summarized on Exhibit 1.
We utilized the following methods.






Incurred Loss development
Paid Loss development
Incurred Bornhuetter-Ferguson
Paid Bornhuetter-Ferguson
Frequency/Severity

The incurred loss development method demonstrated on Exhibit 5 derives an estimate of ultimate losses
by multiplying incurred losses by an incurred loss development factor. Incurred losses are defined as paid
losses plus case reserves on open claims. The loss development factors are derived from IRMA’s historical
data (on Exhibit 3).
The paid loss development method demonstrated on Exhibit 6 derives an estimate of ultimate losses by
multiplying paid losses by a paid loss development factor. The paid loss development factors include a
provision for future loss payments for a particular accident year. Again, the factors are derived from IRMA’s
historical data (on Exhibit 2).
The incurred and paid Bornhuetter-Ferguson (B-F) methods derive estimated ultimate losses by adding an
expected unreported provision (IBNR) or expected unpaid amount to the reported or paid losses. The B-F
methods derive an estimate of ultimate losses based on the following.




Actual reported (incurred) or paid losses to date
An á-priori estimate of ultimate losses
An assumed reporting or payment pattern for losses

The á-priori estimates are from our prior actuarial analysis. The á-priori ultimate losses are multiplied by
the expected percentage of losses unreported or unpaid to derive the expected IBNR or unpaid amount.
Then this IBNR value or unpaid amount is added to reported or paid losses to produce an estimate of
ultimate losses. Exhibits 7 and 8 display the incurred and paid Bornhuetter-Ferguson methods.
The percentage of losses unreported or unpaid is derived from our selected cumulative reported or paid
loss development factors. Specifically, the percentage of losses unreported or unpaid is equal to 1.0 minus
the reciprocal of the cumulative reported or paid loss development factor.
For the more recent several years an additional method is considered. Exhibits 9 through 11 display the
estimate of ultimate losses based on a frequency and severity method. Ultimate losses for the
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Frequency/Severity technique are equal to the projected number of ultimate claims multiplied by the
selected severity. The ultimate number of claims is based on reported claims multiplied by a claim count
development factor. Exhibit 4 presents our calculation of the claim count development factors including our
selected values for claim development. The selected severity is based on severities for older years
adjusted to current cost levels using the trend assumptions discussed earlier. Exhibit 10 displays the
selected severity based on incurred developed losses and ultimate claim counts. Exhibit 11 estimates
ultimate losses for the most recent several years based on the selected severity and ultimate claim counts.
The ultimate losses from each of these different methods are compared on Exhibit 12 and used to select
the actuarial central estimate of ultimate loss and ALAE. Usually, the more mature accident years use the
incurred loss development estimate. The less mature years use a combination of estimates.
Unpaid Claim Liability
Exhibit 13 presents the outstanding liability estimate. Unpaid claim liability estimates are calculated as of
December 31, 2017 based on ultimate losses from Exhibit 12, less actual payments as of December 31,
2017.
The unpaid claim liabilities by coverage line are shown on Summary Exhibit 3.
The unpaid claim liabilities do not include a reserve for fees such as claims administration or other
unallocated expenses.
Please note the unpaid claim liability exhibits are rounded to exclude unpaid claim liabilities less than $1.
Increased Limits Factors
Exhibit 15 shows the increased limits factors (ILFs) by each line of business for various retentions based
on three different sources (when available); industry, empirical or fitted. The empirical and fitted ILFs are
based entirely on IRMA data. A selection of the ILF used in the study was made among the three different
methods.
Future Loss and Rate Projection
The estimated loss cost (rate) is based on our estimate of ultimate losses and ALAE for 2018. For each of
the coverage groupings this estimate is displayed on Exhibit 14. The selected ultimate losses are adjusted
to the 2018 level. The adjustments are for annual changes in exposure, benefit levels, claim frequency and
claim severity. Each adjusted historical year is an estimate of fiscal year 2018 losses. Based on these
indications, with further adjustments to reflect 2018 exposure and cost levels, we selected an estimate of
future losses for fiscal year 2018 as shown on the bottom of the exhibit. We also show the estimated rate
(projected losses and ALAE divided by estimated exposure), as well as a range around our estimates.
Based on these indications, with further adjustments for 2019 exposure and cost levels, we selected an
estimate of future losses for the fiscal year 2019 as shown on Summary Exhibit 4.
Exhibit 15A in the Member Deductible exhibits shows the 2019 per-occurrence deductible credits at the
different deductible options available to members. The deductible credits were based on IRMA’s historical
claim experience by creating a size of loss and estimating a theoretical credit from the loss distribution.
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Summary Exhibit 4 displays estimates for each of the coverage groups as well as the combined estimates.
Summary & Comparison Exhibits
Summary Exhibits 1 and 2 summarize losses by accident year by line of business. Summary Exhibit 3
shows the liability by accident year by line of business. Summary Exhibit 4 displays rate estimates for each
of the coverage groups, as well as the combined estimates. Summary Exhibit 4 also shows a comparison
of 2018 rates with prior rates from previous studies.
Comparison Exhibits 1 and 2 show the changes in data and ultimate selections between the current study
and the December 31, 2016 study. Comparison Exhibit 3 shows the change in the unpaid claim liability
estimates between the current study and December 31, 2016.
We have also shown Comparison Exhibits 1 and 2 to show the changes in data and ultimate selections
between the current study and the August 31, 2017 study.
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SECTION 6: SCHEDULES AND EXHIBITS
Schedules
1
2

Main Provisions of the Program
Actuarial Assumptions

Exhibits by Group by Line
1
1A
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
15A

Summary of Historical Loss Data (3/1/18)
Large Losses (Where Applicable)
Paid Loss Triangle
Incurred Loss Triangle
Claim Count Triangle
Incurred Loss Development
Paid Loss Development
Bornhuetter/Ferguson Incurred Loss Development
Bornhuetter/Ferguson Paid Loss Development
Claim Count Developed
Selected Severity
Frequency Severity Method
Selection of Expected Ultimate Losses
Unpaid Claim Liability Estimate (12/31/17)
Loss Projection
Increased Limits Factor
Member Deductible Rate Credits

Summary Exhibits
1A
1B
1C
2
3
4

Summary of Paid Losses (3/1/18)
Summary of Case Reserves (3/1/18)
Summary of Incurred Losses (3/1/18)
Summary of Ultimate Losses
Summary of Unpaid Claim Liabilities (12/31/17)
Summary of Loss Projection

Comparison Exhibits
1
2
3

Comparison of Paid & Incurred Losses
Comparison of Ultimates
Comparison of Unpaid Claim Liabilities

T:\126irm\20171231\analysis
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MANAGEMENT AGENCY
The Risk Management Solution for Local Government

MEMORANDUM

TO:

Administration & Finance Committee

FROM:

Rita Boserup, Director, Financial Services

DATE:

May 23, 2018

RE:

2017 Audited Financial Statements

ACTION REQUESTED: Approve the 2017 audited Financial Statements.
BACKGROUND and DISCUSSION: IRMA’s bylaws requires that a financial audit be performed
annually. Attached is the draft report, along with the required communications.
RECOMMENDATION: Approve the 2017 Audited Financial Statements.
Administration and Finance Committee 5/23/18: The AFC approved the 2017 audited Financial
Statements.

/RB
Attachment
G:\Committees\Administration & Finance Committee\2018\5-23-18\2017 audited financials-Cover Memo.docx
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May 23, 2018

To the Board of Directors and Member of
Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency

In accordance with your request, we are attaching the electronic draft of the financial statement
for the year ended December 31, 2017 for Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency.
We do not express an opinion at this time on the statements mentioned above because they are
preliminary drafts and we have not as yet completed all of the auditing procedures which we
consider necessary.
This preliminary draft is for review and discussion purposes only and is, therefore, subject to
change. We ask that you delete electronic versions of preliminary draft financial statements and
destroy all printed copies of preliminary draft versions when you have finished with them.
Very truly yours,
Plante & Moran, PLLC

Kevin E. Krause, CPA
Partner
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Insert Opinion Date

To the Board of Directors
Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency
We have audited the basic financial statements of the Intergovernmental Risk Management
Agency ("IRMA“) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2017 and have issued our report
thereon dated Insert Opinion Date . Professional standards require that we provide you with the
following information related to our audit which is divided into the following sections:
Section I – Internal Control Related Matters Identified in an Audit
Section II – Required Communications with Those Charged With Governance

ra
ft

Section I includes any deficiencies we observed in IRMA’s accounting principles or internal
control that we believe are significant. Current auditing standards require us to formally
communicate annually matters we note about IRMA’s accounting policies and internal control.
Section II includes information that current auditing standards require independent auditors to
communicate to those individuals charged with governance. We will report this information
annually to the Board of Directors of IRMA.
We would like to take this opportunity to thank IRMA’s staff for the cooperation and courtesy
extended to us during our audit. Their assistance and professionalism are invaluable.

D

This report is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors and management of IRMA
and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.
We welcome any questions you may have regarding the following communications and we
would be willing to discuss any of these or other questions that you might have at your
convenience.
Very truly yours,
Plante & Moran, PLLC

Kevin E. Krause, CPA
Partner
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Section I - Internal Control Related Matters Identified in an Audit
In planning and performing our audit of the basic financial statements of IRMA as of and for the
year ended December 31, 2017, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America, we considered IRMA's internal control over financial reporting
(internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the basic financial statements, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of IRMA's internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of IRMA's internal control.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding
paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses and therefore, material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.
However, as discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be significant deficiencies.

ra
ft

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis.
A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such
that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s basic financial
statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

•

•

D

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is
less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance. We consider the following deficiencies in IRMA’s internal control to be
significant deficiencies:
As a result of our audit procedures over reinsurance recoverable, we identified a
workers’ compensation recoverable that was improperly excluded from the reinsurance
recoverable balance at year end. Through further analysis, it was determined that IRMA
does properly identify amounts due from reinsurers; however, IRMA does not have a
proper control in place to record those recoverables at period end which may result in
understating total current assets. We recommend IRMA put in place controls to record
reinsurance recoverables as they become due from the reinsurer.

As a result of our audit procedures, we identified a lack of segregation of duties in the
wire transfer initiation and approval process. It was determined that an individual can
both initiate and approve wire transfers. We recommend controls be put in place to
eliminate the lack of segregation of duties. A separate individual should be required to
initiate a wire transfer and approval that wire transfer.
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Section II - Required Communications with Those Charged With Governance
Our Responsibility Under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards
As stated in our engagement letter dated December 12, 2017, our responsibility, as described
by professional standards, is to express an opinion about whether the basic financial statements
prepared by management with your oversight are fairly presented, in all material respects, in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Our audit of the basic financial
statements does not relieve you or management of your responsibilities. Our responsibility is to
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that the basic
financial statements are free of material misstatement.
As part of our audit, we considered the internal control of IRMA. Such considerations were
solely for the purpose of determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance
concerning such internal control.

ra
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We are responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our
professional judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting
process. However, we are not required to design procedures specifically to identify such
matters.
Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit

We performed the audit according to the planned scope and timing previously communicated to
you in our meeting about planning matters on April 17, 2018.
Significant Audit Findings

D

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. In
accordance with the terms of our engagement letter, we will advise management about the
appropriateness of accounting policies and their application. The significant accounting policies
used by IRMA are described in Note 2 to the basic financial statements. No new accounting
policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during 2017.
We noted no transactions entered into by IRMA during the year for which there is a lack of
authoritative guidance or consensus.
We noted no significant transactions that have been recognized in the basic financial
statements in a different period than when the transaction occurred.
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the basic financial statements prepared by
management and are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and
current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are
particularly sensitive because of their significance to the basic financial statements and because
of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected.
The most sensitive estimates affecting the basic financial statements are as follows:

90

Loss and Loss Adjustment Expense Reserves - IRMA’s estimate is based on an
accumulation of individual case reserve estimates for reported claims and claim
adjustment expenses and actuarial estimates for incurred but not reported claims and
claim adjustment expenses, based upon industry and IRMA’s actual experience and
assumptions. We performed a hindsight review to assess the adequacy of prior year
reserves, tested information submitted to the actuary, and reviewed key factors and
assumptions used to develop the claims reserves in determining that they are
reasonable in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

•

Alternative Investments - IRMA uses estimates supplied by the general partners of the
limited partnerships or investment managers of managed funds for the various
alternative investments maintained by IRMA. We confirmed the estimated fair market
value of the investments, investment transactions for the year, and other information
related to the alternative investments with the general partners or investment managers
of the individual alternative investments. In addition, for those alternative investments
IRMA maintained in the prior year which did not receive audited financial statements for
December 31, 2017, we completed a look-back computation using the December 31,
2016 audited financial statements of the alternative investments multiplied by the IRMA’s
ownership percentage to determine the methodologies used to estimate fair market
value were reasonable at December 31, 2016.

ra
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•

The disclosures in the basic financial statements are neutral, consistent, and clear. Certain
basic financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to
basic financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the basic financial
statements relate to loss and loss adjustment expense reserves and recoverable amounts from
reinsurers.
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

D

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and
completing our audit.
Disagreements with Management

For the purpose of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management
as a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our
satisfaction, that could be significant to the basic financial statements or the auditor’s report. We
are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.
Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified
during the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level
of management. We did not detect any known or likely misstatements as a result of audit
procedures.
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Significant Findings or Issues
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and
auditing standards, business conditions affecting the organization, and business plans and
strategies that may affect the risks of material misstatement with management each year prior
to retention as IRMA’s auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of
our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition of our retention.
There were no significant issues that were discussed or were the subject of correspondence
with management prior to or during our audit.
Management Representations
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the
management representation letter dated Insert Opinion Date.
Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

ra
ft

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a
consultation involves application of an accounting principle to IRMA’s basic financial statements
or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements,
our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that
the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations
with other accountants.
Other Information in Documents Containing Audited Basic financial Statements

D

Our responsibility for other information in documents containing the entity’s basic financial
statements and report does not extend beyond the basic financial statements. We do not have
an obligation to determine whether or not such other information is properly stated. However,
we read the introductory and statistical sections of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
(CAFR) and nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that such information, or its
manner of presentation, is materially inconsistent with the information or manner of its
presentation appearing in the basic financial statements.
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Independent Auditor's Report
To the Board of Directors
Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency
("IRMA") as of and for the year ended December 31, 2017, and the related notes to the basic financial
statements, which collectively comprise Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency's basic financial statements
as listed in the table of contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these basic financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
basic financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these basic financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the basic
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the basic
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the basic financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of
the basic financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the basic financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the basic financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency as of December 31, 2017 and the respective changes in
its financial position and cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.
Report on Prior Year Financial Statements
The basic financial statements of Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2016 were audited by a predecessor auditor, which expressed an unmodified opinion on the basic
financial statements. The predecessor auditor's report was dated May 24, 2017.
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To the Board of Directors
Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency
Required Supplemental Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Schedule of Changes in
the Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios, the Schedule of Employer Contributions, the Schedule of Claim
Development, Earned Assessments and Unallocated Expenses - Current Membership Year, and the related
notes to required supplementary information be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, which considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplemental information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. Management has omitted the
management's discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such missing information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board who considers it to be an essential part of the financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements
in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context. Our opinion on the basic financial statements is not
affected by this missing information.
Other Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements that collectively
comprise Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency's basic financial statements. The other supplemental
information, as identified in the table of contents, is presented for the purpose of additional analysis and is not a
required part of the basic financial statements.
The other supplemental information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves,
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the other supplemental information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
basic financial statements as a whole.
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Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency

Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2017 and 2016
2017
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables:
Member accounts
Amounts due from members
Excess insurance recoveries
Prepaid expenses

$

2016

6,876,997 $
189,969,036

2,556,697
178,548,415

639,618
2,073,130
310,317
2,255,105

514,454
3,762,280
1,762
1,711,981

202,124,203

187,095,589

100,435

81,480

202,224,638

187,177,069

899,375

961,114

218,736
21,606,452
912,783
112,255
4,290,906

150,534
24,000,000
662,000
89,066
200,646
5,237,932

27,141,132

30,340,178

58,767,074

58,662,379

2,173,180
41,104
1,049,067
63,632,431
3,000,000
17,652,008
29,396,534
271,483

2,521,471
42,903
1,029,322
42,920,479
3,000,000
23,837,803
25,783,648
-

Total noncurrent liabilities

175,982,881

157,798,005

Total liabilities

203,124,013

188,138,183

Total current assets
Noncurrent assets - Capital assets - Net of accumulated depreciation
Total assets
Deferred Outflows of Resources - Pension related deferred outflows
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Loss and loss adjustment expense reserves, current portion
Unallocated loss adjustment expense reserves, current portion
Accrued vacation
Unearned membership contribution revenue
Member balances, excess surplus fund, current portion
Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities:
Loss and loss adjustment expense reserves, less current portion
Unallocated loss and loss adjustment expense reserves, less current
portion
Accrued rent
Net pension liability
Members' reserve
APCC reserve loan fund
Amounts due to members
Excess surplus fund
Members' optional deductible credit reserve fund

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

101,155
(101,155)
$

Total net position

See notes to financial statements.
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-

81,480
(81,480)
$

-

Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency

Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016
2017
Operating Revenues
Annual membership contributions
Other

$

Total operating revenues
Operating Expenses
Losses and allocated loss adjustment expenses incurred
Change in unallocated loss adjustment expense reserves
Excess insurance premiums
Depreciation
General and administrative expenses
Total operating expenses
Operating Loss
Nonoperating Revenue (Expense)
Interest and dividends
Net increase in the fair value of investments
Members' balances adjustments

2016

28,989,616 $
119,974

27,944,794
38,018

29,109,590

27,982,812

23,221,278
(97,508)
2,619,317
40,756
3,775,974

26,492,941
985,161
2,565,446
30,394
3,700,363

29,559,817

33,774,305

(450,227)

(5,791,493)

2,916,588
24,867,183
(27,333,544)

3,070,752
13,555,212
(10,834,471)

450,227

Total nonoperating revenue - Net

5,791,493

Change in Net Position

-

-

Net Position - Beginning of year

-

-

$

Net Position - End of year

See notes to financial statements.
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$

-

Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency

Statement of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016
2017
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash received from member contributions, net
Other cash receipts
Loss and loss adjustment expenses paid, net
Cash payments for operating expenses
Cash payments to employees for services
Contributions to members' reserve
Distributions to former members from members' reserve
Distributions of excess surplus fund

$

Net cash used in operating activities
Cash Flows Used in Financing Activities - Acquisition of capital assets
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Maturity/sale of investment securities
Purchase of investment securities
Interest and dividends on investment securities
Net cash provided by investing activities

27,163,806 $
362,193
(25,818,686)
(5,058,885)
(1,801,238)
540,038
(1,005,892)
(6,363,756)

2016
28,145,440
38,018
(20,569,933)
(4,348,555)
(1,767,989)
(721,967)
(4,835,360)

(11,982,420)

(4,060,346)

(60,430)

(54,059)

42,496,885
(29,262,794)
3,129,059

55,705,510
(54,730,826)
3,070,752

16,363,150

4,045,436

Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents

4,320,300

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of year

2,556,697

2,625,666

6,876,997 $

2,556,697

Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of year

See notes to financial statements.
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Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency

Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016
2017
Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash used in Operating
Activities
$
Operating loss
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash used in operating
activities:
Depreciation
Net periodic pension expense
Other
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Increase in member accounts receivables
Increase in excess insurance recoveries
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses
Decrease (increase) in pension related deferred outflows
(Decrease) increase in loss and loss adjustment expense reserves
(Decrease) increase in unallocated loss adjustment expense
reserves
Increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses
Increase (decrease) in accrued vacation
(Decrease) increase in unearned membership contribution revenue
(Decrease) increase in accrued rent
(Decrease) increase in net pension liability
(Decrease) in excess surplus fund
(Decrease) in members' reserve fund
Increase in optional deductible credit reserve

(450,227) $
40,756
319,140
(92,784)

2016

(5,791,493)
30,394
385,513
-

(125,164)
(308,555)
(543,124)
61,739
(2,288,853)

(84,328)
33,471
(291,491)
5,936,901

(97,508)
68,202
23,189
(200,646)
(1,799)
(299,395)
(6,363,756)
(1,965,854)
242,219

985,161
44,956
(9,144)
200,646
1,457
54,938
(4,835,360)
(721,967)
-

Net cash used in operating activities

$

(11,982,420) $

(4,060,346)

Significant Noncash Transactions
Net appreciation in the fair value of investments
Noncash member contributions transferred from member balances

$

24,867,183 $
1,500,000

13,555,212
-

See notes to financial statements.
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Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2017 and 2016

Note 1 - Nature of Business
Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency ("IRMA") is an organization of municipalities and special
districts in Northeastern Illinois that on January 1, 1979 formed an association under the Illinois
Intergovernmental Cooperation Act to pool their risk management needs. As of December 31, 2017,
IRMA had seventy members; sixty-three municipal and seven special district members. IRMA administers
a mix of coverages; property/casualty and workers' compensation claim administration/litigation
management services; unemployment claim administration; risk management/loss control consulting;
training and education programs; and a risk information system and financial reporting service for its
members.

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation - Fund Accounting
The accounts of IRMA are organized on the basis of claim or membership years, each of which is
accounted for separately because the composition of membership may change from year-to-year. A
Members' Reserve Account is maintained to serve as the first source for payment of supplemental
assessments. An Excess Surplus Fund was established in 1999 to allow members the flexibility to select
the amount of interest income credit to apply toward their future contributions. These accounts are
referred to as the multi-year pool as they do not relate to any one specific year.
IRMA operates as a single proprietary fund, more specifically as an enterprise fund.
Basis of Accounting
Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenses are recognized in the accounts and reported
in the financial statements.
The proprietary fund is accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenue is recognized when
it is earned and expenses are recognized when they are incurred. Cost of acquiring new and renewal
memberships are expensed in the membership year incurred.
A proprietary fund is accounted for on a cost of services or "economic resources" measurement focus.
This means that all assets and all liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) associated with the activity of
providing insurance services are included within the fund.
IRMA distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services in connection with IRMA's principal ongoing operations.
Nonoperating revenues and expenses result from investment and financing activities.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
IRMA maintains cash balances in several financial institutions, which, from time to time, exceed the
federally insured limits. IRMA has not experiences any losses in such accounts as a result of this
concentration, and believes it is not exposed to any significant credit risk on cash balances.
For the purpose of the accompanying financial statements, IRMA considers all highly liquid investments
purchased with original maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The carrying amount
reported in the balance sheet for cash and cash equivalents approximates fair value due to the short-term
nature of these investments.
Investments
Investments consist primarily of common stocks listed on a recognized exchange, fixed income and
equity funds, and mutual funds or commingled funds, as authorized by IRMA's approved investment
policy in accordance with Chapter 30, Section 235/2 and Chapter 5, Section 220/15 of the Illinois
Compiled Statutes.
7
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2017 and 2016

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
All investments are reported at fair value. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
investment in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. All
investment income, including changes in the fair value of investments, is recognized as nonoperating
revenue (expense) in the statement of revenue, expenses, and changes in net position.
Cash balances from all membership years are combined and invested, to the extent available, in
authorized investments. Earnings from these investments are allocated monthly to each membership
year based on average cash balance available for investment at the end of each month. Because of the
commingling of cash, it is possible for a membership year to show a deficit balance in cash and
investments due to the timing of receipts and disbursements related to that particular membership year.
Receivables
Member Accounts - Each member assumes the responsibility for the first $2,500 of any valid, covered
occurrence. Additionally, some members have assumed responsibility for higher optional deductibles.
The members are billed on a monthly basis for their share of deductible payments made by IRMA on their
behalf. Payment is required within 45 days per the IRMA bylaws.
Amounts Due From Members - A separate "amounts due from members" account for each member is
maintained and represents the result of net unfavorable loss development for prior membership years
and/or net losses on investment securities.
Excess Insurance Recoveries - This represents amounts recoverable from excess insurers for losses in
excess of IRMA's self-insured retention (SIR).
Prepaid Expenses
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as
prepaid expenses. These amounts primarily represent prepaid excess insurance premiums, a security
deposit for current office space and various software maintenance service agreements.
Capital Assets
Capital assets are defined as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated
useful life of greater than one year. Additions or improvements that significantly extend the useful life of
an asset, or that significantly increase the capacity of an asset are capitalized. Currently, capital assets
consist of equipment. Equipment is recorded at cost and is being depreciated over its estimated useful
life using the straight-line method. IRMA estimates the useful life of all classes of assets to be five years.
Deferred Outflows of Resources
In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources,
represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as
an outflow of resources (expense) until that time. Deferred outflows of resources for IRMA consist of
unrecognized items not yet charged to pension expense related to the net pension liability and
contributions paid by IRMA after the measurement date of the net pension liability but before the end of
IRMA's reporting period.
Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.
8
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Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2017 and 2016

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Loss and Loss Adjustment Expense Reserves
The liability for loss and loss adjustment expense reserves represents an estimate of the ultimate net cost
of all losses and loss adjustment expenses incurred but not yet paid as of December 31, 2017 and 2016,
including claims incurred but not reported and net of any deductibles from members and recoveries from
excess insurance on the specific-loss and aggregate basis. Unallocated loss adjustment expense
reserves include claim adjustment expenses that cannot be associated with specific claims but are
related to claims in the process of settlement. These estimates are based on the historical loss
experience of IRMA and various industry statistics. The liability for loss and loss adjustment expense
reserves is evaluated annually by an independent actuary. Management believes that the liability is
adequate to cover the ultimate cost of reported and unreported claims. However, the ultimate cost may
be more or less than the estimated liability and any adjustments to the liability, based on subsequent
developments, are included in operations when the adjustments become known. IRMA does not discount
its liability for loss and loss adjustment expense reserves. The current portion of the liability is estimated
based on the historical experience of IRMA.
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
IRMA routinely assess the collectibility of its receivables. At December 31, 2017 and 2016, all balances
are considered to be collectible.
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses
This represents the accrual of all unpaid expenses related to each membership year.
Compensated Absences
It is IRMA's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned, but unused, vacation and sick pay benefits.
There is no liability for unpaid accumulated sick leave since IRMA does not have a policy to pay any sick
leave amounts when employees separate from service with IRMA. All vacation pay is accrued when
incurred.
Unearned Membership Contribution Revenue
The unearned membership contribution revenue liability represents (1) member contributions for the
succeeding membership year which have been paid by the member prior to the effective date of the
member's insurance coverage and (2) excess surplus funds which members had elected by year-end to
apply to the subsequent year's contribution for the members' insurance coverage. These contributions will
be earned during the succeeding membership year.
Accrued Rent
This represents the accrual of rent expense incurred but not payable until future years under the terms of
the lease agreement.
Members' Reserve and Amounts Due to Members
The purpose of the members' reserve is to serve as the first source for payment of supplemental
assessments and provide immediate funds in the event that claims exceed the loss fund. The policy
includes minimum and maximum levels of funding for members' reserve established annually by the
Board in conjunction with the budget. A separate "members' reserve" account for each member is
maintained and represents each member's payment to the members' reserve, accrued investment
income, and transfers to or from individual pool years. A separate "amounts due to members" account for
each member is maintained and represents the result of favorable loss development of prior membership
years, investment income and gains on investment securities. Each member maintains its vested
ownership interest in these funds.
9
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2017 and 2016

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Funds allocated to each membership year earn investment income based upon the available funds for
that year. The investment income earned, along with the net increase or decrease in the fair value of
investments, for each year is credited to an "amount due to members" account for that year covering all
members of that membership year and is based upon that membership year's investment balance. When
the annual loss reserve analysis is prepared, an entry is made to adjust the loss reserves and related
expense of the individual membership year to the level indicated, with an offsetting entry made to
amounts due to members and members' balance expense. For each membership year that is five years
old or less, no transfer of funds will be made between amounts due to members and members' reserve.
For all membership years more than five years old, (i) any positive balance in amounts due to members
for an individual membership year is transferred to members' reserve, and (ii) any negative balance in
amounts due to members for an individual membership year will be eliminated by a transfer from
members' reserve.
Optional Deductible Credit Reserve Fund
Effective January 1, 2017, in order to encourage members to select higher deductibles, the Members
Optional Deductible Credit Reserve Fund (the "Fund") was established. Higher deductibles will promote
greater accountibility by members and ultimately reduce losses, benefiting not only individual members,
but the pool as a whole.
The Fund allows members, who elect an optional deductible above the pool minimum, to deposit the
optional deductible credit in a reserve account with IRMA. Members currently receive a deductible credit
against their contribution for choosing a deductible higher than the minimum deductible.
This Fund allows members at higher deductibles to pay their annual contribution up to the full amount,
instead of reducing it by the optional deductible credit. Any payment above the discounted contribution
amount can be deposited into the Fund for the member. Participation in the fund is voluntary for any
active member choosing this option. Member participation in the Fund in one year does not obligate a
member to contribute to future years. The funds remain accounted for separately by each member as a
claim reserve fund and not shared with the pool, and are unrestricted assets of the member. Funds earn
investment income at the same rate as IRMA's investments, which is allocated at the end of the fiscal
year. For investment allocations, the member deductible fund balance would be the average balance of
the four quarters as of the last day of March, June, September, and December. Funds can be withdrawn
quarterly in any amount as needed by the member.
APCC Reserve Loan Fund
In September of 2016, IRMA established the Arrest, Prosecution and Conviction Contingency (APCC)
Reserve Loan Fund to finance the defense of arrest, prosecution and conviction cases while the date for
the coverage determination is in flux in order to protect from inaccurate claim year determinations
prematurely. Since the accounts of IRMA are organized on the basis of seperate claim or membership
years, the determination of an accurate claim year is important to the membership. When the claim year
for eligible arrest, prosecution and conviction cases has been accurately determined, the APCC Reserve
Loan Fund would be reimbursed from the appropriate membership year. The establishment of this fund
will not preclude a supplemental assessment on a particular membership year should one become
necessary with the disposition of a case. This fund will finance the defense costs of eligible arrest,
prosecution and conviction cases, but will not be responsible for the indemnity reserves.
Income Taxes
IRMA provides an essential governmental function to its members as described in IRC section 115 and,
accordingly, the increase in its net position is exempt from federal and state income taxes. Therefore, the
accompanying financial statements do not include a provision for income taxes.
Excess Surplus Fund
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Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2017 and 2016

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
The excess surplus fund was created to allow members the flexibility to offset contributions for future
years, at the members' discretion or to request a check at quarterly intervals. IRMA estimates the amount
of excess surplus funds members will elect subsequent to the current year-end to be applied to the
subsequent year's contribution and reclassifies this amount to current liabilities at year-end. All remaining
credits will be available to offset future contributions or distribution and will earn investment income. A
separate excess surplus account for each member is maintained and represents each member's portion
of the fund. An interest income credit may be added to the fund each year, at the discretion of the Board.
Net Position
IRMA's net position is comprised of the following:
 Investment in capital assets - consists of capital assets net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by
any related debt, if any.
 Restricted - results when constraints placed on net position used are either externally imposed by
creditors, granters, contributors, and the like, or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation. At December 31, 2017 and 2016, IRMA has no restricted net position.
 Unrestricted - consists of net position that does not meet the criteria of the two preceding categories.
IRMA does not retain any total net position since its primary objective is to provide self-insurance
coverage and risk management services at a break-even level. Losses in any membership year are a
contractual obligation of the members of that respective membership year; a surplus in any
membership year will be transferred to the members' reserve fund. When the members' reserve fund
exceeds the established maximum, an interest income credit is declared and transferred to the excess
surplus fund.
Annual Membership Contributions
Initial contributions are determined in advance of each membership year based on the individual
member's five-year average revenue base as defined in the IRMA bylaws and on the funding needs of
the membership year. Annual membership contributions for the next fiscal year are generally assessed in
December of the preceding year. The contribution rates for 2017 and 2016 were $2.205, and $2.256, per
$100 of revenue base, respectively. The future contribution rate for 2018 is $1.996 per $100 of revenue
base. The amount billed in December 2017 and 2016 was $26,338,999 and $27,059,052, respectively,
for the following fiscal year. Contribution amounts received prior to the applicable membership year are
reported as unearned membership contribution revenue. Initial contributions are reported as revenues in
the membership year to which they apply.
Losses and Allocated Loss Adjustment Expenses Incurred
Each loss has a $2,500 per-occurrence deductible for both 2017 and 2016, which is paid by the
applicable member responsible for each claim. Beginning in 2005, members were given the option to
assume higher deductibles in exchange for a reduction in the annual contribution. IRMA retains and is
responsible for all payments over the member deductible up to maximum retention limits in place under
excess insurance policies. The maximum retention limits for both 2017 and 2016 were $450,000 for
property claims; $1,500,000 for workers' compensation claims; and $3,000,000 for general liability, auto
liability and public officials' liability claims.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2017 and 2016

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
The IRMA bylaws provide that in the event a series of losses should exceed the aggregate amount of
coverage provided by the risk management pool and the excess insurance, then the payment of such
excess amount would become the obligation of the members to a limit based on the initial annual
contribution. The obligation for payment of such excess by the pool members has been a limit of 130
percent of the initial annual contribution for both 2017 and 2016. Any amount in excess of this coverage
becomes the obligation of the member against whom the claim was made and perfected by judgment or
settlement. It is possible that the members could be individually responsible for their claims, to the extent
a claim exceeds IRMA's level of responsibility.
Unallocated Loss Adjustment Expenses Incurred
For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, approximately $804,000 and $693,000, respectively,
of claims administration costs were included in general and administrative operating expenses on the
statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position. These costs represent claim
administration costs not allocable to specific claims.
Excess Insurance Premiums
Excess insurance premiums represent the expense incurred for the purchase of excess insurance and
reinsurance on the property, general liability, auto liability, public officials' liability, and workers'
compensation coverages. Commercial insurers, from whom the excess insurance and reinsurance was
purchased, will pay claims in excess of IRMA's self-insured retention levels up to the policy limit. In 2017
and 2016, the policy limit for property losses is $250,000,000, the policy limit for general liability, auto
liability, and public officials' liability losses is $10,000,000, and the policy limit for workers' compensation
is the statutory limit for 2017 and 2016, respectively. In 2017 and 2016, IRMA also had clash coverage of
$2,000,000 for general liability, auto liability, and public officials' liability losses in order to provide
protection against multiple retention payments from single occurrences involving multiple members.
Starting January 1, 1989, IRMA could make payments on the member's behalf, up to the individual
coverage limits, out of the loss fund, for payment from the liability SIR which is capped at $5,000,000 per
member from 1989 to 1994, $6,000,000 per member from 1995 to 2005, $10,000,000 per member from
2006 to 2007, and $6,000,000 per member from 2008 to 2017. The financial statements are presented
after deduction for reinsurance ceded.
Reclassification
Certain 2016 amounts within the statement of cash flows have been reclassified to conform to the 2017
presentation.
Upcoming Accounting Pronouncements
In June 2017, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board issued GASB Statement No. 87, Leases,
which improves accounting and financial reporting for leases by governments. This statement requires
recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating
leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions
of the contract. It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that
leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this statement, a lessee is required to
recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize
a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources. IRMA is currently evaluating the impact this
standard will have on the financial statements when adopted. The provisions of this statement are
effective for IRMA's financial statements for the year ending June 30, 2021.
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Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Statement No. 85, Omnibus 2017, addresses practice issues that have been identified during
implementation and application of certain GASB Statements. This Statement addresses a variety of
topics including issues related to blending component units, goodwill, fair value measurement and
application, and postretirement benefits (pension and other postemployment benefits). The requirements
of this statement are effective for IRMA for the year ending December 31, 2018. Management is currently
evaluating the impact this statement may have on its financial statements.

Note 3 - Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosure
IRMA's approved investment policy, Chapter 30, Section 235/2 and Chapter 5, Section 220/15 of the
Illinois Compiled Statutes authorizes IRMA to make deposits/invest in commercial banks, obligations of
the U.S. Treasury and U.S. Agencies, obligations of States and their political subdivisions, credit union
shares, repurchase agreements (subject to limitations), commercial paper rated within the three highest
classifications by at least two standard rating services, the Illinois Funds Investment Pool, the Illinois
Metropolitan Convenience Fund, common stocks, investment grade corporate bonds, mutual funds,
commingled funds, and commercial real estate located in the State of Illinois.
A summary of IRMA's cash and cash equivalents and investments as of December 31, 2017 and 2016
are as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents:
Demand deposits
Illinois Funds Investment Pool
Illinois Metropolitan Convenience Fund
Northern Trust Institutional Diversified Assets Portfolio Fund

$

Total cash and cash equivalents
Investments:
Fixed income funds
Bank loan fund
Equity funds
Common stocks
Distressed and opportunities funds
Hedge fund
Real estate trust
Total investments
$

2017

2016

2,901,937 $
1,011
7,350
3,966,699

1,771,994
1,002
7,350
776,351

6,876,997

2,556,697

59,377,484
10,383,048
61,976,792
40,035,411
6,903,578
906,270
10,386,453

56,711,622
9,544,838
57,264,965
39,534,293
7,056,398
8,436,299
-

189,969,036

178,548,415

196,846,033 $

181,105,112

IRMA's fixed income funds are composed of the following investments:
 BlackRock Commingled TIPS Fund - Investment in a mutual fund that invests in high-quality,
government-issed securities that can offer a hedge against inflation.
 Western Assets Core Plus Fund - Investment in a mutual that invests in a variety of fixed income
securities.
 NHIT: Core Plus Fixed Income Trust - The fund's investment strategy seeks high total investment
return through a combination of current income and capital appreciation. It seeks to deliver 100-175
basis points of excess return over the benchmark.
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Note 3 - Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosure (Continued)
 NT Common Short Term Government Bond Index Fund-Lending - The fund invests in investmentgrade securities covering the 1-3 year portion of the Treasury and Agency sectors of the U.S. Bond
Market. The Fund may make limited use of interest rate futures and/or options for the purpose of
maintaining market exposure, and may participate in securities lending.
IRMA's bank loan fund consists of the followings investments:
 Crescent Senior Secured Floating Rate Loan Fund, LLC - Investment in a limited liability company
with a diversified portfolio consisting primarily of direct and indirect interests in non-investment grade
U.S. dollar denominated floating rate loans.
IRMA's equity funds are composed of the following investments:
 Northern Trust S&P 500 Index Fund - Investment in a mutual fund with an objective to approximate
the risk and return of the S&P 500 Index.
 Northern Trust EAFE Index Fund - Investment in a mutual fund with an objective to approximate the
overall performance of the MSCI Europe, Australasia and Far East (EAFE) Index.
 Lazard Emerging Markets Equity Portfolio - Investment in a mutual fund that invests primarily in equity
securities of non-U.S. companies in emerging market countries.
 Lazard Developing Markets Equity Portfolio - Investment in a mutual fund that invests primarily in
equity securities of non-U.S. companies in developing markets.
IRMA's common stocks, which include a diversified portfolio of publicly-traded U.S. common stocks, are
managed by Chicago Equity Partners and Kayne Anderson Rudnick with The Northern Trust Company
acting as custodian.
IRMA's distressed and opportunities funds are composed of the following investments:
 Siguler Guff Distressed Opportunities Funds Ill, IV, and V - Investment in limited partnerships that
invest in the securities and other interests of companies, structures or assets undergoing financial
distress, operating difficulties or restructuring.
 Siguler Guff Small Buyout Opportunities Funds I and II - Investment in limited partnerships that invest
in small buyout funds (funds capitalized with less than $250 million) and small-lower middle market
companies (companies with $3-$15 million of EBITDA) which are difficult for many investors to
access.
 Siguler Guff Distressed Real Estate Opportunities Fund - Investment in a limited partnership that
invests in various types of real property interests, including equity interests in commercial property,
commercial mortgages and commercial mortgage-backed securities, and the debt and equity
securities of real estate operating companies and real estate investment trusts.
 Siguler Guff BRIC Opportunities Fund Ill - Investment in a limited partnership that selectively invests in
the rapidly growing economies of Brazil, Russia, India and China, and other emerging markets with
attractive private equity characteristics.
IRMA's hedge fund consists of the following investments:
 EnTrust Capital Diversified Fund QP Ltd-Class C and X - Investments in a hedge funds that invest in a
fund of funds with a diversified portfolio of private investment entities and/or separately managed
accounts.
IRMA's real estate investment consists of the following:
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Note 3 - Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosure (Continued)
 Heitman America Real Estate Trust L.P. - Investment in a limited partnership specializing in real
estate investments throughout the United States with a particular focus on apartments, industrial,
office, retail, and self-storage.
IRMA's investment objective is to provide the assets and asset growth necessary to accomplish the goals
of the organization. The allocation of assets is recognized to be a primary determinant of IRMA's
investment performance. The asset allocation for IRMA's investments will be determined by identifying a
mix of assets that is expected to produce an accepted level of return in relation to the risk assumed.
Through aggressive management of the investments, it is IRMA's intent to provide a maximum rate of
return within its risk tolerance while providing sufficient liquidity to meet its cash flow needs. Each dollar
earned through investment income reduces the amount that the members must contribute to meet
IRMA's budgetary needs.
Interest Rate Risk
IRMA's investment policy does not limit the maturities of its investment portfolio. In order to guarantee
asset safety, IRMA diversifies investments to avoid incurring unreasonable risks from the practice of
concentrating investments in specific security types or durations.
As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, IRMA had the following fixed income and money market funds and
their respective weighted average maturities:
2017
Fair Value
Fixed income funds:
BlackRock Commingled TIPS
Fund
$
Western Assets Core Plus Fund
NHIT: Core Plus Fixed Income
Trust
NT Common Short Term
Government Bond Index
Fund-Lending
Cash equivalents:
Northern Trust Institutional
Diversified Assets Portfolio
Fund
Total

$

2016

Weighted
Average Maturity
(Years)

10,594,097
24,108,070

Not Available
13.8

24,582,589

10.3

92,728

3,966,699
63,344,183

Fair Value

$

Weighted
Average Maturity
(Years)

7,779,143
24,512,778

Not Available
11.40

24,397,992

8.62

Not Available

21,709

Not Available

2.0

776,351

0.13

$

57,487,973

The portfolio weighted average maturity for investment funds with an available weighted average maturity
was 11.28 and 9.86 for December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
Credit Risk
State law limits investments in corporate bonds to investment grade corporate bonds. Accordingly,
IRMA's policy is to limit investments in corporate bonds to investment grade only. In addition, IRMA's
policy is to limit mutual funds or commingled funds to those that are managed by an investment company
as defined and registered under the federal Investment Company Act of 1940 and registered under the
Illinois Securities Law of 1953 or an investment advisor as defined under the federal Investment Advisers
Act of 1940; has been in operation for at least five years; and has total net assets of $250,000,000 or
more. The credit ratings for fixed income, money market, and Rule 2a7-like pool funds as of December
31, 2017 and 2016, are as follows:
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Note 3 - Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosure (Continued)
2017
Investment Type

Fair Value

Fixed income funds:
BlackRock Commingled TIPS
Fund
$
Western Assets Core Plus Fund
NHIT: Core Plus Fixed Income
Trust
NT Common Short Term
Government Bond Index
Fund-Lending
Cash equivalents:
Illinois Funds Investment Pool
Illinois Metropolitan
Convenience Fund
Northern Trust Institutional
Diversified Assets Portfolio
Fund
Total Fair Value

$

2016

Standard &
Poors/Moody's

10,594,097
24,108,070

Not Rated
Not Rated

24,582,589

Fair Value

7,779,143
24,512,778

Not Rated
Not Rated

Not Rated

24,397,992

Not Rated

92,728

Not Rated

21,709

Not Rated

1,011

AAAm

1,002

AAAm

7,350

Not Rated

7,350

Not Rated

3,966,699
63,352,544

$

Standard &
Poors/Moody's

Aaamf

776,351
$

Aaamf

57,496,325

Concentration of Credit Risk
IRMA limits the amount it may invest in any one corporate bond to not exceed five percent of IRMA's total
investments. As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, IRMA did not have investments with any issuers that
exceeded five percent of IRMA's total investments.
Custodial Credit Risk
Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a financial institution failure, IRMA's
deposits may not be returned. Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the
failure of the counterparty, IRMA will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral
securities that are in the possession of a third party. It is IRMA's policy to require that all funds on deposit
in banks in excess of FDIC limits to be secured by some form of collateral. Direct investments issued by
the United States or an agency of the United States or insured by a third party insurer do not require
collateral. As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, IRMA's deposits were not subject to custodial credit risk
as they were either insured or collateralized with investments held by the bank in IRMA's name. At
December 31, 2017 and 2016, IRMA's investments were not exposed to custodial credit risk as they were
held in IRMA's name.
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Note 3 - Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosure (Continued)
Commitments
IRMA has entered into various subscription agreements to invest in certain funds. As of December 31,
2017, IRMA's remaining commitments were as follows:
Minimum
Required
Investment

Investment Fund
Siguler Guff Distressed Opportunities Fund III
Siguler Guff Distressed Opportunities Fund IV
Siguler Guff Distressed Opportunities Fund V
Siguler Guff Small Buyout Opportunities Fund I
Siguler Guff Small Buyout Opportunities Fund II
Siguler Guff Distressed Real Estate Opportunities Fund
Siguler Guff BRIC Opportunities Fund III
Total

Remaining
Commitment

$

1,500,000 $
1,500,000
2,000,000
1,500,000
1,500,000
2,000,000
2,000,000

45,000
127,500
1,201,000
66,000
180,000
150,000
215,000

$

12,000,000 $

1,984,500

Liquidity Risks
IRMA invests in various mutual and commingled funds, trusts, limited partnerships, and limited liability
companies. These investments may impose restrictions on the timing or payout of redemptions requested
by IRMA. These types of investments customarily have written notice requirements; however, some of
these investments may require up to 90 days written notice and/or may delay the timing of the payout.
IRMA's allocation of investments was planned to enable IRMA to meet all anticipated operating expenses
and claim payments.
Fair Value Measurements
Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset in an orderly transaction between
market participants. General accepted accounting principles require the use of valuation techniques that
are consistent with the market approach, the income approach, and/or the cost approach. Inputs to
valuation techniques refer to the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset.
Inputs may be observable, meaning those that reflect the reporting entity's own assumptions about the
assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset developed based on the best information
available in the circumstances. In that regard, a fair value hierarchy for valuation inputs is utilized that
gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and the lowest priority to
unobservable inputs. The fair value hierarchy is as follows:
Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets in active markets that the entity has the ability to
access as of the measurement date.
Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset, either
directly or indirectly. These might include quoted prices for similar assets in active markets, quoted prices
for identical or similar assets in markets that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are
observable (such as interest rates and yield curves, implied volatilities, credit risks, etc.) or inputs that are
derived principally from or corroborated by market data by correlation or other means.
Level 3: Significant unobservable inputs that reflect a reporting entity's own assumptions about the
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset.
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Note 3 - Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosure (Continued)
When IRMA changes its valuation inputs for measuring financial assets at fair value, either due to
changes in current market conditions or other factors, it may need to transfer those assets to another
level in the hierarchy based on the new inputs used. IRMA recognizes these transfers at the end of the
reporting period that the transfers occur. For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, there were
no changes in valuation methodologies or techniques.
The following information presents the methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair value of
IRMA's investments as of December 31, 2017 and 2016:
Fixed Income Funds:
 Western Assets Core Plus Fund - The fair values are determined using public quotations
 BlackRock Commingled TIPS Fund; NHIT: Core Plus Fixed Income Trust; NT Common Short Term
Government Bond Index Fund-Lending - The net asset value of the fund is used as a practical
expedient to determine fair value for these investments.
Bank Loan Fund:
 Crescent Senior Secured Floating Rate Loan Fund, LLC - The net asset value of the fund is used as a
practical expedient to determine fair value for these investments.
Equity Funds:
 Northern Trust S&P 500 Index Fund; Northern Trust EAFE Index Fund - The net asset value of the
fund is used as a practical expedient to determine fair value for these investments.
 Lazard Emerging Markets Equity Portfolio; Lazard Developing Markets Equity Portfolio - The fair
values are determined using public quotations.
Common Stocks:
 Chicago Equity Partners; Kayne Anderson Rudnick - The fair values are determined using public
quotations.
Distressed and Opportunities Funds:
 Siguler Guff Distressed Opportunities Funds Ill, IV, and V; Siguler Guff Small Buyout Opportunities
Funds I and II; Siguler Guff Distressed Real Estate Opportunities Fund; Siguler Guff BRIC
Opportunities Fund Ill - The net asset value is used as a practical expedient to determine fair value for
these investments.
Hedge Fund:
 EnTrust Capital Diversified Fund QP Ltd-Class C and Class X - The net asset value is used as a
practical expedient to determine fair value for these investments.
Certain investments that were measured at net asset value per share have not been classified in the fair
value hierarchy. The fair value amounts presented in this table are intended to permit reconciliation of the
fair value hierarchy to the line items presented in the statements of net position.
The following table sets forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the fair value of IRMA's financial
assets measured on a recurring basis as of December 31, 2017 and 2016:
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Note 3 - Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosure (Continued)
2017
Quoted Prices in
Significant
Active Markets Significant Other
Observable
Unobservable
for Identical
Inputs
Inputs
Assets
(Level 1)
(Level 2)
(Level 3)
Fixed Income Funds:
Western Assets Core Plus Fund $
Equity Funds:
Lazard Emerging Markets
Equity Portfolio
Lazard Developing Markets
Equity Portfolio
Common Stocks:
Managed by Chicago Equity
Partners
Managed by Kanye Anderson
Rudnick
Total assets in the fair value
hierarchy

24,108,070 $

-

$

-

Total
$

24,108,070

2,884,699

-

-

2,884,699

3,102,421

-

-

3,102,421

20,206,425

-

-

20,206,425

19,828,986

-

-

19,828,986

70,130,601

-

-

70,130,601

Investments measured at net
assets value

119,838,435

Total investments, at fair
value
$

70,130,601 $

-

$

-

$

2016
Quoted Prices in
Significant
Active Markets Significant Other
Observable
Unobservable
for Identical
Inputs
Inputs
Assets
(Level 1)
(Level 2)
(Level 3)
Fixed Income Funds:
Western Assets Core Plus Fund $
Equity Funds:
Lazard Emerging Markets
Equity Portfolio
Lazard Developing Markets
Equity Portfolio
Common Stocks:
Managed by Chicago Equity
Partners
Managed by Kanye Anderson
Rudnick
Investments measured at
net assets value

24,512,778 $

-

$

-

Total
$

24,512,778

2,253,368

-

-

2,253,368

2,197,991

-

-

2,197,991

20,025,326

-

-

20,025,326

19,508,967

-

-

19,508,967

68,498,430

-

-

68,498,430

Investments measured at net asset
value
Total investments, at fair
value
$

189,969,036

110,049,985
68,498,430 $
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Note 3 - Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosure (Continued)
The following table sets forth additional disclosures of IRMA's investments whose fair value is estimated
using net asset value per share as of December 31, 2017 and 2016:
Redemption
Frequency

Redemption
Notice Period

Other
Disclosures

7,779,143

Daily

2 days

(a)

24,582,589

24,397,992

Daily

None

(a)

92,728

21,709

Daily

None

(a)

10,383,048

9,544,838

Monthly

60 days

(b)

40,906,195

38,971,981

Daily

None

(c)

15,083,477

13,841,625

Daily

1 day

(c)

313,202

483,594

Not Available

Not Available

(d)

746,897

988,417

Not Available

Not Available

(d)

927,542

512,399

Not Available

Not Available

(d)

700,556

735,133

Not Available

Not Available

(d)

1,415,329

1,252,300

Not Available

Not Available

(d)

1,457,916

1,585,797

Not Available

Not Available

(d)

1,342,136

1,498,758

Not Available

Not Available

(d)

232,115

8,436,299

Quarterly

90 days

(e)

2017 Fair Value 2016 Fair Value
Fixed Income Funds:
BlackRock Commingled TIPS
Fund
$
NHIT: Core Plus Fixed Income
Trust
NT Common Short Term
Government Bond Index
Fund-Lending
Bank Loan Fund:
Crescent Senior Securing
Floating Rate Loan Fund,
LLC
Equity Funds:
Northern Trust S&P 500 Index
Fund
Northern Trust EAFE Index
Fund
Distressed and Opportunities
Funds:
Sigular Guff Distressed
Opportunities Fund III
Sigular Guff Distressed
Opportunities Fund IV
Sigular Guff Distressed
Opportunities Fund V
Siguler Guff Small Buyout
Opportunities Fund I
Siguler Guff Small Buyout
Opportunities Fund II
Sigular Guff Distressed Real
Estate Opportunities Fund
Sigular Guff BRIC
Opportunities Fund III
Hedge Fund:
EnTrust Capital Diversified
Fund QP Ltd-Class C
EnTrust Capital Diversified
Fund QP Ltd-Class X
Real Estate:
Heitman American Real Estate
Trust, L.P.
Total

$

10,594,097 $

674,155

-

Quarterly

90 days

(e)

10,386,453

-

Quarterly

Not Available

(f)

119,838,435 $

110,049,985

(a) The Fund's investment strategies have been previously disclosed in this footnote.
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Note 3 - Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosure (Continued)
(b) Crescent Capital will pursue the fund's investment objectives through investing primarily in
noninvestment grade U.S. Bank loans. Bank loans may take many forms including, without limitation,
term loans, revolvers, participations, derivative Bank loans products, including without limitation credit
default swaps and credit linked notes, unsecured Bank loans, second lien loans, debtor-in-possession
(DIP) loans and other Bank loan type products. The fund may also invest and trade to a limited extent in
public high yield, investment grade, foreign, and mezzanine obligations, equities, options and warrants to
the extent that Crescent Capital identifies opportunities that it believes will enhance the fund's investment
objectives.
Additional restrictions on redemptions include a 90 percent payout on aggregate redemptions over $10
million on business day one, with the remaining 10 percent paid once affiliated accounting period is
closed.
(c) To achieve its objective, the fund employs a replication technique which generally seeks to hold
each index constituent in its proportional index weight. The fund may make limited use of futures and/or
options for the purpose of maintaining equity exposure. This fund may not participate in securities
lending.
(d) Siguler Guff's funds are structured as closed-end limited partnerships that do not offer redemption
rights to their investors. Distributions are made to investors as proceeds are realized from underlying
investments. The following are the expected fund termination dates (by which proceeds are expected to
be returned to investors):
Expected Fund
Termination
Date
Siguler Guff Distressed Opportunities Fund Ill
Siguler Guff Distressed Opportunities Fund IV
Siguler Guff Distressed Opportunities Fund V
Siguler Guff Small Buyout Opportunities Fund I
Siguler Guff Small Buyout Opportunities Fund II
Siguler Guff Distressed Real Estate Opportunities Fund
Siguler Guff BRIC Opportunities Fund Ill

December 2018
March 2022
October 2027
December 2018
August 2023
July 2022
July 2023

(e) The Fund's objective is to seek above-average rates of return and long-term capital growth through
an investment in EnTrust Capital Diversified Fund Ltd. (the "Master Fund"), a fund of funds with a
diversified portfolio of private investment entities (the "Portfolios") and/or separately managed accounts
managed by investment managers selected by the Advisor. The Fund invests substantially all of its net
assets in the Master Fund, an international business company incorporated under the laws of the British
Virgin Islands on December 28, 2001, under a master-feeder arrangement. EnTrust Capital Diversified
Fund NQP Ltd. and three segregated portfolios of EnTrust Diversified Alpha Plus Fund SPC, including
The Enhanced Segregated Portfolio, EnTrust Russell 2000 Portable Alpha Segregated Portfolio and
EnTrust Euro Segregated Portfolio, also contribute substantially all their net assets to the Master Fund.
Shareholders have the right to redeem shares having a value of up to a maximum of 50 percent of the
NAV of their shares, with a 3 percent holdback, as of the last day of any calendar quarter, or any other
date determined by the Board of Directors in its sole discretion. A shareholder is required to provide not
less than 90 days' prior written notice, and the redemption date is the last business day of the first quarter
following the expiration of the notice period. If the shares being redeemed represent more than half of the
shares held by the shareholder, one half of the shares to be redeemed by the shareholder will be
redeemed on the first redemption date following the expiration of the 90-day notice. The remaining shares
for which the shareholder has made a redemption request will be redeemed on the next quarterly
redemption date. No redemption penalty will be charged for a redemption on a regular redemption date.
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Note 3 - Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosure (Continued)
(f) The Fund is organized as a perpetual-life, open-ended commingled fund for the objective and purpose
of creating high-quality, low risk, diversified porfolio of stabilized, income-producing real estate
investments.
All shares acquired are permitted to be redeemed on a quarterly basis. Outstanding redemption request
are accommodated each calendar quarter as liquid assets permit. To the extent that liquid assets are
insufficient during any calendar quarter to satisfy all outstanding redemption requests, redemptions will be
made on a pro rata basis as liquid assets become available.
The following table shows the calculation of the net increase (decrease) in the fair value of investments
during the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 using the aggregate method.
2017
Fair value at end of year
Add: Proceeds of investments sold or matured
Less: Cost of investments purchased
Less : Fair value at beginning of year

$

Net increase (decrease) in the fair value of investments

$

2016

189,969,036 $ 178,548,415
42,709,357
55,705,510
(29,262,794)
(54,730,826)
(178,548,415)
(165,967,887)
24,867,184 $

13,555,212

Note 4 - Capital Assets
A summary of changes in capital assets is as follows:
January 1, 2017

Additions

December 31,
2017

Deletions

Capital assets being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation

$

290,259 $
208,779

60,430 $
40,756

(135,199) $
(134,480)

215,490
115,055

Net capital assets

$

81,480 $

19,674 $

(719) $

100,435

January 1, 2016

Additions

December 31,
2016

Deletions

Capital assets being depreciated:
Less accumulated depreciation

$

273,920 $
216,105

54,059 $
30,394

(37,721) $
(37,721)

290,258
208,778

Net capital assets

$

57,815 $

23,665 $

-

81,480

$

Note 5 - Operating Leases
IRMA has a lease agreement for office space through December 2021. The lease requires monthly rental
payments ranging from $13,310 to $14,989 that increase incrementally during specified times over the
term of the agreement. IRMA accrued rent expense on the lease in an amount such that the total rent
expense under the lease will be recognized ratably over the 80-month term of the lease by the straightline method. Total costs recognized for this lease were $164,369 and $164,400 for the years ended
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
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As of December 31, 2017, the future rental commitments under this lease are due as follows:
Years Ending
December 31
2018
2019
2020
2021
Total

Amount
$

169,485
172,864
176,365
179,867

$

698,581

Note 6 - Loss and Loss Adjustment Expense Reserves
The following represents changes in those aggregate liabilities for IRMA during the years ended
December 31, 2017, 2016, and 2015 and is presented in total as IRMA offers only one property and
casualty contract for all lines of coverage:
2017
Unpaid losses and allocated loss adjustment expenses at
beginning of year
Incurred losses and allocated loss adjustment expenses:
Provision for covered events of the current year
Decrease in provision for covered events of prior years
Total incurred losses and allocated loss adjustment
expenses
Payments, net of recoveries:
Losses and allocated loss adjustment expenses attributable to
covered events of the current year
Losses and allocated loss adjustment expenses attributable to
covered events of prior years
Total payments, net of recoveries
Net unpaid losses and LAE as of December 31

2016

2015

$ 82,662,379 $ 76,725,478 $ 80,585,343
24,979,220
(1,757,942)

27,163,599
(670,658)

24,887,268
(1,482,194)

23,221,278

26,492,941

23,405,074

3,367,696

3,148,506

3,368,893

22,142,435

17,407,534

23,896,046

25,510,131

20,556,040

27,264,939

$ 80,373,526 $ 82,662,379 $ 76,725,478

As a result of changes in estimates of insured events in prior years, the provision for unpaid losses and
allocated loss adjustment expenses decreased by $1,757,942, $670,658, and $1,482,194 in 2017, 2016,
and 2015, respectively. The change in incurred losses was primarily attributable to new information
regarding claim development and litigation that became known during the year related to prior years'
claims.
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Note 7 - Members' Balances
The following table includes a rollforward of members' balances for the years ended December 31, 2017
and 2016:
Members'
Reserve
Account
Members' balance January 1, 2016
Distribution of excess surplus fund
Distribution to former members
Transfer between funds
Members' balances adjustments
Members' balance - December 31, 2016
Contribution to members' reserve
Establish optional deductible reserve
fund
Distribution of excess surplus fund
Distribution to former members
Transfer between funds
Rate stabilization
Other
Members' balances adjustments
Members' balance - December 31, 2017
Current portion
Long-term portion

Optional
APCC
Amounts Due Deductible
Credit
Reserve Loan to Members
Excess
Reserve Fund Surplus Fund
Fund
Account

$ 40,647,206 $
(721,967)
(7,839,231)
10,834,471
42,920,479
540,038
(1,005,892)
(4,562,235)
(1,500,000)
(93,503)
27,333,544

$ 31,855,997 $
3,000,000
(8,018,194)
-

-

3,000,000

-

23,837,803

-

(6,185,795)
-

242,219
29,264
-

Subtotal

Amounts Due
from
Members

Total Member'
Balances

$ 24,281,627 $ 96,784,830 $ (5,044,392) $
(4,835,360)
(4,835,360)
(721,967)
11,575,313
(1,282,112)
1,282,112
10,834,471
31,021,580
(6,363,756)
9,029,616
-

100,779,862
540,038
242,219
(6,363,756)
(1,005,892)
(1,500,000)
(93,503)
27,040,561

(3,762,280)
1,689,150
-

91,740,439
(4,835,360)
(721,967)
10,834,471
97,017,583
540,038
242,219
(6,363,756)
(1,005,892)
(1,500,000)
(93,503)
27,040,561

$ 63,632,431 $

3,000,000 $ 17,652,008 $

271,483 $ 33,687,440 $119,639,529 $ (2,073,130) $ 115,877,250

$ 63,632,431 $

3,000,000 $ 17,652,008 $

4,290,906
271,483 $ 29,396,534 $119,639,529 $ (2,073,130) $ 115,877,250

Note 8 - Risk Management
IRMA is exposed to various risks of loss related to property loss, torts, errors and omissions, and
employee injuries (workers' compensation) as well as medical benefits provided to employees.
IRMA, along with other members consisting of municipalities and special districts, has formed an
association under the Illinois Intergovernmental Cooperations Statute to pool its risk management needs.
IRMA is a member of the pool which it administers.

Note 9 - Defined Benefit Pension Plan
Plan Description
IRMA's defined benefit pension plan for employees provides retirement and disability benefits,
postretirement increases and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. IRMA's plan is managed
by the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF), the administrator of an agent multi-employer public
pension fund. A summary of IMRF's pension benefits is provided below in the "Benefits Provided" section.
Details of all benefits are available from IMRF. Benefit provisions are established by statute and may only
be changed by the General Assembly of the State of Illinois. IMRF issues a publicly available
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report that includes financial statements, detailed information about the
pension plan's fiduciary net position, and required supplementary information. The report is available for
download at www.imrf.org.
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Note 9 - Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)
Benefits Provided
A person employed by IRMA in a position normally requiring performance of duty for 1,000 hours or more
in the 12 months following the employee's date of hire must participate in IMRF. IMRF has three benefit
plans. The vast majority of IMRF members participate in the Regular Plan (RP). All of IRMA's eligible
employees participate in IMRF's Regular Plan. All three IMRF benefit plans have two tiers. Employees
hired before January 1, 2011, are eligible for Tier 1 benefits. Tier 1 employees are vested for pension
benefits when they have at least eight years of qualifying service credit. Tier 1 employees who retire at
age 55 (at reduced benefits) or after age 60 (at full benefits) with eight years of service are entitled to an
annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, in an amount equal to 1.66 percent of the final rate of
earnings for the first 15 years of service credit, plus 2 percent for each year of service credit after 15
years to a maximum of 75 percent of their final rate of earnings. The final rate of earnings is the highest
total earnings during any consecutive 48 months within the last 10 years of service, divided by 48. Under
Tier 1, the pension is increased by 3 percent of the original amount on January 1 every year after
retirement.
Employees hired on or after January 1, 2011, are eligible for Tier 2 benefits. For Tier 2 employees,
pension benefits vest after ten years of service. Participating employees who retire at age 62 (at reduced
benefits) or after age 67 (at full benefits) with ten years of service are entitled to an annual retirement
benefit, payable monthly for life, in an amount equal to 1.66 percent of the final rate of earnings for the
first 15 years of service credit, plus 2 percent for each year of service credit after 15 years to a maximum
of 75 percent of their final rate of earnings. The final rate of earnings is the highest total earnings during
any 96 consecutive months within the last 10 years of service, divided by 96. Under Tier 2, the pension is
increased on January 1 every year after retirement, upon reaching age 67, by the lesser of 3 percent of
the original pension amount, or 1/2 of the increase in the Consumer Price Index of the original pension
amount.
Employees Covered by Benefit Terms
As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the following members were covered by the benefit terms:
2017
Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits
Inactive plan members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits
Active plan members
Total

2016
14
11
18

11
9
16

43

36

Contributions
As set by statute, IRMA's Regular Plan Members are required to contribute 4.5 percent of their annual
covered salary. The statute requires employers to contribute the amount necessary, in addition to
member contributions, to finance the retirement coverage of its own employees. IRMA's annual
contribution rates for calendar year 2017 and 2016 were 13.76 percent and 14.39 percent, respectively.
For the fiscal years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, IRMA contributed $237,657 and $236,554,
respectively, to the plan. IRMA also contributes for disability benefits, death benefits, and supplemental
retirement benefits, all of which are pooled at the IMRF level. Contribution rates for disability and death
benefits are set by IMRF's Board of Trustees, while the supplemental retirement benefits rate is set by
statute.
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Note 9 - Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)
Net Pension Liability
IRMA's net pension liability was measured as of December 31, 2016 and 2015. The total pension liability
used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. For
purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the
IMRF and additions to/deductions from the IMRF's fiduciary net position have been determined on the
same basis as they are reported by the IMRF. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of
employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.
Investments are reported at fair value. Additional disclosures about the elements of IMRF's financial
statements can be found in their report.
Actuarial Assumptions
The following are the methods and assumptions used to determine total pension liability for the
measurement dates of December 31, 2016 and 2015:
 The Actuarial Cost Method used was Entry Age Normal.
 The Asset Valuation Method used was Market Value of Assets.
 The Price Inflation Rate was assumed to be 2.75 percent in both years.
 Salary increases were expected to be 3.75 percent to 14.50 percent, including inflation for both years.
 The Investment Rate of Return was assumed to be 7.50 percent in both years.
 Projected Retirement Age was from the experience-based table of rates, specific to the type of
eligibility condition, last updated for the 2014 valuation according to an experience study from years
2011 to 2013.
 The IMRF-specific rates for mortality (for non-disabled retirees) were developed from the RP-2014
Blue Collar Health Annuitant Mortality Table with adjustments to match current IMRF experience.
 For Disabled Retirees, an IMRF-specific mortality table was used with fully generational projection
scale MP-2014 (base year 2012). The IMRF-specific rates were developed from the RP-2014
Disabled Retirees Mortality Table, applying the same adjustments that were applied for nondisabled
lives.
 For Active Members, an IMRF-specific mortality table was used with fully generational projection scale
MP-2014 (base year 2012). The IMRF-specific rates were developed from the RP-2014 Employee
Mortality Table with adjustments to match current IMRF experience.
There were no changes in assumptions at December 31, 2016.
Subsequent to December 31, 2017, IRMA received the actuarial report and related net pension liability
estimate measured as of December 31, 2017. IRMA estimates that its net pension liability will decrease
to approximately $315,518 as of that date.
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a buildingblock method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net
of pension plan investment expense, and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These
ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future
real rates of return to the target asset allocation percentage and adding expected inflation. The target
allocation and best estimates of geometric real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized
in the following table:
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Note 9 - Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)
Asset Class

Portfolio Target
Percentage

Long-Term
Expected Real
Rate of Return

38.00 %
17.00
27.00
8.00
9.00
1.00

7.39 %
7.59
3.00
6.00
2.75-8.15
2.25

Domestic equity
International equity
Fixed income
Real estate
Alternative investments
Cash equivalents

Single Discount Rate
A single discount rate of 7.50 percent was used to measure the total pension liability. The projection of
cash flow used to determine this single discount rate assumed that the plan members' contributions will
be made at the current contribution rate, and that employer contributions will be made at rates equal to
the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates and the member rate. The single
discount rate reflects:
1. The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments (during the period in which the
fiduciary net position is projected to be sufficient to pay benefits), and
2. The tax-exempt municipal bond rate based on an index of 20-year general obligation bonds with an
average AA credit rating (which is published by the Federal Reserve) as of the measurement date (to the
extent that the contributions for use with the long-term expected rate of return are not met).
Based on the above assumptions, the plan's fiduciary net position and future contributions will be
sufficient to finance all benefit payments to current plan members. As such, the discount rate which is
equal to the long-term expected rate of return has been applied to all benefit payments for the liability
calculation.
The following shows the components of IRMA's annual pension liability and related plan fiduciary net
position for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016:
Total Pension
Liability (A)

Changes in Net Pension Liability
Balance at December 31, 2015
Changes for the year:
Service cost
Interest on the total pension liability
Differences between expected and actual
experience of the total pension liability
Contributions - Employer
Contributions - Employees
Net investment income
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee
contributions
Other (net transfer)

$

$
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6,309,694 $
186,373
471,862

Net changes
Balance at December 31, 2016

Plan Fiduciary
Net Pension
Net Position (B) Liability (A) - (B)
5,720,823 $
-

588,871
186,373
471,862

63,376
-

211,652
75,145
28,764

63,376
(211,652)
(75,145)
(28,764)

(222,774)
-

(222,774)
(34,401)

34,401

498,837

58,386

440,451

6,808,531 $

5,779,209 $

1,029,322
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Note 9 - Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)
Total Pension
Liability (A)

Changes in Net Pension Liability
Balance at December 31, 2016
Changes for the year:
Service cost
Interest on the total pension liability
Differences between expected and actual
experience of the total pension liability
Contributions - Employer
Contributions - Employees
Net investment income
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee
contributions
Other (net transfer)

$

6,808,531 $

5,779,209 $

192,539
507,870

Net changes
Balance at December 31, 2017

Plan Fiduciary
Net Pension
Net Position (B) Liability (A) - (B)

$

-

1,029,322
192,539
507,870

123,411
-

236,553
101,194
392,921

123,411
(236,553)
(101,194)
(392,921)

(266,406)
-

(266,406)
73,407

(73,407)

557,414

537,669

19,745

7,365,945 $

6,316,878 $

1,049,067

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate
The following presents the plan's net pension liability, calculated using a single discount rate of 7.50
percent, as well as what the plan's net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a single
discount rate that is 1 percent lower or 1 percent higher:
1% Decrease
(6.50%)
December 31, 2017 Net Pension Liability
December 31, 2016 Net Pension Liability

$

Current Discount
(7.50%)

2,024,462 $
1,939,681

1,049,067 $
1,029,322

1% Increase
(8.50%)
238,959
273,942

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related
to Pensions
For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, IRMA recognized pension expense of $319,140 and
$385,513, respectively. At December 31, 2017 and 2016, IRMA reported deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:
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Note 9 - Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)
2017
Deferred
Outflows of
Resources
Deferred amounts to be recognized
in pension expense in future
periods:
Differences between expected
and actual experience
$
Changes in assumptions
Net difference between
projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investments
Subtotal
Pension contributions made
subsequent to measurement date
Total deferred amounts
related to pensions

$

2016
Deferred
Outflows of
Resources

Deferred Inflows
of Resources

236,245 $
117,755

-

307,718

$

Deferred Inflows
of Resources

191,206 $
167,054

-

-

366,300

-

661,718

-

724,560

-

237,657

-

236,554

-

899,375 $

-

961,114 $

-

$

At December 31, 2017 and 2016, $237,657 and $236,554, respectively, was included in deferred
outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from employer contributions subsequent to the
measurement date that will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in subsequent
reporting years.
Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions will be recognized in pension expense in future periods as follows:
December 31, 2017
Deferred
Deferred Inflows
Outflows of
Resources
of Resources

Year Ending December 31
2017
2019
2019
2020
Total

$

232,201 $
232,200
161,732
35,585

-

$

661,718 $

-

Payable to the Pension Plan
At December 31, 2017 and 2016, IRMA reported a payable of $19,429 and $27,912 for the outstanding
amount of contributions to the plan required for the year ended December 31, 2017.
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Note 10 - Compensated Absences
IRMA accounts for compensated absences (i.e. unused vacation) for IRMA employees in accordance
with its internal policy. An employee may only carry up to their maxium limit at any given time. As such, it
is reported as a current liability.
Activity in IRMA's accrued vacation liability during the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 is as
follows:
Year Ended December 31
2017
2016
Balance - Beginning of year
Earned
Used

$

89,066 $
129,307
(106,118)

98,210
127,427
(136,571)

Balance - End of year

$

112,255 $

89,066
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Schedule of Changes in the Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios
Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency
Last Three Fiscal Years
Measurement Date
December, 31
2016
Total Pension Liability
Service cost
Interest
Differences between expected and actual experience
Changes in assumptions
Benefit payments, including refunds

$

Net Change in Total Pension Liability

Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Contributions - Employer
Contributions - Employees
Net investment income
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee
contributions
Other (net transfer)

186,373 $
471,862
63,376
(222,774)

December, 31
2014
199,350
406,304
222,718
265,652
(204,089)

557,414

498,837

889,935

6,808,531

6,309,694

5,419,759

$

7,365,945 $

6,808,531 $

6,309,694

$

236,553 $
101,194
392,921

211,652 $
75,145
28,764

190,945
73,893
326,679

Total Pension Liability - Beginning of year
Total Pension Liability - End of year

192,539 $
507,870
123,411
(266,406)

December, 31
2015

Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning of year

(266,406)
73,407

(222,774)
(34,401)

(204,089)
8,383

537,669

58,386

395,811

5,779,209

5,720,823

5,325,012

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - End of year

$

6,316,878 $

5,779,209 $

5,720,823

Net Pension Liability - Ending

$

1,049,067 $

1,029,322 $

588,871

85.76 %

84.88 %

90.67 %

1,643,881 $

1,662,621 $

63.82 %

61.91 %

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of Total
Pension Liability
Covered Employee Payroll

$

Net Pension Liability as a Percentage of Covered
Employee Payroll

1,634,804
36.02 %

Note: GASB Statement No. 68 requires ten years of information to be presented in this table. However, until a full
10-year trend is compiled, IRMA will present information for those years for which information is available.
Note: In determining total pension liability measured at December 31, 2014, there was a change in in
assumptions used which included (1) the use of updated mortality tables, (2) a decrease in the range of salary
increases, and (3) a decrease in the inflation rate. There were no changes in assumptions for the total pension
liability measured at December 31, 2016 and 2015.

See notes to required supplemental information.
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Schedule of Employer Contributions
Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency
Last Four Fiscal Years
Year Ended December 31
Calendar Year Ended December 31
2017

2016

2015

2014

Actuarially determined contribution
Actual contribution

$

237,657 $
237,657

236,554 $
236,554

211,652 $
211,652

Contribution excess (deficiency)

$

-

-

-

Covered valuation payroll

$

Actual contribution as a percentage of
covered vacation payroll

$

$

184,197
190,945

$

6,748
1,577,029

1,727,160 $

1,643,881 $

1,662,621 $

13.76 %

14.39 %

12.73 %

12.11 %

Note: GASB Statement No. 68 requires ten years of information to be presented in this table. However, until a full
10-year trend is compiled, IRMA will present information for those years for which information is available.

See notes to required supplemental information.
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Pension Information
Actuarial valuation information relative to the determination of contributions*:
Valuation date

Actuarilly determined contribution rates are calculated as of December 31
each year, which are 12 months prior to the beginning of the fiscal year in
which contributions are reported.

Methods and assumptions used to determine 2017 contribution rates:
Actuarial cost method
Amortization method
Remaining amortization period
Asset valuation method
Wage growth
Price inflation
Salary increases
Investment rate of return
Retirement age
Mortality

Other information

Aggregate entry age = normal
Level percentage of payroll, closed
10-year rolling period
Five-year smoothed market, 20 percent corridor
3.5 percent
2.75 percent, approximate; no explicit price inflation assumption is used in
valuation
3.75 percent to 14.50 percent, including inflation
7.50 percent
Experience-based table of rates that are specific to the type of eligibility
condition. Last updated for the 2014 valuation pursuant to an experience
study of the period 2011 to 2013
For non-disabled retirees, an IMRF specific mortality table was used with
fully generational projection scale MP-2014 (base year 2012). The IMRF
specific rates were developed from the RP-2014 Blue Collar Health
Annuitant Mortality Table with adjustments to match current IMRF
experience. For disabled retirees, an IMRF specific mortality table was
used with fully generational projection scale MP-2014 (base year 2012).
The IMRF specific rates were developed from the RP-2014 Disabled
Retirees Mortality Table applying the same adjustment that were applied
for non-disabled lives. For active members, an IMRF specific mortality
table was used with fully generational projection scale MP-2014 (base
year 2012). The IMRF specific rates were developed from the RP-2014
Employee Mortality Table with adiustments to match current IMRF
experience.
There were no benefit changes during the year.
* Based on valuation assumptions used in December 31, 2015; note two
year lag between valuation and rate setting.
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Schedule of Claims Development, Earned Assessments and Unallocated
Expenses - Unaudited
December 31, 2017
Claims Development Information
The table on the following page illustrates how the IRMA earned revenue (net of excess insurance) and
investment income compared to related costs of loss (net of loss assumed by excess insurers) and other
expenses assumed by the IRMA as of the end of each of the last 10 years. The rows of the table are defined as
follows:
1.

This line shows the total of each fiscal year’s gross earned contribution revenue and investment revenue,
contribution revenue coded to excess insurers, and net earned contribution revenue and reported
investment revenue.

2.

This line shows each fiscal year’s other operating costs of the IRMA, including overhead and claims
expense not allocable to individual claims.

3.

This line shows the IRMA’s gross incurred claims and allocated claim adjustment expenses, claims
assumed by excess insurers, and net incurred claims and allocated adjustment expenses (both paid and
accrued) as originally reported at the end of the first year in which the event that triggered coverage under
the contract occurred (called policy year).

4.

This section of 10 rows shows the cumulative net amounts paid as of the end of successive years for each
policy year.

5.

This line shows the latest re-estimated amount of claims assumed by excess insurers as of the end of the
current year for each accident year.

6.

This section of 10 rows shows how each policy year’s net incurred claims increased or decreased as of the
end of successive years. This annual re-estimation results from new information received on known claims,
re-evaluation of existing information on known claims, as well as emergence of new claims not previously
known.

7.

This line compares the latest re-estimated net incurred claims amount to the amount originally established
(line 3) and shows whether this latest estimate of net claims cost is greater or less than originally thought.

As data for individual policy years matures, the correlation between original estimates and re-estimated amounts
is commonly used to evaluate the accuracy of incurred claims currently recognized in less mature policy years.
The columns of the table show data for successive policy years.

See notes to required supplemental information.

35

129

Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency

Required Supplemental Information
Schedule of Claims Development, Earned Assessments and Unallocated Expenses - Unaudited
(Continued)
December 31, 2017
Policy Year Ended December 31
1.

Required contributions and investment income:
Earned
Ceded

3.

4.

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

40,548,397 $
2,916,484

38,373,241 $
2,776,782

33,506,399 $
2,452,227

33,174,004 $
2,611,204

33,121,779 $
2,628,671

30,250,172 $
2,572,713

28,246,725 $
2,600,373

30,754,326 $
2,565,446

30,781,796
2,588,659

24,589,747

37,631,913

35,596,459

31,054,172

30,562,800

30,493,108

27,677,459

25,646,352

28,188,880

28,193,137

Expenses other than allocated claim adjustment
expenses

2,863,032

2,844,876

3,689,489

3,766,260

3,664,624

4,118,282

4,144,593

3,917,792

4,562,120

4,731,499

Estimated claims and allocated claim adjustment
expenses - End of policy year:
Incurred
Ceded

29,334,883
-

28,185,273
-

29,536,582
-

28,293,902
-

24,919,310
-

23,134,452
-

23,869,952
-

24,887,268
-

27,163,599
-

24,979,220
-

29,334,883

28,185,273

29,536,582

28,293,902

24,919,310

23,134,452

23,869,952

24,887,268

27,163,599

24,979,220

5,310,233
12,823,945
18,121,702
20,683,187
22,995,748
23,810,974
24,831,974
24,307,797
24,584,976
24,672,606

4,147,887
9,232,423
12,977,328
14,896,573
16,486,593
17,731,547
20,069,926
21,362,898
21,582,952
-

3,911,365
10,051,545
14,022,196
16,540,400
18,221,034
21,596,585
22,487,112
23,045,876
-

3,736,347
8,707,575
11,602,295
13,432,449
17,995,909
19,460,991
19,735,794
-

2,889,776
6,753,344
9,984,901
12,025,973
13,613,847
14,875,302
-

2,714,138
7,718,561
11,690,930
15,225,625
18,276,053
-

3,330,406
8,202,861
11,754,892
14,583,682
-

3,368,893
7,141,952
10,495,909
-

3,193,772
10,653,030
-

3,628,301
-

Net
Cumulative paid claims and allocated claim
adjustment expenses:
End of policy year
One year later
Two years later
Three years later
Four years later
Five years later
Six years later
Seven years later
Eight years later
Nine years later

$

2009

27,623,051 $
3,033,304

Net
2.

2008

5.

Re-estimated ceded claims and expenses

6.

Re-estimated incurred claims and allocated claim
adjustment expenses:
End of policy year
One year later
Two years later
Three years later
Four years later
Five years later
Six years later
Seven years later
Eight years later
Nine years later

29,334,883
29,689,687
29,043,819
28,346,048
27,744,151
28,835,293
28,957,762
26,051,363
25,878,647
25,909,487

28,185,273
25,568,277
22,696,105
20,715,662
22,693,723
23,979,811
24,676,263
24,961,416
25,130,185
-

29,536,582
28,028,390
25,765,322
24,080,188
23,989,252
26,129,307
25,044,809
25,418,253
-

28,293,902
23,967,063
23,413,003
22,738,561
23,380,238
22,132,879
21,654,039
-

24,919,310
22,150,123
20,460,597
19,225,718
19,114,698
18,608,691
-

23,134,452
21,303,527
21,828,687
23,321,319
23,004,651
-

23,896,952
23,370,282
22,428,741
21,329,608
-

24,887,268
22,720,983
22,985,318
-

27,208,865
29,641,961
-

Increase (decrease) in estimated incurred claims
and allocated claim adjustment expenses
subsequent to initial policy year end

3,425,396

3,055,088

4,118,329

6,639,863

6,310,619

129,801

2,540,344

1,901,950

(2,478,362)

7.

-

-

-

-
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-

-

-

-

-

-

24,979,220
-

-

Other Supplemental Information
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Other Supplemental Information
Schedule of Actual and Budget (Budgetary Basis)
Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016
Original
Budget
Revenue
Annual membership contributions
Other

Final Amended
Budget

(Under) Over
Final Amended
Budget

Actual

$ 27,059,052 $ 27,489,616 $ 27,489,616 $
26,000
26,000
26,468

Total revenue

468

27,085,052

27,515,616

27,516,084

468

2,600,222
76,454
276,026
384,223
298,460
295,682
22,400
5,000

2,600,222
76,454
276,026
384,223
298,460
295,682
22,400
5,000

2,572,516
49,973
270,955
380,136
290,407
235,721
19,008
-

22,413,695
2,562,890

22,844,259
2,562,890

24,298,499
2,588,659

1,454,240
25,769

28,935,052

29,365,616

30,705,874

1,340,258

Operating revenues less than operating
expenses

(1,850,000)

(1,850,000)

(3,189,790)

(1,339,790)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Interest and dividends
Net increase in fair value of investments
Members' balances revenues

1,850,000
-

1,850,000
-

295,553
2,970,159
(75,922)

(1,554,447)
2,970,159
(75,922)

1,850,000

1,850,000

3,189,790

1,339,790

Expenses
Personal services
Other personnel services
Commodities
Contractual services
Education/incentives
Information technology
Capital outlay
Contingency
Self-insured loss fund
Commercial insurance services
Total expenses

Total

(27,706)
(26,481)
(5,071)
(4,087)
(8,053)
(59,961)
(3,392)
(5,000)

Revenues in excess of expenses

-

-

-

-

Fund balances/Net position - Beginning of
year

-

-

-

-

Fund balances/Net position - End of year

$

-

38

132

$

-

$

-

$

-
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INTERGOVERNMENTAL RISK
MANAGEMENT AGENCY
The Risk Management Solution for Local Government

MEMORANDUM
TO:

Administration & Finance Committee

FROM:

Rita Boserup, Director of Financial Services & Administration

DATE:

May 14, 2018

RE:

Revenue Base Deduction – Bylaw Change

Action Requested: Approve an amendment to the Bylaws to provide three deductions to the
revenue base.
Background: Revenue base deductions and exclusions started around 1991 and are allowed
for certain items that do not expose the member to significant risk. After reviewing the 2018
revenue bases from our two newest large members, we are recommending 3 new deductions,
which would not reduce or increase the overall contribution to IRMA but would adjust the
amounts paid by each member.
Discussion: The IRMA contribution formula relies on revenue as the denominator. Calculation
of a member’s revenue is provided in Section 3 of the IRMA Bylaws, which outline 13
deductions to the revenue base We are recommending three additional deductions: a storm
water processing charge; interest expense deduction for water/sewer funds and employee
contributions to health insurance costs. The storm water processing and health insurance
deductions are recommended due to limited or no exposure for IRMA, and the interest expense
deduction to be consistent across all member funds.
Storm Water Fees:
Currently, Section 3.03 provides for a deduction for water/sewer sales, stating: “Fifty percent
(50%) of the revenue from the sale of water and sewer services or electric service distribution.”
Similar to water/sewer sales, storm water fees are not directly linked to a high exposure, which
is why the 50% deduction makes sense.
Interest Expense Deduction for Water/Sewer Funds:
Section (iv) allows for the deduction of interest expense for all funds except for water/sewer
funds stating: “Interest expenditures or expenses in funds other than water and sewer or electric
service distribution funds.” There isn’t a good reason why these two funds are excluded from
the interest expense deduction, so this section is adjusted to allow the deduction for all fund
types.
Update from the AFC-we believe that the deduction was not allowed in these two funds because
of the 50% revenue deduction already being allowed in the funds. The bylaw language has
been changed to remove this deduction from the Storm Water Fund also, assuming the prior
item passes.
Employee Contributions to Health Insurance Funds:
Many IRMA members charge a percent of their health insurance costs to employees. The
payments from employees should not be included in the revenue base. Section (vi) is changed
to reflect this exclusion.
Recommendation: Approve the amendment to the Bylaws.
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Memorandum to Administration & Finance Committee
Revenue Base Deduction – Bylaw Change
May 14, 2018
Page 2

Administration and Finance Committee 5/23/18: The AFC discussion of this topic was fairly
extensive, highlighting that municipalities collect storm water revenues in different ways, such
as a charge on a water bill, or as part of the property tax and not through an explicit storm water
fee. The AFC recommended including “charges” in addition to “fees” in order to assure this
deduction is equitably available. With respect to the revision related to interest expenditures or
expenses, the AFC discussed that this provision is necessary because of the deduction
provided in (i) and therefore recommended that the language simply reference the deduction
provided in (i). Finally, the AFC supported the addition of the health insurance contribution
language in (vi) with no revision.
/RB
Attachment
G:\Committees\Administration & Finance Committee\2018\5-23-18\Cover Memo Revenue Base Revisions-2018.Doc
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INTERGOVERNMENTAL RISK MANAGEMENT AGENCY
CONTRACT AND BYLAWS
Section 1.01– Revenue Base
A MEMBER's Annual Contribution to IRMA for any fiscal year of IRMA shall be based
upon the following: the average of the most recent five years of "Revenue Base" (as hereinafter
defined) of that MEMBER. For purposes of determining the amount of the Annual Contribution,
the "Revenue Base" shall mean the total income of the MEMBER from all sources based on the
MEMBER’s fund financial statements, with the following exclusions or deductions:
(i)

Fifty percent (50%) of the revenue from the sale of water, and sewer services
services, storm water fees/charges, or electric service distribution;

(ii)

Tax revenue for the capital costs of water and sewer or electric distribution
systems, which is passed through to other governmental bodies;

(iii)

Bond proceeds and borrowings;

(iv)

Interest expenditures or expenses in funds other than those with revenues
eligible for the deduction provided above in (i).

water and sewer or electric

service distribution funds;
(v)

Revenues of a municipal library governed by a Municipal Library Board pursuant
to the Local Library Act, Chapter 75 of the Illinois Compiled Statutes, where the
MEMBER has elected in writing at least ninety (90) days before the start of a
fiscal year to exclude such municipal library from IRMA coverage;

(vi)

Interest income of and employee contributions to police or fire pension funds, or
health insurance funds, when these amounts are recorded as revenue;

(vii)

Ninety percent of payments by a MEMBER for services provided by an
independent contractor to residents of the MEMBER for garbage, refuse and
trash collections when the independent contractor indemnifies the MEMBER and
any contract entered into or renewed after May 1, 2014 contains IRMA’s
suggested indemnity language or other indemnity language that has been
approved in writing by IRMA;

(viii)

Tax Increment Financing (TIF) refunds of surplus, which were reported as
revenue to IRMA;

1
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INTERGOVERNMENTAL RISK MANAGEMENT AGENCY
CONTRACT AND BYLAWS
(ix)

Revenues from refunds and credits from IRMA; and

(x)

Payments made to another MEMBER where (1) the payment or payments to
such MEMBER exceeds $5,000, and (2) the payee MEMBER reports the
payment as revenue to IRMA; however, in the case of payments made to another
IRMA MEMBER for water and/or sewer services, only 50% of such payments
may be deducted.

(xi)

Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the case of a MEMBER who is a special
governmental service district whose primary purpose is the production and sale
of water and/or sewer treatment, then: (1) all of the revenue from the sale of
water and sewer services shall be included in determining the total income of
such MEMBER for purposes of determining the Revenue Base, and (2) with
respect to subsection (iv) above, all of the interest expenditures or expenses will
be deducted in determining the Revenue Base.

(xii)

Proceeds from the sale of capital assets not to exceed the original cost of the
asset.

(xiii)

Ninety percent of the amount paid by the member to independent contractors or
other governmental entities (Service Provider) when the following conditions are
met:
(a) The intent is to transfer the risk to the Service Provider and the contract
contains IRMA’s suggested indemnity language or other indemnity language
that has been approved in writing by IRMA.
(b) The contract is not for construction.
(c) The total value of the contract is more than 5% of the members’ revenue
base at the time of application for deduction.
(d) IRMA has approved in writing the request for a revenue base deduction at the
time contract goes into effect.

The Revenue Base of each MEMBER shall be based upon the financial statements of
the MEMBER submitted to IRMA pursuant to Section 3.09 hereof. IRMA shall annually prepare

2
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INTERGOVERNMENTAL RISK MANAGEMENT AGENCY
CONTRACT AND BYLAWS
a written report setting forth the proposed Revenue Base of each MEMBER and shall send such
report to each MEMBER. If a MEMBER desires to contest the determination of its Revenue
Base, it shall appeal such decision in the manner provided in Section 4.04 of this Contract and
Bylaws. If as member changes its fiscal year, both the short year and the following year will be
averaged together to come up with the revenue base. For example, a 4/30 year end member
switching to a calendar year would have an eight month financial report ending 12/31 and a
subsequent full year financial report ending 12/31.

A revenue base worksheet would be

prepared for each financial report, the totals added together, and 60% of the amount used for
the final revenue base (12 months divided by 20 months = 60%).

3
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INTERGOVERNMENTAL RISK
MANAGEMENT AGENCY
The Risk Management Solution for Local Government

MEMORANDUM
TO:

Training & Education Committee

FROM:

Jennifer Swahlstedt, Risk Management & Training Manager

DATE:

April 11, 2018

RE:

TEC Statement of Responsibility

Action Requested: Approve the modification to the TEC Statement of Responsibility.
Background: The Board of Directors unanimously approved the Grant Program Guidelines
presented at the March 21, 2018, meeting. These guidelines include a provision wherein “any
member who has been denied a grant due to poor participation levels, may notify the Executive
Director of the desire to appeal staffs’ denial to the Training & Education Committee within 10
days of staff notification”.
Discussion: The option of appealing to the TEC following a grant denial based on low participation
levels is a new committee responsibility which should be reflected in the TEC Statement of
Responsibility. Please see attached recommended changes.
Recommendation: Approve recommended changes as presented.
Training & Education Committee, 5/9/18: Motion was made by Rath, seconded by Ditanto to
approve the recommended changes as presented. The motion passed unanimously.
Attachment:

TEC Statement of Responsibility-Revised 4.11.18
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TRAINING & EDUCATION COMMITTEE
STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY
1.

Review of the annual training and educational programs:





Education Summit, Regional Training, Coffee & Conversation Workshops, Special
Training
Member Orientation
Reference and Audio-Visual Library
Annual Service Visit Plan

2.

Overseeing the IRMA Management Assessment Program (IMAP), conducted by the
IRMA Risk Management Services department and review staff’s recommendations for
revisions.

3.

Monitor the work/activities of the Steering Committees (i.e., Police Chiefs, Public Works
Directors, Fire Chiefs).

4.

Annual Grant Programs: Review annual budget proposals

5.

Serve as the Appeals Committee for appeals of grant denials based on low participation
levels as outlined in the Grant Program Guidelines.

5.6.

Monitor and review the training evaluation reports.

6.7.

Annual review and approval of the Committee’s portion of the line item budget. The
recommended budget will be forwarded for final approval to the Executive Board.

7.8.

Review and make recommendations concerning the pricing, registration, cancellation and
refund policy, and all other policies related to the responsibilities of the Training and
Education Committee.

8.9.

Such further responsibilities as may be assigned by the Chair of IRMA.

Formatted: List Paragraph, Left, Right: 0", No bullets
or numbering, Hyphenate, Tab stops: Not at -0.5" + 0"

Adopted 11/89
Revised 1/04
Revised 1/07
Revised 1/12
Revised 1/17
G:\IRMA Organization\Website\WORD DOCUMENTS\BOARD & COMMITTEES\Training & Education Committee Statement Of Responsibility-Revised-1-1-17.Docx
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INTERGOVERNMENTAL RISK
MANAGEMENT AGENCY
The Risk Management Solution for Local Government

MEMORANDUM
TO:

Training & Education Committee

FROM:

Jennifer Swahlstedt, Risk Management & Training Manager

DATE:

April 26, 2018

RE:

Training Registration Guidelines

Action Requested: Approve staff recommended modifications to the registration guidelines.
Background: A core function of the Training & Education Committee Statement of
Responsibility includes reviewing the training registration policy, concerning the pricing,
registration, cancellation and refund policy for offered regional and special training programs.
Discussion: The current training registration guidelines posted to the IRMA website are
outdated. The Leadership Institute and Driver Training programs have been disbanded and are
no longer offered by IRMA. Additionally, there are general housekeeping items including
updating contact numbers and grammar.
Staff is also proposing modifications to Registration, Section G which sets limits on the number of
participants allowed depending on class size. Currently, class sizes ranging from 16-75
participants allow 5 registrants per member. The special and regional trainings offered generally
fall under this class size range making it a challenge to accommodate as many interested
members as possible. The class sizes vary by class type/topic, speaker’s preferences and room
accommodations. This range is too broad, and it is recommended it be broken down into smaller
categories. For example, a maximum class size of 20 would allow a single member to register 5
people; a quarter of the total seats available. Below is a comparison of the current guidelines and
recommended changes.
Current:

Proposed Changes:

Class Size

Registrants Allowed/Member

1-15

1

16-75
76-140
141-200

5
10
15

>200

unlimited

Class is not full unlimited

Class Size
1-15
16-30
31-45
46-75
76-140
141-200
>200
Class is not full

Registrants Allowed/Member
1
2
3
5
10
15
unlimited
unlimited

Please review attached Training Registration Guidelines for all proposed modifications.
Recommendation: Approve staff’s recommended modifications to the registration guidelines.
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Memorandum to Training & Education Committee
April 26, 2018
RE: Training Registration Guidelines
Page 2
Training & Education Committee, 5/9/18: Motion was made by Aire, and seconded by
Smizinski to approve changes to the registration guidelines as presented. The motion passed
unanimously.
Attachment: Training Registration Guidelines 4.26.18 Revisions
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Training Registration Guidelines
Purpose
To establish guidelines for pricing, registration, confirmation, cancellation/ refunds, and no
showno-show registrants pertaining to IRMA’s training programs. Special considerations are
listed which apply to the National and International Academy of Professional Driver Training
(NAPD & IAPD) programs.
Procedure
Pricing
A. For IRMA Members, the Leadership Institute, Special Training, and any other special regional
programs scheduled will have fees assigned.
B. Non-members will be assessed a training fee equal to the IRMA Member program fee plus
50% (1.5 x Member program fee). This does not apply for other governmental agencies IRMA
has partnered with.
C. Coffee & Conversation Workshop Series, Member Orientation programs and the Resource
Library are free to members.
Registration
A. A registration form must be completed to attend an IRMA training program.
B. Enroll online. A confirmation will be sent immediately to the email address provided.
C. Registration is also handled by fax (708) 236-6350 6344 or mail. IRMA will fax or e-mail a
confirmation within 3 days of your registration. If a confirmation notice is not received, contact
IRMA to verify registration.
D. IRMA Members will have registration priority over Non-members up to two (2) weeks prior to
the scheduled program, after which Non-members may be invited to attend.
E. Registration for some programs may be closed weeks in advance, likewise, if there is
insufficient registration, the program may be cancelled. Walk-in registration on the day of the
program will be accepted based on availability.
F. Program flyers are to be emailed out 45 days prior to a scheduled program, with a second
mailing being sent 3 weeks out if attendance is below expected numbers.
G. In cases where programs may have a set limit on the number of participants, refer to the
chart below to determine allowances per member:
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Class Size
1-15
16-30
1631-7545
46-75
76-140
141-200
>200
Class is not full

Registrants Allowed/Member
1
2
35
5
10
15
unlimited
unlimited

H. Substitutions from the same entity will be permitted without additional charge.
Incentive Pricing
A. IRMA provides volume discounts for multiple enrollments from the same entity in the same
program.
B. Multiple Enrollment Discounts:



10% discount for two participants
15% discount for three or more participants

C. Incentive pricing is not offered for any NAPD & IAPD training program.
Cancellation, No Shows & Refunds
A. All cancellations must be submitted in writing to receive any type of refund.
B. Cancellations received one week prior to an IRMA Leadership Institute (ILI) or Special
Training (ST) program date are entitled to a FULL REFUND.
C. Cancellations received with less than one weeks’ notice for any ILI or ST are subject to a
$20.00 cancellation fee or one-half the registration fee, whichever is greater.
D. No shows will be charged the full registration fee.
E. If programs are free e.g., Coffee & Conversation Workshop Series, advance notification of
non-attendance would be appreciated.
F. The National and International Academy of Professional Drivers (NAPD & IAPD) programs
require the registering entity to provide notice of cancellation 2 weeks prior to the program or the
entity will be billed for the full cost of the training session. This 2-week notice is also required if
the registering entity requests a participant be moved to another program date or for
substitutions from the same entity.
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Miscellaneous
A. An evaluation form will be completed following every program. Members comments help
improve programming and speakers.
B. A Certificate of Attendance is only granted for hours attended by the participant and provided
at the end of the program.
C. IRMA reserves the right to amend the agenda, alter or cancel published dates and change
venues.
D. In compliance with the Clean Air Act, presentations will be conducted in non-smoking
meeting rooms. Smoking will be permitted during breaks in areas designated by the meeting
facility.
E. To ensure an optimum learning environment for all program participants, cellular telephones
and pagers must be turned off during the program.
F. The opinions expressed by speakers/panelists are not necessarily those of IRMA.
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MANAGEMENT AGENCY
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MEMORANDUM
TO:

Training & Education Committee

FROM:

Jennifer Swahlstedt, Risk Management & Training Manager

DATE:

April 26, 2018

RE:

Accreditation / Re-Accreditation Grant Application

Action Requested: Approve staff recommended modification to the Accreditation / ReAccreditation Grant Application to include accreditation from the Commission for Accreditation
of Park & Recreation Agencies (CAPRA).
Background: The Accreditation / Re-Accreditation Grant Application includes funding for
members attaining Police, Fire, Public Works and Parks & Recreation Accreditation. Police
Departments can apply for reimbursement for Commission on Accreditation for Law
Enforcement Agencies (CALEA) or Illinois Law Enforcement Accreditation Program (ILEAP)
Accreditation, Fire for Center for Public Safety Excellence (CPSE) Accreditation, Public Works
for American Public Works Association (APWA) Accreditation and Parks & Recreation for Illinois
Distinguished Accreditation Program (IAPD/IPRA) Accreditation.
Discussion: At the April 19, 2018, Parks & Recreation Steering Committee (PRSC) meeting,
members discussed obtaining accreditation and the accreditation process. One member is
currently going through the accreditation process for the Commission for Accreditation of Park &
Recreation Agencies (CAPRA). CAPRA Accreditation is based on an agency’s compliance with
the 151 standards for national accreditation. The PRSC requested CAPRA Accreditation be
included as an accepted accreditation on the IRMA Accreditation / Re-Accreditation Grant
Application.
CAPRA Accreditation is not unlike many of the other accreditation agencies which are
acceptable for this grant. The accreditation cycle, process and costs are similar to other
approved accreditation agencies.
Staff is recommending CAPRA be added as an acceptable accreditation for grant submission
for the Parks and Recreation Department, outlining that the member can apply for either
IAPD/IPRA or CAPRA, but not both. This is similar language already established for police
accreditation application of either CALEA or ILEAP. See attachment.
This change will not result in a budget increase.
Recommendation: Approve staff’s recommended modifications to the Accreditation / ReAccreditation Grant Application to add the CAPRA Accreditation to the Parks & Recreation
section.
Training & Education Committee, 5/9/18: Motion made by DeFeo, seconded by Smizinski to
approve changes as recommended. Motion passed unanimously.
Attachment: Accreditation/Re-Accreditation Grant Application
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ACCREDITATION/
REACCREDITATION
GRANT PROGRAMS

American Public Works
Association
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ACCREDITATION/REACCREDITATION GRANT PROGRAMS
Each year, IRMA offers a reimbursement grant program for those members attaining Police, Fire, Public
Works, Parks and Recreation Accreditation. Those members who are planning to request reimbursement
for completed accreditation must submit a submittal form to the IRMA office. Please do not request
reimbursement, if you are not confident that you will receive accreditation/reaccreditation during the next
calendar year. IRMA will work on making the funds available upon receipt of written notice verifying
accreditation/reaccreditation.
FUNDING PROCEDURE
All reimbursements are on a first/come, first/served basis, based on completed grant requirements, during
each calendar year until the budgeted amount is depleted. Any remaining applications will be moved to
the following budget year. For more information regarding the General Grant Guidelines, please visit the
IRMA website or click here.

POLICE – Since 1986, IRMA has sponsored the Commission on Accreditation for Law Enforcement
Agencies (CALEA) grant program to encourage its members to upgrade their police department
standards by achieving accreditation. In 2010, the IRMA Board approved the Illinois Law Enforcement
Accreditation Program (ILEAP) -Tier 2 as a grant program. Members may submit a grant application for
either CALEA or ILEAP, but not both. Local governments are increasingly being held liable for damages
resulting from public employees wrongfully carrying out or acting without a policy. This makes police
agency accreditation extremely desirable. An excellent defense to lawsuits charging police with such acts
as false arrest, use of excessive force, or violation of civil rights is that the officer was acting properly in
accordance with established policies, and that those policies were approved by an accrediting agency.
Conversely, lack of acceptable department policies and/or training certainly cast doubt on any police
agency defense and may actually be the basis for the plaintiff’s case.

FIRE – This accreditation is sponsored by the Center for Public Safety Excellence (CPSE), which was
established by the International Association of Fire Chiefs. The process of attaining accreditation provides
for initial and ongoing self-assessment followed by a team of professionals practiced in a particular
discipline reviewing every aspect of program compliance at the applicant’s site. It is an extensive and
thorough review of all aspects of organizing and managing a Fire Service function.

PUBLIC WORKS – The American Public Works Association (APWA) developed the public works
department accreditation program. The process of attaining accreditation provides for initial and ongoing
self-assessment followed by a team of professionals practiced in a particular discipline reviewing every
aspect of program compliance at the applicant’s site. It is an extensive and thorough review of all aspects
of organizing and managing a Public Works function.

PARKS & RECREATION – The goal of the Illinois Distinguished Accreditation program, sponsored by
the Illinois Association of Park Districts & the Illinois Park and Recreation Association, is to improve the
delivery of recreation services to the residents of Illinois through a voluntary comprehensive evaluation
process. The desired result is to improve the quality of life for Illinois residents and to recognize those
agencies that provide this quality service. The Commission for Accreditation of Park & Recreation
Agencies (CAPRA) is a national accreditation standard which accredits park and recreation agencies for
excellence in operation and service. Accreditation from this agency is also accepted under this grant
program. Members may submit a grant application for IAPD/IPRA or CAPRA, but not both.
IRMA will reimburse the member, upon notification of accreditation, a sum of 50% of the initial
accreditation fee and on-site visit charges, paid by the member up to a maximum of $3,500. IRMA
will also reimburse 25% of the service fee and on-site visit charges (otherwise known as the
annual continuation fee) for reaccreditation.
Should you have any questions about the procedure, please contact Jennifer Swahlstedt at the IRMA
office (708.236.6365) for assistance.
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IRMA ACCREDITATION/REACCREDITATION GRANT PROGRAM
SUBMITTAL FORM

Please complete the form below and send to Jennifer Swahlstedt
either via fax - (708) 236-6366
or email - jennifers@irmarisk.org.

MEMBER NAME:

CONTACT NAME:

FUNDING REQUEST:

POLICE-CALEA [ ]
or
POLICE-ILEAP [ ]

$

FIRE [ ]

PUBLIC WORKS [ ]
PARKS & RECREATION [ ]

ACCREDITATION [ ]

REACCREDITATION [ ]
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MEMORANDUM
TO:

Coverage, Claims, & Litigation Committee

FROM:

Susan Garvey, Legal Director
Keena Marks-Cutler, Supervisor of Liability Claims Operations

DATE:

May 3, 2018

RE:

IRMA Property Coverage-Coverage Section B1.h. Outdoor Property

Action Requested: Approve the recommended revision to the First Party Property coverage
language that will expand coverage under section B.1.h, in response to frustrations recently
expressed by members.
Background: As a member-owned intergovernmental risk pool, IRMA coverage is decided by
our members. We have several different coverage documents that direct our staff as to whether
a particular claim is covered or not. Recently, we have heard complaints from members regarding
a provision of a First Party Property coverage because it is viewed as inequitable and lacking in
logic. For this reason, staff recommends a revision that will resolve the issues that have been
raised.
Discussion: First Party Property claims are those claims where an IRMA member’s property has
been damaged. For reference, in 2017, these claims represented approximately 7.35% of IRMA’s
overall claim payments. An example of a fairly routine and relevant first party property claim is
an accident in which a third-party motorist destroys a fire hydrant. According to our current
coverage language, we would pay the members’ labor costs to remove the debris and would not
pay the labor costs associated with replacing the hydrant. Revising the policy language would
allow us to pay for the members’ entire invoice including the labor costs incurred to both remove
the debris and to replace the hydrant. For these reasons, we recommend that our coverage
document be revised to pay for labor costs associated with the repair and/or reinstallation of the
property.
The attached redlined policy coverage language accomplishes this change.
Recommendation: Concur with the recommended revision to the language in the first party
property coverage, as attached, to include coverage for labor charges for the repair or
reinstallation of damaged outdoor property.
Coverage Claims and Litigation Committee 5/3/18: The CCLC concurred with the
recommended revisions to the language.
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PROPERTY COVERAGE FORM
Various provisions in this Coverage Agreement restrict coverage. Read the entire Coverage Agreement carefully
to determine rights, duties and what is and is not covered. Words and phrases that appear in quotation marks
have special meaning; refer to Section C., Definitions.
A.

INSURING AGREEMENT
IRMA will pay for direct physical loss or damage to Covered Property at premises as described in the
most recent Statement of Values or other documentation on file with IRMA, caused by or resulting from a
Covered Cause of Loss. Covered Cause of Loss means risks of direct physical loss unless the property is
not covered in Section C, Property and Costs not Covered; the loss is excluded in Section D., Exclusions;
limited in Section E., Limitations; or excluded or limited in the Property Coverage Declarations or by
endorsements.

B.

COVERAGE
Coverage is provided for Covered Property and Covered Costs and Expenses for which the Member has
an insurable interest, unless excluded in Section C., Property and Costs Not Covered. Coverage applies
only when a Limit of Insurance is shown in the Property Coverage Declarations for the specific type of
Covered Property or Covered Costs and Expenses, except where otherwise stated in the Declarations.
1.

COVERED PROPERTY
a.

Building(s) means the buildings or other structures at the Member’s premises, including:
(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)

Completed additions;
Fixtures, including outdoor fixtures;
Machinery and equipment permanently attached to the building;
Personal property owned by the Member that is used to maintain or service the
buildings, structures or grounds; and
If not covered by other insurance:
(a)
Additions under construction, alterations and repairs to the buildings or
structures; and
(b)
Materials, equipment, supplies and temporary structures, on or within
1,000 feet of the Member’s premises, used for making alterations or
repairs to the buildings or structures.

Building(s) do not include “Outdoor Property” except as provided in section h below.
b.

Business Personal Property located in or on the buildings at the Member’s premises or
in the open (or in a vehicle) within 1,000 feet of the Member’s premises, consisting of the
following unless otherwise specified in the Property Coverage Declarations:
(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)

Furniture and fixtures;
Machinery and equipment;
“Stock”;
All other personal property owned by the Member and used in the Member’s
business;
Labor, materials or services furnished or arranged by the Member on personal
property of others;
The Member’s use interest as tenant in improvements and betterments.
Improvements and betterments are fixtures, alterations, installations or additions:
(a)

Made a part of the buildings or structures occupied or leased, but not
owned, by the Member; and
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h.

“Outdoor Property”
This insurance applies to “Outdoor Property” at the Member’s premises for loss or
damage only by the following Covered Causes of Loss:
(1)
Fire;
(2)
Lightning;
(3)
Explosion;
(4)
Riot or civil commotion;
(5)
Vandalism or malicious mischief; or
(6)
Aircraft or vehicles.
This insurance also applies to loss or damage caused by wind to light poles, traffic lights
and street signs.
This insurance also applies to the necessary and reasonable expense incurred by the
Member to remove debris, reinstall and/or replace "Outdoor Property” at the Member’s
premises caused by or resulting from a Covered Cause of Loss listed above that occurs
during the Coverage Agreement period. Such expenses will be paid only if reported to
IRMA in writing within 180 days of the date of direct physical loss or damage. This will
not increase the Limit of Insurance that applies to “Outdoor Property.”

i.

Personal Effects of Officers and Employees of the Member
This insurance applies to the Personal Effects and “Fine Arts” owned by officers, partners
or employees of the Member. Such property must be located at or within 1000 feet of the
Member’s premises. Payment for loss or damage to Personal Effects and “Fine Arts” will
only be for the account of the owner of the property.

j.

Covered Property at Undescribed Premises
This insurance applies to:
(1)
Covered Property at an “exhibition” including while in transit to and from the
“exhibition” site. Coverage for this property applies worldwide except within any
country on which the United States government has imposed sanctions,
embargoes or any other similar prohibitions.
(2)

Covered Property that will or has become a permanent part of an installation
project being performed for others by the Member, or on the Member’s behalf,
while such property is at the installation premises or at other premises where the
property is temporarily stored. Coverage for this installation property applies only
within the Coverage Agreement Territory and will apply only until the Member’s
interest in the property ceases, the installation is accepted, the installation is
abandoned, or this Coverage Agreement is cancelled or expires, whichever
occurs first.

(3)

Covered Property at any other premises within the Coverage Agreement
Territory which are not otherwise insured under this Coverage Agreement, and
which the Member does not own, lease or regularly operate.
This Coverage does not apply to Personal Effects of Officers and Employees of
the Member.
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